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Chairman’s Statement
FEERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the
“Company”), I am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The net loss for the year was mainly attributable to the fair
value loss of approximately HK$41.5 million in respect of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

During the year under review, the hotel hospitality business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$22.5 million (2023:
approximately HK$25.6 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$1.8 million (2023: approximately HK$10.0
million).

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had loans receivable with
gross principal amount of approximately HK$146.9 million
(2023: approximately HK$161.9 million) with related gross
interest receivables of approximately HK$82.2 million for the
year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: approximately HK$68.8
million).

BRIR -

RAABERREZHEREBER A ([
~ADEE(EFD@(EFS]) MAR
ERRFREMBAR (B AEE]) &
E-TNEAA=ZTRALEFEZR2FES -

EFDERRE
AERERIFHETERERZAFESA
BRZEREE 2 AFEEIEA 41,500,000

AT °

REBEFE BERTEBHRSREN
22,500,000 7T (=& = = 4F : 4925,600,000
Bor) o EE1E 41,800,000 T (= F
— =% : #710,000,000/87T) °

RZEBE-_NWNFERNA=Z+H "EBELARE
HBEE 146,900,000 T (Z T =4 : 4
161,900,000 70) 2 FEWE R - MAREZE =
T-ENA=T B IEFER AR EKF
B 4AKE4) 582,200,000 T (Z T =4 :
#768,800,000/8 7T ) ©

4 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The money lending business recorded a segment loss of
approximately HK$1.0 million (2023: approximately HK$8.6
million). The segment loss was mainly resulted from the
impairment loss on loans receivable.

The revenue of the liquor and wine business for the year
ended 30 June 2024 was approximately HK$2.2 million (2023:
approximately HK$0.1 million) and a segment gain of
approximately HK$1.2 million was recorded for the year
ended 30 June 2024 (2023: segment loss of approximately
HK$0.6 million). The bulk sales to the distributor that the
Company can liquidate the inventories to be cash for general
working capital and other investment opportunity. The Group
had continually source the customers to sell the inventories
during the year.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to our staff
for their dedication and commitment as well as to our valued
shareholders, customers, suppliers and other business
partners for their support and encouragement to the Group
in the past year.

WONG Siu Keung Joe
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBWE S Hh

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was engaged in four business
segments, (i) hotel hospitality business; (ii) provision of money
lending services; (iii) trading and distribution of liquor and
wine; and (iv) investments in listed securities.

As at 30 June 2024, the Group’s operations recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$31.3 million (2023:
approximately HK$31.2 million). The net loss for the year
ended 30 June 2024 was approximately HK$70.7 million (2023:
approximately HK$69.8 million) while the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$70.7 million (2023: approximately HK$69.8 million). Basic
loss per share was approximately 0.45 HK cent (2023:
approximately 0.44 HK cent). The net loss for the year was
mainly attributable to the fair value loss of approximately
HK$41.5 million in respect of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Hotel hospitality business

During the year, the hotel hospitality business recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$22.5 million (2023:
approximately HK$25.6 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$1.8 million (2023: segment loss of
approximately HK$10.0 million).

Hotel hospitality business is the core business of the Group
which contributed approximately 72% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 30 June 2024. The hotel, One Niseko
Resort Towers (the “Resort Towers”), is located in the famous
Japanese skiing destination of Niseko, Hokkaido, Japan.
Niseko is one of the famous ski resort areas in Japan and is
well known for its heavy light powder snow and spectacular
backcountry. The Resort Towers consists of 110 units of high-
end accommodation and has an onsen with an indoor and
outdoor bath. It attracts many tourists from world-wide for
skiing in the winter time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

In the course of preparing the financial statements, the
management had engaged an independent qualified valuer
(the “Hotel Valuer”) to determine the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit of the hotel hospitality business (the
“Hotel Hospitality Business CGU"). For the sake of prudence,
the management had further engaged another independent
qualified valuer to conduct an independent review of the
valuation report issued by the Hotel Valuer on the valuation
methodology and key valuation parameters. Both valuers are
members of Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and with
extensive experience in valuation of properties. In assessing
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit of the
hotel hospitality business as at 30 June 2024, the fair value
less cost of disposal method was adopted, in which is higher
than the result of value-in-use calculation and is based on
direct comparison approach with reference to the recent
sales of similar transactions in the market.

Based on the assessment result, no impairment 10ss on
property, plant and equipment was recognised for the year
ended 30 June 2024.

As at the end of each financial year, the Company was
required to assess any indication that its assets and/or cash
generating unit may be impaired (i.e. the carrying amount
may be higher than the recoverable amount). Recoverable
amount is the higher of the assets’ or the cash generating
unit’s value-in-use and fair value less cost of disposal. The
value-in-use is developed under the income approach while
the fair value less cost of disposal is developed based on
direct comparison approach with reference to the recent
sales transaction evidences for similar premises in the
proximity. Comparable transactions vary along the change in
valuation date.

Direct comparison method under market approach is
considered to be the most popular and common valuation
approach in valuing the property. Moreover, income
approach has been indirectly adopted from the business
perspective in the calculation of the value-in-use of the Hotel
Hospitality Business CGU. Thus, direct comparison method is
adopted for valuing the fair value of property.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBWE S Hh

The key assumption adopted in the fair value less cost of
disposal approach for 30 June 2024 and 2023 was the cost of
disposal which was 3.5% of the market value of the property.
It included the average market rate of brokerage fee and
other miscellaneous administrative and legal costs.

The Company has consistently applied the same
methodology to determine the recoverable amount and the
fair value less cost of disposal was adopted for impairment
assessment as at 30 June 2024 and 2023.

The value-in-use calculation was the estimated future cash
flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflected current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the hotel
hospitality business. The calculation used in cash flow
projections was based on latest financial budgets covering a
period of 5 years with compound average annual growth rate
of revenue of approximately 2% (2023: 2%). The compound
annual growth rate of revenue was determined with
reference to historical revenue in the current year and the
5-year forecasted revenue taking into account of the
expected number of tourists who would visit Niseko. Due to
the Japanese Government implemented the planned gradual
reopening to inbound tourists in the year, Japan inbound
market has been active. As a result, there was a gradual
increase in the number of visitors to Japan in the year under
review. The revenue growth rate in 2024 was lower than that
in 2023 by approximately 12%. The gross profit ratio of the
forecasted period was expected to be approximately 94%
(2023: 93%) with reference to the historical record. The pre-
tax discount rate of 20% (2023: 17%) was determined with
reference to the market conditions, such as company specific
risk premium and cost of debt of the hotel hospitality
business. The cash flow projections beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a perpetual growth rate of 2% (2023:
2%) which was referred to long-term growth rate of tourism
in Niseko and the long-term inflation rate in Japan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

The Group’s business plan to further develop the hotel
hospitality business included the renovation of the Resort
Towers (the "Renovation Project”). Due to unforeseen
circumstances, the Renovation Project has been delayed and
could not proceed as initially scheduled. The primary reasons
for the delay in the Renovation Project is our dissatisfaction
with the proposed design. We believe that the design plays a
crucial role in enhancing the overall appeal and functionality
of the hotel. After careful consideration and evaluation, we
realized that the proposed design did not align with our vision
for the hotel’s future. As such, we deemed it necessary to
revisit and revise the design to ensure that it meets our
standards and reflects our brand identity effectively. Another
significant challenge we encountered was the inability to
secure a reliable construction team for the building and MEP
(Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing) inspection and
construction due to a shortage of qualified contractors and
engineers in the region. The construction industry is currently
facing unprecedented demands, leading to a scarcity of
skilled professionals available to undertake projects of this
scale. Despite our best efforts to engage suitable contractors,
the shortage in the market has posed a considerable obstacle
in assembling a competent team to execute the renovation
project efficiently.

We are dedicated to delivering a renovated hotel that
exceeds expectations and upholds the high standards that
our guests have come to expect. Our team is working
diligently to overcome these obstacles and proceed with the
Renovation Project promptly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWR S

The re-schedule business plan as follows: BT EFBEEIAT ¢

November 2024-March 2025 o Pre-peak season preparation including but not limited to building
safety inspection and maintenance; staff training;

o Peak season operation;

o Secure guotation from professional required (Architect, Structural
Engineer, MEP Engineer) for the renovation project;

o Review and confirm final design concept;

o Confirm the work scope & fees with the selected Interior Designer for
the Design Phase.

“E-NE+—AFE e WHFAEEIIE 2EETRAEFZERENGEE  BT1THEI:
—E-_RF=H

° HE;EAA

o HUSEHMEBMFEZER AL (GRER - 418 T2 - MEP TH26D)
ZRIE

o EHMERZERIHS
-

. UEE 2 ENRTMERRI R TRBEERER -

April-October 2025 o Apply for regulatory approval (if necessary);
o Completion of building and MEP inspection;

o Main renovation phase 1: renovation works will commence on the
one of the two towers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

November 2025-March 2026

—T-hFE+—AZE
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April-October 2026
— 7 —/ \f‘E P;EI ﬂ —|— ﬂ

November 2026-March 2027

—TERF+—AZE
—T-t+F=A

Pre-peak season preparation including but not limited to building
safety inspection and maintenance; staff training;

Peak season operation;

Renovation work of the first tower will be substantially completed and
several suites will be available for rental, hence, additional revenue
will be recognized;

All the substantial renovation work will be suspended during the peak
season because of the weather conditions as well as to provide a
silent and relaxing environment to the Group’s guests and customers.
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Main renovation phase 2: Renovation work will commence again for two
towers during the off-season.

TEMHER2  MEEE 2N TRESNATHRBARA -

Pre-peak season preparation including but not limited to building
safety inspection and maintenance; staff training;

Peak season operation;

Renovation work of the first tower will be completed at all and the
second tower will be substantially completed and most of the suites
will be available for rental, hence, additional revenue will be
recognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBWE S Hh

Money lending services

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had loans receivable with
gross principal amount of approximately HK$146.9 million
(2023: approximately HK$161.9 million) with related gross
interest receivables of approximately HK$82.2 million for the
year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: approximately HK$68.8
million).

The loan portfolio comprises loans to Independent Third Party
(as defined below) borrowers with term ranging from eight
months to twenty-four months and interest rate ranged from
8% t0 20% (2023: 5.5% t0 20%) per annum.

The money lending business recorded a segment loss of
approximately HK$1.0 million (2023: approximately HK$8.6
million).

In the course of preparing the financial statements, the
management had engaged an independent qualified valuer
(the "1st ECL Valuer”) to determine the expected credit losses
(the “ECL") of the Group'’s loans receivable. For the sake of
prudence, the management had further engaged another
independent qualified valuer (“2nd ECL Valuer”) to conduct an
independent review of the valuation report issued by the 1st
ECL Valuer on the valuation methodology, the underlying
assumptions, the parameters and inputs used in the valuation
for accounting purpose. In assessing the ECL of the Group'’s
loans receivable, a credit rating analysis of the underlying
debtors was adopted by reviewing the historical accounting
information to estimate the default risk. The Group applied
different expected loss rates to different classes of
receivables according to their respective risk characteristics.
In determining the default risk, factors including but not
limited to, the ageing analysis of the receivables, the Group’s
internal assessment of the debtors’ credit worthiness,
historical and forecast occurrence of event of default,
existence and valuation of the collaterals, the relevant
regulatory framework and government policies in Hong Kong
and global economic outlook in general and the specific
economic condition of Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), would be considered. The rate of ECL
ranged to 100% (2023: 93.11% to 100%) depending on the
nature, probability of default and loss given default of the
loans receivable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money
lending business which includes compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations, credit assessment on
potential borrower and his/its assets, the credibility of the
potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining collaterals and
determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk level
of the provision of loan.

The Group has performed credit risk assessment before
granting the loans by (a) reviewing the financial information
of the potential borrower; and (b) performing an assessment
on the financial condition of the potential borrower and its
shareholder (for enterprises), such as the type and value of
assets owned by the potential borrower.

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the
value of security/collateral for granting of each loan, whether
to an individual or enterprise, on a case by case basis
considering factors, including but not limited to, the
repayment history, results of public search towards the
borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the
borrower and the financial condition of the borrower.

For loan collection/recovery, the Group issues overdue
payment reminder to the borrower, instructs its legal advisers
to issue demand letter for loans overdue for a longer period
of time, negotiates with the borrower for the repayment or
settlement of the loan and/or commences legal actions
against the borrower.

AEEERNEERREERHEEXEY
BRETHMBABREERESR HELEHE
BEAUKEEEETEENGE BERE
ARAEEE BRI MEERONE N
UREFABENERARMRBEEEERSD
[RL B2 7K o

AEERREZEERAMDETEERR
AHE - TEAR  QBEHBERERE AN
BR RO EHEBEEEEAREBRR (Bidx
mE) M BEARRETHE - fINEBEEE
ANBENEERLREE -

AEBEZE (BEENRR) ERLE
HEBEANETARBAENER EEAM
BHEEENBERULEAREE AN
MR E R F % - IR B E R FORE &
HEFER(ERETEAXEE)NLE
HRERERRNEE -

RERKE WRHE  AEEREE
BHBHNFBNE  BREARBERL
REFRAAHERZLEFTBRNE  BE
BEASEERENEFETHBE R HE
tEEARRERTE -
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Business Model of the Money Lending Service

The Group conducts its money lending business in Hong Kong
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, DeTai Finance Limited
(“DeTai Finance”) which holds a money lender’s licence under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the laws of
Hong Kong). The money lending business is mainly financed
by the internal resources of DeTai Finance.

DeTai Finance grants loans to both corporate and individual
borrowers in Hong Kong whom are person(s) or company(ies)
and their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s) that are third
parties independent of and not connected with the Group
and its connected persons in accordance with the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Independent
Third Party(ies)”). DeTai Finance does not grant loans to the
general consumer market. DeTai Finance has not solicited
new clients nor granted new loans as the management of the
Ccompany, which were mainly in charge of the money lending
business, has changed in the recent few years. As such, the
current management and employees of the Group have been
focused on examining the existing loan portfolio of the Group
and in recovering the outstanding loans, instead of soliciting
new clients or granting new loans.

The Group, when engaging in the money lending service, has
built and maintained a diversified credit risk portfolio to avoid
credit risk concentration. It is the policy of DeTai Finance that
no loan should be made to one borrower or all related parties
of the said borrower where such loan and all loans
aggregated with all related parties would exceed 50% of the
entire loan portfolio of the Group.

BEREZEBERX

$E@@ﬂﬁ BB ARREMBAER
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HEAMW&E%W&N@@?%%&G
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iﬂﬁ&:ﬁﬂﬁ@m%_ﬁﬂﬁi%—
TBELER - BRUBIEM—REE
EMBELER - BERUBALERENT
FREEHER RERTEREHEE?

BZARREEBNOILFCEE - Fitt

AEBEBEAMcERERERD BN A
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mIFRER TP AR EHER -

REBMEREEEREE - ELI&Z’EH
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Loan Portfolio of the Money Lending Service

As set out above, the Group's loan portfolio includes
individual borrowers and corporate borrowers. The individual
borrowers of the Group were merchants. Whilst the corporate
borrowers of the Group include, but were not limited to,
companies that as at the date of granting the loans were
principally engaged in motor vehicle trading, the gaming and
resort business, investment holding and provision of
corporate supporting services, provision of financial
guarantee services and relevant consultancy services, and/or
were companies whose shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange. Clients were mainly referred to the Group by the
then management of Company.

As at 30 June 2024, the Group’s loan portfolio consisted of
four individual borrowers (2023: five individual borrowers)
and three corporate borrowers and the total outstanding
principal amount and interest receivables amounted to
approximately HK$229,055,000 (2023: HK$230,689,000). The
outstanding principal amount and interest receivables (before
impairment) amounted to approximately HK$74.8 million
(2023: approximately HK$70.2 million) and approximately
HK$205.4 million (2023: approximately HK$195.8 million) for
the top borrower and the top five borrowers respectively,
which represented approximately 32.7% (2023: approximately
30.4%) and approximately 89.7% (2023: approximately 84.9%)
of the total outstanding principal amounts and interest
receivables, respectively. One individual borrower repaid the
loan amount of HK$1,400,000 during the year.

Amongst the seven loans in the Group’s loan portfolio as at
30 June 2024, (i) one of the loans was secured by collaterals
and a personal guarantee and had an interest rate of 10%,
(i) two of the loans were secured by a personal guarantee
only and had interest rates of 8% and 20% respectively; and
(iii) the remaining four loans were unsecured and had interest
rates ranging from 10% to 16%. The interest rate of the
relevant loans were determined based on the commercial
interest of the Group as a whole, with reference to, amongst
others, (i) the risk level of the loan (including but not limited
to the availability of collaterals and/or personal guarantees),
(i) the principal amount of the loan; and (iii) the financial
condition of the borrower.

As at 30 June 2024, all outstanding gross loan and interest
receivables had been overdue for over one year.

BEREZER
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The details regarding the recovery status of the remaining AE£BHNERBAEHFHB T LEAEEER

seven outstanding loans in the Group’s loan portfolio is set

out as follows:

Outstanding
principal
amount and
interest
receivables
as at

30 June 2024
HK$
R-F-MF
AA=tTHZ
REELSE
& EWF S
BT

Borrower

A 14,342,486

B 9,306,904

16

Interest
rate
(per annum)

Collateral/
security

EHm/

BR

20% Personal

guarantee

202 BAER
16% N/A

168 i

R E AR FHIE R T -

Recovery status as at the
date of this report

RAHERRZ
2 =18 35

The Group had commenced legal proceedings against
borrower A in June 2021 and as at the date of this report,
such proceedings are still ongoing pending the provision of
outstanding original documents as requested by the High
Court of Hong Kong.

AEBER T —FAAHBEAARRERESFA R
AREAH  ZFRNEETH  UFEERSZERE
SRR i R IR A A FR A XM

The Group had commenced legal proceedings against
borrower B in November 2019 and judgment has been
entered into against borrower B for the outstanding
principal amount and interest accrued thereon. However,
no enforcement action or proceedings had been
commenced as of yet as a judgment handed down by a
Hong Kong court cannot be enforced in the PRC.
AEEER-_Z-NF+-AHBEABRREERA
EBEREREEABHREERNEE RETFEMEL
#IR o R - BEB R M ARRARETBIFA  REAR
BEEEREL AR TR R BEIHAT o

As at the date of this report, the Group has engaged legal
advisers as to PRC laws and has instructed them to
commence legal proceedings against borrower B in the
PRC.

RARERS  AEEEREBMTPEAENERER -
WEETREERPEEEEABREEEFL -

The preliminary documents have been sent to the court of
PRC for reviewing.
NEXHEERPEDE A ER -
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Outstanding
principal
amount and
interest
receivables
as at

30 June 2024
HK$
R-B-F
ANA=tHZ
REEXREH
REWF S
B

Borrower

C 74,788,041

D 46,833,085

Interest
rate Collateral/
(per annum) security
BER
ER
8% Personal
guarantee
8E BAER
10% Collaterals
and a
personal
guarantee
10 BRmk
BAER

Recovery status as at the
date of this report

REBERBZ
B R R

On 15 April 2024, borrower C was ordered to be wound up
by the High Court of Hong Kong and the Official Receiver by
virtue of her office has become the Provisional Liquidator of
it. The Board will engage legal advisers to take necessary
legal actions (i.e. filing a proof of debts to the Official
Receivers etc) to exercise its rights as a creditor of
borrower C.

RZZ_MNEMA+THA  BEACKEARSERBES
AR MKEEREERBEABUKREREEA -
EEQBRERAEERERVENEZZTH (ARKEE
BEERERBEBEAE)  UMTREERBEACHERE
AHBER] o

The Group had commenced legal proceedings against
borrower D, amongst others, in January 2023.

AEEER =T =6 - AHERAD (K o) i
R -

However, as at the date of this report, the Group had not
received any acknowledgements of service of the writ of
summons from borrower D nor the other defendants. The
Group will continue to discuss with its legal advisers
regarding an application for judgment against borrower D
and the other defendants.

Al RAREHH  AEERARBIEEADHHEMDEK
EMTMERARBE o« AR E %8 E R H LR R
WEABHEEADREMBEELHIRNEE -
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Outstanding
principal
amount and
interest
receivables
as at Interest
30 June 2024 rate Collateral/ Recovery status as at the

Borrower HK$ (per annum) security date of this report
R-ZE-NE
AB=tHZ
REELLE
REWFHE BERR/ REARSBEHZ
BT ‘R KWEARR

E 14,503,108 10% N/A  The Group had commenced legal proceedings against
borrower E in November 2020 and as at the date of this
report, such proceedings are still ongoing pending the
provision of outstanding original documents as requested
by the High Court of Hong Kong.

102 TER AEEER-_Z_TF+-HAUEEAERBERFA
RAREBE  ZFDINEETT  UEEFERFER
ESRIR M R R R R I8 3 M

As at the date of this report, the Group has engaged the
legal advisers as to PRC laws and has instructed them to
commence legal proceedings against borrower E in the
PRC.

RARERS AEECZEABTRERHEZER
WERTRERDEBEE AEREEEFA -

F 16,078,997 10% N/A  The Group had commenced legal proceedings against
borrower F in November 2020 and an application had been
made for service out of the jurisdiction on borrower F.
However, the Group was unable to successfully serve the
writ of summons on borrower F to the address provided by
borrower F.

10 TER AEEER_ZTFE+-AYHEEAFRRERFL
WERFEAEEERIINAGEAFRESR - A K
SERERIBAEEAFBEHNERASHREZEZEEA
FHeftay st -

As at the date of this report, the Group has engaged the
legal advisers as to PRC laws and has instructed them to
commence legal proceedings against borrower F in the
PRC.

RAREES  AEECZEAATRERHEZER
WERTRERTEREE AFREERFA
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Outstanding
principal
amount and
interest
receivables
as at

30 June 2024
HK$
R-B-F
ANA=tHZ
REEXREH
REWF S
B

Borrower

G 53,201,574

Interest
rate Collateral/
(per annum) security
BRR/
BR
12% N/A
128 TE A

Recovery status as at the
date of this report

REBERBZ
B R R

The Group had commenced legal proceedings against
borrower G in November 2020 and an application had been
made for service out of the jurisdiction on borrower G.
However, the Group was unable to successfully serve the
writ of summons on borrower G to the address provided by
borrower G.
AEBER-_ZTF+-AHEEAGRBREERA
WERFEAEEERIIABEAGCKEER - AT - K
SEREXNEREEACELNEAIHKREEZEE
A G AL o

As at the date of this report, the Group has engaged the
legal advisers as to PRC laws and has instructed them to
commence legal proceedings against borrower G in the
PRC.

RARERS AEECZEABTRERHEZER
WERTRENPEHEE AGREEEFA
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To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, in respect of the
outstanding loan to borrower D which was secured by
collaterals and a personal guarantee, the collaterals may
have been realised by the joint lender to borrower D. The
Group is seeking advice from its legal advisers as to any
courses of actions to be taken by the Group to recover the
Group's respective share of the amount of the collaterals
realised from the joint lender.

As to the two outstanding loans which were secured by
personal guarantees, the Group is assessing the conditions of
the relevant guarantors and will seek advice from its legal
advisers regarding whether to commence legal proceedings
against the relevant guarantors.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money
lending business which includes compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations, credit assessment on
potential borrower and his/its assets, the credibility of the
potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining collaterals and
determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk level
of the provision of loan.

The Group has performed credit risk assessment before
granting the loans by (a) reviewing the financial information
of the potential borrower; and (b) performing an assessment
on the financial condition of the potential borrower and its
shareholder (for enterprises), such as the type and value of
assets owned by the potential borrower.

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the
value of security/collateral for granting of each loan, whether
to an individual or enterprise, on a case by case basis
considering factors, including but not limited to, the
repayment history, results of public search towards the
borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the
borrower and the financial condition of the borrower.

For loan collection/recovery, the Group issues overdue
payment reminder to the borrower, instructs its legal advisers
to issue demand letter for loans overdue for a longer period
of time, negotiates with the borrower for the repayment or
settlement of the loan and/or commences legal actions
against the borrower.

BEEFEL—VAEERHRMAM 2%
K HEAS - s o S [ A B IR AE B AR
MEEADMAREBEEERME BEEMR
AFIBEE BER R ER FIEEAD - AKH
IERRBUE TE) MBS ERA MBI AL
BoRlEEERRESRSIERBERER -

ERXHEABREERORBEREEZER
AEEIEEFEBBERAGR - I
ELHHEBERAREEZFASRKE
ERERNER -

ARECORMNEERRERAEER
BRETHEEREELER  HEEE
BEAARHEAE BEEEANAEREER
EITEEFE  ERERROLEEUR
EEa@i A RREHEBEERNER
IRF e

AEBRELERA D ETEERRE -
TERQBEMNEEEEANPBEER:
EO)HBEEEEAMERR (IEEME)
RIS AR ETT RS - Bl BE R B A
BREERINEE-

AEBEZE (BEENRR) ERLE
HEBEANETAREANGER (EEAM
BREEENBERULEAREE AN
ARRERER - R E RO EEF A
FORERDBZEER (ERETEASLDE)
B Z 0 R R AR R (B (E -
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Credit Assessment Procedures of the Money Lending
Service

Before the granting of the loans, DeTai Finance would
perform credit assessment procedures to ensure that the
potential borrowers have good credit history, available assets
and strong repayment capabilities. DeTai Finance will conduct
the following credit assessment procedures:

(i) obtain identity documents such as identity cards or
passports from individuals and corporate documents
from corporate borrowers;

(i)  assess the financial condition of the potential borrower
by valuing their financial assets; and

(i) perform internet and media searches on the potential
borrower.

Recovery Procedures of the Group for Overdue Loans
When dealing with overdue loans, the accounting staff, one
senior financing officer and the management level executive
of DeTai Finance are responsible for following up on overdue
sums owed by borrowers who have not made repayment
accordingly. Once a loan has been granted by DeTai Finance,
a designated officer of DeTai Finance will monitor the
repayment of the principal amount of the loan and the
interests accrued thereon in accordance with the terms of
the loan agreement. In the circumstances where a borrower
has defaulted on a loan and in line with the Group's loan
collection/recovery procedures, DeTai Finance and the Group
have promptly taken appropriate actions to recover the
outstanding principal amounts and interests, which include
but is not limited to:

(

) negotiating repayment terms and methods with the
borrowers;

(i) issuing payment reminders,;

(i) issuing demand letters from the Group’s legal advisers
from time to time; and

(iv) commencing legal proceedings.
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Loan Impairments

As at 30 June 2024, the Group recorded reversal of
impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$0.2 million (2023:
impairment loss of approximately HK$8.7 million) and
impairment losses allowances of approximately HK$229.1
million (2023: approximately HK$229.5 million), which
represented approximately 156% (2023: approximately 142%)
of the loans receivable and 100% (2023: approximately 99%)
of the gross loan and interest receivables. Such impairment
loss and impairment losses allowances were based on the
valuation reports issued by the 1st ECL Valuer and the 2nd
ECL Valuer and the works performed by the Group as set out
herein. As concluded by the 1st ECL Valuer in their valuation
report, the rate of ECL of the Group’s loan and interest
receivables as at 30 June 2024 ranged to 100% (2023: 93% to
100%) depending on the nature, probability of default and
loss given default of the loans receivable.

Liquor and wine business

The revenue for the year ended 30 June 2024 of the liquor
and wine business was approximately HK$2.2 million (2023:
approximately HK$0.1 million) and a segment gain of
approximately HK$1.2 million was recorded for the year
ended 30 June 2024 (2023: segment loss of approximately
HK$0.6 million). The Group had continually source the
customers to sell the inventories during the year.

BEXRRE
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Investments in Listed Securities

Listed Securities

For the year ended 30 June 2024, the Group managed a
portfolio of listed securities. Details of the listed securities
investments are as below:

Significant listed securities investments as at

30 June 2024

Name of listed securities

LHEFER

CLP Holdings Limited
RERRERAR

Shenzhen International
Holdings Limited

RYERERER AT

Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited

BERHREEMERAR

Shenzhen Expressway
Corporation Limited

FIERAKER
BB BRDA
Techtronic Industries
Company Limited
AREXERAR
Tencent Holdings Limited
ERERERAR

China Construction Bank
Corporation

PEERRTRNERAF

China Mobile Limited
FEBHERAF

Stock Brief description of
code the business

B
18

162

388

548

669

700

939

941

B

Generation and supply of electricity
EERMES N

Toll roads and general-environmental
protection business; and logistics
business

WERERRRRES  URDTE

%

Principally engaged in the business of
provision of operates the only Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong

FERELETAR-NRERSM

Construction, operation, management,
investment of toll highways and
environmental protection
in China

REKEAR RIRREBOES
BEERRR?

Power equipment business
ERREEH

VAS; online advertising;
FinTech and business services
BERE: fRES  SRBER
ERY

Provision of banking and
related financial services
RERTRIEBSBRY

Provision of telecommunications and
information related services
REEARESIEERY

EhRSFRE
tHES

ZREmT :
EHRE

RZE-MEXA=1H
As at 30 June 2024

e
S

HE_ZT _NMFEFNA=ZTHILEFE  &A&%
BERIImESFEAEe - FHLMELFEE

R-B-MNEANA=+HZEKRLEM

Approximately
percentage

Market
value

Investment
cost

Number of  Proportion of
shares held share held

s i
gk BB 5l RERE
HK$'000
THER

[}
HK$'000
FAL

218,000 0.009% 17,023 13,75
648,000 0.027% 5,020 4,037
88,000 0.007% 30,386 22,018
640,000 0.086% 5,037 4,659
10,000 0.001% 927 892
4,800 0.000% 1,653 1,788
3,000,000 0.001% 16,946 17,310
330,000 0.002% 16,898 25410

ZECUFFER o BEFEFEEERAT

to total

assets value
of the Group

hAEE
BEARE

BAEI

(Note b)
(F#7Eb)

2.74%

0.81%

4.39%

0.93%

0.18%

0.36%

3.45%

5.07%
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Stock Brief description of

code

g
LHESER jis

Name of listed securities

AIA Group Limited 1299

shares held

i
gk

the business

B

Writing of life insurance business,
providing life insurance, accident and

R-ZE-MmEXA=1H
As at 30 June 2024

Number of  Proportion of

share held

i

BB Al

Investment
cost

RERE
HK$'000
TR

Market
value

T
HK$'000
THL

Approximately
percentage
to total
assets value
of the Group
EAER
BE4E
BAED

health insurance and savings plans 32,000 0.000% 2517 1,69 0.34%
RARBERERRA ERSRER REAS  BIR

BERBNESE
USPACE Technology 1725 Electronics manufacturing services

Group Limited business and aerospace business 10,850,000 2.779% 56,529 11,320 2.26%
NEMAR R ERERAR BTHERBERRMAES
BOC Hong Kong 2388 Provision of banking and related
(Holdings) Limited financial services 950,000 0.009% 25,291 22,847 4.56%

REEE(BR)ERAR REFTREESBRE
Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 2800 Funds management 238,000 0.003% 4,859 4313 0.86%
REES HeER
Meituan 3690 Food delivery, in-store, hotel & travel

and new initiatives 5,480 0.000% 782 609 0.12%
E3E] %%?I\T‘é%ﬂ@l% < JBE RIREA R

MEH
JD.com, Inc. 9618 Providing products and services to

consumers, third-party merchants,

suppliers and other business partner 6,500 0.000% 1,334 671 0.13%
RREERNERAA MEEE  F-HER - HEAR

HEB A ERHREER RS

185,202 131,326

Notes: M&E -

(a) The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with referencetothe (@) REB DL IS ZB MBI LA ARERK
monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the HE-T-_NFA=+THIEANZRDET
month ended 30 June 2024 of the issuers publicly available on the AREHSEARKTESE -
website of the Stock Exchange.

(b) The Group has the buy and hold strategies and diversify investment (b)) ~ ANEBERBME ARFERE - W HBHIRERT

in different industries in the listed securities investments.

R{TEMN ETEREE -
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Significant gains/(losses) for the yearended 30 EBZ_—_Z_NE&EAA=1HILFEZ
June 2024 BEAWE(BE)

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BZE-_E-NEAA=THLEE

Unrealised
Stock Realised gains/ Dividend
Name of listed securities code losses (losses) received
i47) =} 3] RER
IHRHER K55 BR W&/ (B8R EHRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET THEL
CLP Holdings Limited FEERARAR 2 - 480 673
Shenzhen International Holdings RYIE R B R A A
Limited 152 - (434) 258
Hong Kong Exchanges and BARGREBHERAT
Clearing Limited 388 - (3,960) 737
Shenzhen Expressway Corporation  FIIE R A EB K G
Limited BRAF 548 - 384 386
Techtronic Industries Company BIRBEER LA
Limited 669 - 41 19
Tencent Holdings Limited BARZERARAR 700 - 196 16
China Construction Bank Corporation Bl RITRMDER DA 939 - 2,100 1,261
China Mobile Limited FEBEARAR 941 - 4,274 1,588
AIA Group Limited RIHRBIZERER DA 1299 - (835) 51
USPACE Technology Group Limited MBI AR EBER AT 1725 (1,176) (42,191) -
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited ~ F iR & (25%) AR 2 A 2388 - 94 1,360
Tracker Fund of Hong Kong REES 2800 - (269) 166
Meituan xHE 3690 - (61) -
JD.com, Inc. RREEROARAR 9618 - (190) 19
(1,176) (40,371) 6,534
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PROSPECTS

The global economic outlook faces the inflationary pressures
and geopolitical uncertainty. The Group will continue to
monitor the global economic, financial environment and their
impact on our business, and prudently interpret and respond
to the market. In view of the continuing depreciation of the
exchange rate of Japanese Yen, it will attract more tourists
travelling to Japan.

In the meanwhile, the Group will grasp investment
opportunities to diversify the Group’s business and, at the
same time, strive to control the costs to maintain stable
return to the shareholders of the Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
GEARING

As at 30 June 2024, the Group has in aggregate approximately
HK$116.4 million (2023: approximately HK$124.3 million) in
deposits in a financial institution, pledged bank balances, and
bank balances and cash. The net current assets value was
approximately HK$226.6 million (2023: approximately
HK$275.7 million).

The Group’'s gearing ratio as at 30 June 2024 was
approximately 0.06 (2023: approximately 0.09), being a ratio
of total interest bearing debts, including borrowings of
approximately HK$24.3 million (2023: approximately HK$46.2
million) to the total equity of approximately HK$434.0 million
(2023: approximately HK$526.1 million).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE
The Company completed a rights issue on 13 June 2018,
pursuant to which the Company issued 10,463,687,800
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each as rights
shares at HK$0.052 per rights share on the basis of two rights
shares for every one existing share held on 18 May 2018. The
net proceeds from the rights issue (after deducting the
expenses) were approximately HK$523.6 million of which an
aggregate of HK$479 million has been utilised since the
completion of the rights issue up to the financial year ended
30 June 2024. The net subscription price per rights share after
deducting the related expenses of the rights issue was
approximately HK$0.050.

2 =
B 5
2IEER S EBRBARE N R &EBURT
BEMH ANEBREEERRIRKKEE &
BMRERAEBRMEBOTZE  WHEER
BLREEmS &N HEEXRFERE -
RS EZREREHAA

R AEBEMICERERSE ST
RASEEXRR REBIESKE BE
RABREFIZEL R

E3]
EERHARTRARBE_S-_MF <A
=S+AEFERNEFRE (ZT =4
) o

MEBERE RDREEEREEAR
=

R-ZE-_NENA=1+H XEERSH
BEZEFER BEFBITESARLIBITE
# M IR & A H#45116,400,00058 7T (— =
T =4 : £9124,300,000/87T) © mENEEF
B #) /226,600,000 T (ZE = =F 1 4
275,700,000/ 7T) ©

RZTEZ_WMENA=1+H KREBZEE
BELERHA00(ZE-=4 : £0.09) -
BNt BE B R (BIE{EE) 424,300,000
BIL(ZEZ=F : 446,200,000/ 70) F8¥F
1EREZR A9 434,000,000 8T (ZEZ=4F : &
526,100,000/ 70) Z th & o

H Bz PR 15 R IR A&
RRBRZZE-NFRA+T=A TR -
BUARAEERR - N\FRATNR
BRA — IR A B EE WA D
HEAE . UEBRHEBK{D0.052/%8 T #1717
10,463,687,800 A & fx E18.0.0578 7T Z N A
A BERERMERRD - HRMSHRIER
72 (A& HIBR A 3218 ) 49 7%523,600,00078 7T -
H b & #£479,000,0007% 7T B IR e 12 &
EHE_T_MFRA=THILVBFE
ERESHMA - LR ABEBFA L
B R R 1 SR BB (B F RB 40 /3 0.05078 7T °
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As set out in the announcements of the Company dated 10
August 2018 and 17 January 2019, the Board resolved to
change its use of the net proceeds from the rights issue. The
proposed allocation of the net proceeds as stated in the
prospectus of the Company dated 21 May 2018 (the “Planned
Use of Net Proceeds”), the revised allocation of the net
proceeds (the “Revised Use of Net Proceeds”), the utilisation
of net proceeds as at 30 June 2024 (the “Utilisation of Net
Proceeds”) and the remaining balance of the net proceeds
are set out below:

e
S

BOARRAPR-_ZE-N\FN\ATHEK
“E-NF-ATERZAEME CEF
CRAENEERABREFRAAE -
ARBERR-_ZT-NAFAA-+—HH
B ERZ AR TS IR F M DA (A7
SRBFEERE]) - EREFEN
R (TAERIBFRKERTRE]D
RIZBE_MNERA=THABFRIBEFEDN
BRABER(FMERBEFESRBER]) KA
BRIBFRNBREHTIMNT ¢

Revised planned Remaining
Planned Use of Use of Balance of the balance of the
Net Proceeds  NetProceeds  Utilisation of NetProceeds Utilisation of Net Proceeds
disclosed disclosed  NetProceeds  unutilised NetProceeds  unutilised
in the in the up to asat  during the asat
Intended use Announcements Announcements 30 June 2023 30 June 2023 Year 30 June 2024
ZEDE BZ R-B-=f RZB-ME
FELE ik Bz ARB=tHY AR=THM
Fif®E  FEXERE  AAZTHEM R E HEE R E
FesERa fgT RERERE FMERETE FEREFE HMENERE
Hig Ll iTERE BRAEN & BRAEN BE
HKS million HKS million HSmilon — HKSmilion — HKSmillion — HKS millon
BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT BEBT BEBT
Repayment of outstanding borrowings ~ EEHABEEE w2)
1939 1939 149.3 4b 86 36,0 Moo
Contribution to the faciity tobe made ~ AEPHEEER
available to ajointventure company  ERAERLZ
formed with Zhongke International SERARTES
Capital Limited LRETE 19% - - - - -
Expansion of the Group's mongy BRASEZRERH
lending business 100 1113 1113 - - -
Future potential investments andior R KEERER/3
general working capital —keEES B7 2184 2184 - - -
Total @it 5236 5236 4790 46 86 360
Note: 5L

It is expected that the remaining balance would be utilised on or before 30
December 2024. The remaining balance of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$36 million allocated for repayment of outstanding borrowings would be
utilised for repayment of the remaining instalments of the outstanding bank
loan with the last instalment of the outstanding bank loan to be repaid in
December 2024.

ZECUFFER o BEFEFEEERAT

BEHHRERN T _ME+_A=tHRZMBA -
TEEBENAREBEERENMSRNEAFEBRED
36,000,000 78 7T #5 F3 78 22 i) R (B 38 SR 17 &5/ g 0 19
M HREERTERNKE -HONRIR TN
F+-AER-
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The amount was equivalent to JPY0.5 billion with reference to
an exchange rate of JPY: HK$0.072 being the exchange rate
used in the prospectus of the Company in relation to the
rights issue.

The unutilised net proceeds have been placed as the interest
bearing deposits with licensed banks and a financial
institution in Hong Kong.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2024, the Group pledged hotel land and building
in Japan with an aggregated carrying value of approximately
HK$237.8 million (2023: approximately HK$269.2 million),
investment property in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$nil million (2023: approximately
HK$15.9 million), bank deposits of approximately HK$0.6
million (2023: approximately HK$0.7 million) and the entire
equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Company to
secure borrowing facilities of the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Company had no changes in capital structure during the

year ended 30 June 2024.

INVESTMENT POSITION AND PLANNING
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

As at 30 June 2024, the Group managed a portfolio of listed
securities with fair value of approximately HK$131.3 million.
The global equity market is unstable throughout the year.
Accordingly, the trading securities recorded a trading and
revaluation loss of approximately HK$41.5 million in current
year.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
There was no significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

LeEARARARKR ERMAERTH
BHo0.0728 T HEASBEMRER
500,000,000 H [H

ABRASERBFERCIE/TEFREFMN
REBFERITRE - RS BERE

BEEMN

R-ZZT-_MESNA=1+H KEFKME
[ 84 £ #9237,800,0008 T (ZE =4 :
#9269,200,000% 7T) 2 B A [ 1+ i R 18
F OEREEAEANTBT(ZTE_=ZF : 4
15,900,000 70) BB REWME - BEY
600,000 7T (= Z = =4F : #7700,0003% 7T)
ZIRITERRARBE THEARZZEE
i UALTEBEEERERMER-

BXES
AARRNEBEE-_Z-_MENA=1THIE
Bl EEREHE -

RE KR Bt
BAFEGARS 2 SMEE

R-BE-NENA=1TH AEEEED
EESHEES A FEL A 131,300,000 T ©
REEFE  2ERFESFMISTEE - Bt
BHEERAFEHESEBENEHEBIBY
41,500,000 3 7T °

WERMEER
REPEBEEEEREE -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2023: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 30 June 2024, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (2023: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Japanese Yen which are the
functional currencies of respective group companies. The
Group has not entered into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange
rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce
the exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had approximately 37 (2023:
28) employees in Hong Kong, the PRC and Japan. The Group’s
remuneration policy is reviewed periodically and determined
by reference to market terms, company performance, and
individual qualifications and performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical
schemes.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, the Company did not have any other
connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the
year ended 30 June 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the
date of this report.

HARAR
RNR-ZE-_NENA=1+H N"EFES
AHARBBE(ZE_=ZF &) -

BEKIE
RZZE-_NEANA=1TH KEELES
REREE(ZE_ZF  8) -

o 5 B B
AEBEAHDEERABUEELAEE
ZHREEREL  ARKRAEFIME- &
S5 8] 30 42 A 516 LB BT S {E 4] T AL - AN SR
EREIRERES  WIRBEETE
BAIBUE B 5 R -

& =5 5 %7 BA i 3%

RZZE-NFRA=+H AEEESES
FEEBEALBENITA(ZE-=F:28
Z)RE - AEBZHFMBERIEHHRF R
2EMBHFMNKFE - RAREEREREBET
CERMKRBET HMEITRABER
TEHER 2 TEAL R R &l -

WEXH

BEIREEIN BE_E_WMFENA=T
BILFE  ARQaWEETTMAEMELR
FTEMBRAUNBEUAZBE TEHFR T ZHE

REMNLORSRE
ERARARFMGER RBEEHRA -
BEAREEH ARACEBRIND

RIS -
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2024 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 3
December 2024, at 9:30 a.m. For determining the entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28 November
2024 to Tuesday, 3 December 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order for a shareholder of the Company
to be eligible to attend and vote at 2024 AGM, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 November 2024.

EFENERMBREREFE
AAREERRERAFAS((ZE-NFR
RBFAS)EIR -_TE_ME+_-_A=
HEHZD) EFTNE=+o8T-BEXT
ﬁﬁ:%:mi%%ﬁiﬁ@ﬁ%@i&
EREHN ARFEBR T -_MFE+— A
—+tN\BHEFME-_TE_NWF+=-_A=

BEH D) (BREEMX) GEREBP
BRLTE BABTEREARARNHE

%3@ PiIN/N Tkﬁw&ﬁéﬁﬂﬁf:

“NEREAEFRETRE FIRE P
ﬁﬂﬁ%*@ﬂm%hmbﬁ%_z_m
F+—A-++tR((EHD) TFOUBE=1
DEIRERNRRNEBEROBEELYE
BEEZREBER AR mm%%%gﬁﬁ
165 B RE RPN 1748 UETER
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Biographical information of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report
is set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe

Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe (“Mr. Wong"), aged 59, has been
appointed as an executive Director since March 2022. Mr.
wong has been appointed as the company secretary, the
authorised representative and the chief financial officer of the
Company on 10 January 2022. He is also a member of the
investment committee. Mr. Wong holds a Degree of Master
of Arts in International Accounting from City University of
Hong Kong and a Master’'s Degree of Corporate Governance
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wong has extensive
experience in taxation, accounting, financing, audit field and
public listed companies for many years. Mr. Wong is currently
an independent non-executive director (the “INED") of China
Water Industry Group Limited (stock code: 1129) and Affluent
Partners Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), both companies
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong is also an INED of Hang Tai Yue Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8081) and an INED of Worldgate
Global Logistics Ltd (stock code: 8292) from June 2016 to June
2023, both companies are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana

Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana (“Ms. Chu”), aged 54, has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since March 2024. Ms.
Chu, is also the member of the investment committee. She is
an executive Director, Company Secretary and Financial
Controller as well as a member of Investment Committee of
the China Water Industry Group Limited (stock code: 1129)
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Ms. Chu holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Accounting and a
Master's Degree of Corporate Governance. She is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of the Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Ms. Chu is a fellow member of both of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Chu has over 20 years’
extensive experience by working in an international audit firm
and other listed companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Mr. Chiu Wai On (“Mr. Chiu"), aged 54, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since June 2009. Mr.
Chiu is also the chairman of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chiu
possesses over 10 years of professional experience in
accounting and auditing services. Mr. Chiu is also an
independent non-executive director of New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (“Mr. Man"), aged 77, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since
May 2009. Mr. Man is also a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. He is a solicitor of the High Court
of Hong Kong and a civil celebrant of marriages. Mr. Man has
extensive experience in the legal practice. He had been
appointed by Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor from
1995 to 1997. He is currently appointed as a director of
Apleichau Kai Fong Primary School, a committee member of
Apleichau Kai Fong Welfare Association, the secretary of
Apleichau Promotion of Tourism Association and the
honorary legal advisor of Junior Police Officers’ Association.
Mr. Man is an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong ChaoShang Group Limited (stock code: 2322) from April
2011 to November 2023, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. To Chun Wai

Mr. To Chun Wai (“Mr. To"), aged 69, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
April 2023. Mr. To is also a member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He is currently the chairman and
chief executive officer of Gungho Consultancy Company
Limited. Mr. To is an independent non-executive director of
each of Auto ltalia Holdings Limited (stock code: 720),
Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 94), ISP Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2340) and NOVA Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1360), all being listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange. He formerly served as an executive director and a
non-executive director of Integrated Waste Solutions Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 923), a company listed in the
Main Board of Stock Exchange. Mr. To spent most of his
career, beginning in 1974, with the Hong Kong Police, rising
up the ranks to Assistant Commissioner of Police (Crime)
overseeing crime operations and policies of the Hong Kong
Police, until his retirement in 2011. He was awarded the
Police Meritorious Service Medal in recognition of his long
years of service and contribution to the Hong Kong society.
Mr. To has wide administrative and management experience
He holds a master degree of public administration from The
University of Hong Kong and also tutored public
administration on a part-time basis from 2011 to 2012 at The
University of Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Board believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to enhance
the shareholders’ value and safeguard the interests of the
shareholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasize an effective
internal control and accountability to all shareholders.

During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules except for the following deviations:

Code provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. Since the
resignation of Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth in March 2020, the
Company does not have any officer with the title of Chief
Executive Officer. The overall responsibility of supervising and
ensuring that the Group’s business in line with the order of
the Board in terms of day-to-day operations and execution is
vested in the Board itself. In view of the above, the Company
has failed to comply with Code provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code. The Company has made endeavors however more
time is required to identify suitable candidate to be the CEO
in order to comply with the Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the full set of Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as
the code of the conduct for securities transactions by
directors. The prohibitions on securities dealing and
disclosure requirements in the Model Code apply to specified
individuals including the Group’s senior management and
also persons who are privy to price sensitive information of
the Group. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors and
senior management, the Board confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year and up to the date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
Directors, with one executive Director, Mr. Wong Siu Keung
Joe (Chairman); one non-executive Director, Ms. Chu Yin Yin
Georgiana; and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Chiu Wai On, Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Mr. To Chun Wai.
Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual
report.

During the year ended 30 June 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the changes to the composition of the Board
were as follows:

—  Mr. Cheng Chi Kin resigned as an executive Director and
a member of the investment committee, with effect
from 1 March 2024;

— Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana was appointed as an non-
executive director and a member of the investment
committee, with effect from 1 March 2024.
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An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and
functions is maintained on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

To the best of the knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship between Board members.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for
assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers them to be independent.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. Directors take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. Some functions
including, inter alia, monitor and approval of material
transactions, matters involving conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or Director, the approval of the
interim and annual results, other disclosures to the public or
regulators and the internal control system are reserved by
the Board and the decisions relating to such matters shall be
subject to the decision of the Board. Matters not specifically
reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily operations
of the Company are delegated to the management under the
supervision of the respective Directors.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times throughout
the financial year. All Directors are given the opportunity to
put items on the agenda for regular Board meetings. All
Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure
that all Board procedures, rules and regulations are followed.
Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available for inspection on reasonable
notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take
independent professional advice where necessary at the
expense of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with bye-law 86 of the Bye-laws, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and any director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

According to bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws and the CG Code, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years, and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Any further re-appointment of an independent non-
executive director, who has served the Board for more than
nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders.

In accordance with bye-law 86 of the Bye-laws, the
shareholders of the Company may by an ordinary resolution
remove any Director (but without prejudice to any claim for
damages under any contract) before the expiration of his
period of office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint
another person in his stead.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman is Mr.
Wwong Siu Keung Joe. The Chairman is responsible for the
leadership of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all
aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking into
account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion
in the agenda.

The Chief Executive Officer was responsible for supervising
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. Since
the resignation of Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth in March 2020,
the Company does not have any officer with the title of Chief
Executive Officer. The overall responsibility of supervising and
ensuring that the Group’s business in line with the order of
the Board in terms of day-to-day operations and execution is
vested in the Board itself. The Board considered that this has
the advantages of allowing contributions from all executive
Directors with different expertise and the Company will
review the current situation from time to time and shall make
necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the
investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group's affairs. Details of
which are set out below. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Mr. To Chun
Wai.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review
the Group’s financial reporting system, the nature and scope
of audit review; (i) review the effectiveness of the system of
internal control procedures and risk management and the
Company’s internal audit function; and (iii) review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity.
In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by
the external auditor and regulatory bodies to ensure that
appropriate recommendations are implemented. The Audit
Committee meets as and when required to perform its
responsibilities and at least twice a year.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
and annual results with the external auditor and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems and the effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Company in accordance with the Audit
Committee’s written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee also reviewed and approved the risk assessment
in relation to the hotel business in Japan.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2024. The attendance record of each member
of the Audit Committee is set out in the sub-section
“Attendance Record of Directors and Committee Members”
below.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Man Kwok
Leung and Mr. To Chun Wai.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i)
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for remuneration policy; (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package
of individual executive Directors, hon-executive Directors and
senior management; and (iii) review and approve
compensation payable to executive Directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
once a year.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors and senior
management and made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and packages of the Directors and
senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference. The Remuneration
Committee also approved and recommended to the Board
the terms of letters of appointment and the Directors’ fee
payable to one newly appointed Director.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 30 June 2024. The attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the
sub-section “Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” below.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Man Kwok
Leung and Mr. To Chun Wali.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (iii) to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors. The Nomination Committee meets at least once a
year.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach by the Company to
achieve diversity on the Board. According to the Diversity
Policy, selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience and length of service.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”). A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

1. Criteria
The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
consider the following criteria in evaluating and
selecting candidates for directorships:

40

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy.

Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Such other perspectives appropriate to the
company'’s business.
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2. Nomination Process

2.1 Appointment of New Director
2.1.1 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board

shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details)
of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out in section 1
to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

2.1.2 If the process yields one or more desirable

candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

2.1.3The Nomination Committee shall make

recommendation to the Board in respect of
the appointment of appropriate candidate
for directorship.

2.1.4 For any person that is nominated by a

shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out in section 1 to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall make recommendation to shareholders
in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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2.2 Re-election of Director at General Meeting
2.2.1 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring
director including his/her attendance of
Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

2.2.2 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall also review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out in section 1.

2.2.3 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed,
considered and approved the structure, size and diversity of
the Board and the Diversity Policy, the Nomination Policy, the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of
the Directors in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee also
approved and recommended to the Board the appointment
of two newly appointed Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 30 June 2024. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the sub-
section “Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” below.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee has been established by the
Board on 2 August 2021. The members of the Investment
Committee shall consist of not less than two members out of
the Directors and senior management of the Company of
which at least one shall be Director. The Investment
Committee currently comprises an executive Director, Mr.
Wong Siu Keung Joe (the chairman of the Investment
Committee) and the non-executive Director, Ms. Chu Yin Yin
Georgiana.

The Investment Committee is responsible for, among others,
to exercise delegated authority from the Board, to handle any
issues or affairs related to the investment aspects of the
Ccompany, to review the investment performance from time
to time and advise the Board on how the Company’s funds
are to be used to enhance the Group’s investment returns, to
consider, approve and/or recommend the Board taking any
steps appropriate and necessary in relation to the investment
activities of the Company and preserve the value of the
Company'’s funds and/or achieving capital appreciation.

The Investment Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 30 June 2024. The Investment Committee considered,
approved and recommended to the Board, among others the
terms of reference of the Investment Committee and several
listed securities listed on the Stock Exchange for acquisitions
which the Investment Committee members considered
worthwhile for the Company to generate returns in fulfilling
its investment objective.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS EERZRAERRACHFERLSE
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Board held 7 Board HZE T -_WME A=+t HILFE EBF
eSS BURTTREFRRH -

The attendance record of each Director at the Board JEERAFANRITzEETETEH T8
meetings, the committees’ meetings and the annual general &&= M AR FIRRAE XS 2 HFE L8k
meeting of the Company held during the year is set out &4 T :

below:

No. of meetings attended/held
BHE/ETeENY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General

Directors Meeting  Meeting Meeting  Meeting  Meeting  Meeting
ENZEE §MZEE R¥ZEE REZEE
Ex Ezged L E ] |
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr.Cheng Chikin (‘Mr.Cheng')  BIFBEA([B%E])
(Note 1) (FzE1) 17 - - - 111 111
Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe BEXREE 17 - - - 171 171
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana FERLL(FrL))
("Ms. Chu") (Note 2) (BzF2) NATER - - - NATER NATER
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chiu Wai On REZEE 717 22 22 22 - 1N
Mr. Man Kwok Leung EERLE 17 22 22 22 - 171
Mr. To Chun Wai HiRELE 17 22 22 22 - 111
Notes: MIEE -
1. Mr. Cheng was resigned on 1 March 2024. 1. BEAER T ZNFE=A—BEHIT-
2. Ms. Chu was appointed on 1 March 2024. 2. KEZLTR-ZTE-_MFE=F—RAEZE-
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTOR

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with
comprehensive induction training to ensure that they have a
thorough understanding of the Group’s operations, applicable
laws and rules as well as their role and responsibilities. Every
new Director also receives a Director’'s handbook which
contains guide on Directors’ duties and continuing
obligations, applicable Laws, Regulations and Governing
documents and information on other key governance
matters.

The Group continuously updates Directors on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of
the Company where necessary.

The Directors, participated in continuous professional

development during the year or their respective tenure of
office as follows:

Directors

E=x

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheng Chi Kin BTG

Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe HmIKREE
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana REEFL T
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITES
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZRE

Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE

Mr. To Chun Wai MIRE ST E
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board has the following responsibilities:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations from time to time,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Directors and the employees of the Group; and

(e) toreview the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2024, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Company is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
covering the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of
the corporate activities, which has been complied with the
CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring the Board is fully appraised of
the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
induction and professional development of directors.

During the year under review, Mr. Wong has attended
relevant professional seminars to update his skills and
knowledge. He met the training requirement set out in Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
for the year ended 30 June 2024 provided by the Company'’s
auditor, BDO Limited, are as follows:

HK$'000
TAET
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Audit services FEIZRTE 1,600
Non-audit services IEFAZARTS 100
Total ARt 1,700
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). A summary of the Dividend Policy is disclosed as
below.

B BB R
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1.  The Company may declare and pay dividends to the 1.
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shareholders of the Company by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. It is
the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth. The
Company'’s decision to declare or to pay any dividends
in the future, and the amount of such dividends will
depend upon, among other things, the current and
future operations, financial condition, liquidity position
and capital requirements of the Group, as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability
of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders. The
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of
Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s bye-
laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current
views on the financial and cash-flow position of the
Group, the Board will continue to review the Dividend
Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit
and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends
will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any
given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that any dividend will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

m

(I

(1)

Convene a Special General Meeting
Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at the
general meetings of the Company can at all times
submit a signed written requisition, specifying the
purpose, to the Board or the Company Secretary to
require the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM"). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, themselves may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from 21 days
of the deposit.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company
either by email at info.dt@detai-group.com or by post to
the Company’s Hong Kong head office at Room 905,
9/F., Wings Building, 110-116 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquires with
the Board directly at the general meetings.

Make Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting or who are no less than 100 shareholders can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary to propose a resolution at a general
meeting. The written requisition must state the
resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at the general meeting and contain the signatures
of all the requisitionists (which may be contained in one
document or in several documents in like form). Such
requisition must be deposited to the Company’s
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda not less than 6 weeks before
the general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week before
the general meeting in the case of any other requisition
and be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements
under the applicable laws and rules.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business. The
Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meeting and other general meetings. The website of the
Company at www.detai-group.com has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year ended 30 June 2024, there has not been any
change in the Company’s constitutional documents. A
consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board ensures the maintenance of sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment
and the assets of the Group. It has been an important duty of
the Directors to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and risk management of the Group
on an on-going basis. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions. The systems of risk
management and internal control are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant
authorities) of risk management and internal control to the
Audit Committee and the management would assist the Audit
Committee to carry out the risk management procedures.
The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 30 June 2024.

A Risk Management Policy has been established for
formalizing the risk management system of the Group, so as
to ensure the Group is operating in a safety and steady
environment and the Group's operational strategy and target
could be achieved. The current practices will be reviewed
and updated regularly to follow the latest practices in
corporate governance.
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The risk management process of the Group will involve,
among others, (i) a periodical risk identification and analysis
exercise which involves assessment of the consequence and
likelihood of identified risk and the development of risk
management plans for mitigating such risks; and (i) an annual
risk management meeting for the review of the identified
risks, the implementation of the risk management plans and
enhancing the implementation plan when necessary.

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management and
internal control systems, Executive Directors and the senior
management would meet regularly to review the financial
and operating performance of each segment. The operational
management of the key operating subsidiaries is also
required to keep senior management and Executive Directors
informed of material developments of the department’s
business and implementation of the strategies and policies
set by the Board on a regular basis. The processes used to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks by the Group
are summarized as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group'’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood
of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk
and ensures that appropriate internal control processes
are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

AEBNEREERREFE2IE(EFRE8E) )
TFHETRRERNRETSIT  ERFR
A E R R A 18 BB X AT RE 1 DA K il
[B & 5T 8 UK R B : R ()& F 2817

EREESHEABNEMERTER &
B BT BELHTHE (A
%gw

ﬁ&%ﬂ~ﬂﬁ&%ﬁ§k@@mﬁ

EAERERFMRAKREE RANPEEHE
m—%'ﬂﬁ§$&mﬂaﬁﬁhmﬁﬁ
TE8% IR S2BENIEREERHS -
TEZBRBRARMNEESE I ARIP
XN ERBREES S EHHEMNRE
MBROEHRNCSESREEEMNITES -
AEBEARER  FHAMERENRRS
//HJ%_:E*EE QDT

22, B 5k
o HBFREEBEEFEAKRBRBELEE
E@E\l’gﬁ/\

ﬂl‘ﬁ-ﬂﬁ
FABEEM LT EERNFGHE
HARR R

o EEBEBMFENRHEBLEMAEMLE -

E%THF‘%
R R R AR KRR
54

o HETERAREMEREKAEEIERFF A
JEPT  ERORE R R

B B S e R

o  HER Lfﬂii‘“’&iﬁﬁﬁ*% - W HER

RELSHEENNILEILRAZ

o HEBRBELEBRELMBRT EF]
o\ B T TR B S M BRERAE AR 0

s TEHREEENERE
BR -

= | B2 R

ZECUFFER o BEFEFEEERAT 51




\

Corporate Governance Report
EREGEE

During the financial year ended 30 June 2024, the Group
engaged a professional advisory firm as internal control
reviewer (the “Internal Control Reviewer”) and to report
directly to the Audit Committee to conduct the annual review
for effectiveness the risk management and internal control
systems of the selected subsidiaries. The Internal Control
Reviewer adopted a risk-based approach and independently
reviewed and tested the controls. The scope of review
included fixed assets management process, borrowing
process, handling and dissemination of inside information
process and investment management process for the
headquarter and hotel hospitality business segments.
Findings and recommendations are reported to the Audit
Committee. In addition, progress on audit recommendations
implementation will be followed up on a regular basis and
discussed with the Audit Committee.

During annual review, the Audit Committee also considers
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group, accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programs and budgets. Based on the
results of evaluations, the Audit Committee was satisfied that
there was an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group that would
threaten the achievement of its business objectives; and an
appropriate, effective and adequate system of internal
control and risk management had been in place during the
financial year ended 30 June 2024.

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of
inside information and for compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations, the Group has in place, as an internal
control element, a series of disclosure procedures of price
sensitive information on reporting and dissemination of inside
information and preservation of confidentiality. Under the
current practice, the directors aware any potential/suspected
inside information event as soon as practicable when it
materializes for determining the nature of developments, and
if required, making disclosure. All staff are also required to
observe the code of ethical standards to keep non-public
information confidential.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Room 905, 9/F., Wings Building, 110-116 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 117 and 118.

The Board resolved not to pay any final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2024 is set out in the “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT" and
"MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 4 to 5
and pages 6 to 30 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 June 2024, the five largest customers
of the Group together accounted for approximately 42%
(2023: approximately 40%), with the largest customer
accounted for approximately 18% (2023: approximately 9%)
of the Group's total turnover. The five largest suppliers of the
Group together accounted for approximately 44% (2023:
approximately 51%), with the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 10% (2023: approximately 13%) of the Group’s
total purchases during the year.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, at no time during the
year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company is set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30 June 2024, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (2023: Nil).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group had not made charitable or other donation during
the year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years are set out on
pages 211 and 212.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
There was no significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

YE - BB

AEEYME BERZEREAFAZE
FIBEENERE P MRS -

B &

RARBRAREAERN B EFBEEHNGEE
B ISR MI5E 28 o

=4
RATRRERAFERNZEESFBEHNEE
B RMIEE30 o

2 F) ] 53 i 6 s
RZZE-WFENA=+H KQAFWEA

HoRFER(ZT-_=F 8) -

BER%
BE_Z-_MFA=THLFE *&
BN EEREREMBR (T =F &) -

REBE
AEEBREREAVRFEFEZEEREESR
BEMEBEHNE211 R2128 °

BEPRFER
BEH R EEES KRR -

54 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Directors’ Report
EHEEHRE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Director:
Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe

Non-executive Director:
CHU Yin Yin Georgiana

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chiu Wai On

Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. To Chun Wai

According to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

According to bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Chu Yin Yin
Georgiana, who has been appointed with effect from 1 March
2024, shall hold office until the 2024 AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the Bye-
laws, Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe and Mr. Chiu Wai On will retire
from office as Directors at the 2024 AGM and all retiring
Directors are eligible and will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2024 AGM.
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Pursuant to the code provision set out in paragraph A.4.3 of
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, any further appointment of
independent non-executive director serving more than nine
years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. The Nomination Committee
considered the independence of each of the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Chiu has served the Company
as an independent non-executive Director for more than nine
years during which period of Mr. Chiu has provided
professional advice and insight to the Board with his
respective extensive experience and knowledge in the
accounting and legal aspects. Mr. Chiu has in-depth
understanding of the Group’s business and operation and
have also demonstrated strong independence by providing
comments at Board and Board committee meetings during
his tenure of office. In addition, none of Mr. Chiu has any
financial or family relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company, which could give rise to a
conflict of interests situation or otherwise affect his exercise
of independent judgement. In view of the aforesaid factors,
the Nomination Committee considered that long service of
Mr. Chiu would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment and was satisfied that Mr. Chiu has the required
integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role of an
independent non-executive Director. The Nomination
Committee affirmed each of the independent non-executive
Directors remain independent and is of the view that the
Retiring Directors will continue to contribute to the Board
with their respective perspectives, skills and experience. In
view of the aforesaid factors and the experience and
knowledge of the relevant individuals in the business sectors
in which the Group operates.
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The independent non-executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2024, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
would be required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
would be taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing
Rules.

BYBTESUEREEEHERT
HEZR IR AR AR R Sm (B AR AT -

BMERNEERRBFAGERETLE
EEARAIEAMBRABTERNEER N
BECEERERIN IAER—FAKLE
ZRIEEH

ESRTTHRBENRAELFEFLZ
o

RZZ_WFARA=1TH EBFREAQA
TETHRABBRER AR R S H A a5
ZE(ERREFLRE G ((FH AR
GBI )) EXVER) Z EATAL D - AHEE AR 1D 3k
ERET  HATAREEZLHEERD
EXVEET7 RFE8 D BRME AN TE LR
Pz EmsoR R (BRERERZ MREERD
BRGSO EESARIERA 2 s SR R)
RRBBIRIER 77 N G R 5 56 352 1R AL 8%
RETMZzERIORE KRB EHRAY
B LMBETABERETERRD 2RE
STRN(MREST A 2 MEAMEARA M
B Pz s SRR -

SEoMESE « BEFEREERERAT 57




/ Directors’ Report

EFEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2024, so far as was known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company based on the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and were
directly or indirectly interest in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote on
all circumstances at general meeting of any other members
of the Group were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

Name of

substantial shareholder Capacity

FRRRHA

Mr. Tong Liang Beneficial owner 4,404,651,375
Rkt ExEAA

Note: The percentage is calculated on the basis of 15,695,531,700 shares in
issue as at 30 June 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2024, so far as was
known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company
based on the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO, no person (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Number of
shares held
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Total
number of
shares and
underlying
shares held
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of
underlying
shares held
e
ng ]

the issued
share capital
HEBRTRE
BHAESL

- 4,404,651,375 28.06%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no
time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of
the Company (including their spouses and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interest or short positions in the
shares, or underlying shares, or debentures, of the Company
or its associated corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO).

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid
companies and maintains three independent non-executive
Directors, the Group operates its businesses independently
of, and at arm'’s length from, the businesses of the aforesaid
companies.

The Company has no Directors or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during
the year or at the end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity- linked agreements were entered into by the
Company, or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and subject to the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of any losses or liabilities incurred, or any legal
actions brought against the directors and senior management
of the Group which may arise out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company or its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole and any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or in existence during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, the Company did not have any other
connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the
year ended 30 June 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the vyear, as far as the Company is aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

The emolument policy of the senior employees of the
Company is set and recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the basis of the employees’ merit,
qualifications and competence.
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The emoluments of the Directors are formulated and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board,
having regards to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and comparable market
statistics.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company encourages environmental protection and
promotes awareness towards environmental protection. The
Company has adhered to the concepts of recycling and
reducing by implementing green office practices such as
double-sided printing and copying, using recycle papers and
reducing energy by switching off those idle lighting. The
Board will review the Company’s environmental saving
practices and identify other energy efficiency opportunities
from time to time.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS
The Company recognises that employees are our valuable
assets. Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners to achieve its long-
term goals. Accordingly, our senior management have kept
good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business update with them when appropriate. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its business partners.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition,
operations and prospects. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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Risks pertaining to hotel operation

The Group’s hotel hospitality business may be significantly
affected by outside factors such as the occurrence of
extreme climates, the changes of government regulations,
foreign exchange fluctuations, and other natural and social
factors which may affect the level of global travel and
business activities. The extreme climates such as typhoon,
earthquake, tsunami and avalanches may increase
maintenance costs, affect the daily operation and safety of
employees of hotel hospitality business.

As the Group’s hotel is located in Japan Hokkaido, the
revenue from this business is sensitive to changes in the
tourism industry in Japan, which is greatly influenced by the
attractiveness of Japan as a destination for tourists,
particularly welcomed by family groups and long-stay guests
for its spacious condominium rooms, which is the major
source of business for our hotels.

Risks pertaining to financing requirements and
access to capital

The amount and timing of the expenditures required to carry
out the product development/testing activities and potential
investments of the Group are uncertain and will depend on
numerous factors, some of which are outside the Group’s
control. Factors that could increase the Group’s funding
requirements including but not limited to higher costs and
slower progress than expected to develop products and
slower progress than expected in securing development of
the Group’s products/potential investments. Greater than
expected expenditure requirements may materially and
adversely affect the Group'’s financial results and their ability
to introduce new products/investments profitably.

Risks pertaining to exchange rate fluctuations
As a consequence of the international nature of the Group, it
will be exposed to risks associated with changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Group's future sales operations
will be affected by fluctuations in exchange rates to the
extent that its sales and purchases are denominated in
currencies other than its reporting currency. Movements in
exchange rates to translate foreign currencies may have a
significant impact on the Group's results of operations,
financial position and cash flows from year to year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the
date of this report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the exercise of any pre-emptive
rights under the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 30 June 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Full details on the Company'’s corporate governance practices
are set out on pages 34 to 52.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Mr. To Chun Wai. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
Group'’s financial reporting system, the nature and scope of
audit review; (ii) review the effectiveness of the system of
internal control procedures and risk management and the
Company’s internal audit function; and (iii) review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity.
In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by
the external auditor and regulatory bodies to ensure that
appropriate recommendations are implemented. The Audit
Committee meets as and when required to perform its
responsibilities and at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 30 June 2024 with the management
of the Company and the external auditor, and was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results are in compliance
with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations
and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”),
is pleased to present the 2024 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of
the Group’s management of significant issues affecting the
operation, including environmental, social and governance
issues. This Report is prepared by the Group with the
professional assistance of PRO-WIS Sustainability Advisory
Services Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 (the
“Appendix C2") to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) — “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) and has complied with “comply or explain” provision
in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in
respect of corporate social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by the
Group, (i) hotel hospitality business in Japan (“hotel hospitality
business”); (i) provision of money lending services and
investments in listed securities and funds in Hong Kong
(“money lending & investment business”); and (iii) trading and
distribution of liquor and wine business in the PRC. With the
aim to minimize and improve the disclosure requirements in
the Report, the Group has taken the initiative to formulate
policies, record relevant data as well as implement and
monitor measures. This Report shall be published both in
Chinese and English on the website of the Stock Exchange.
Should there be any discrepancy between the Chinese and
the English versions, the English version shall prevail. The
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the
Company complied with the applicable provisions contained
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” of the Listing Rules.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during
the reporting period from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 (the
“Reporting Period”).
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a)
have invested or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability
to influence the outcomes within the Group; and (c) are
interested in or affected by or have the potential to be
affected by the impact of the Group’s activities, products,
services and relationships. This allows the Group to
understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue
to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

The company regularly re-evaluates the priority of its
stakeholders in light of its roles, responsibilities, strategic
plan, and business initiatives. The company engages with its
stakeholders to build mutually beneficial relationships, gather
their input on business proposals and initiatives, and promote
sustainability across the marketplace, workplace, community,
and environment.

The company recognizes the value of the insights, inquiries,
and ongoing interest that stakeholders provide regarding the
company's business activities. The company has identified its
key stakeholders and established various communication
channels to reach out to them, listen to their perspectives,
and respond accordingly.
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The table below provides an overview of the company’s key
stakeholders, as well as the platforms and methods used to

engage with them.

Stakeholders
BE0E

Management .
EEE .

Employees

o

(=

\

Shareholders and Investors

BREZEE

Hotel Guests

BEER

Suppliers

HIEm

Ccommunities and
non-governmental organisations

R & IR Bl e
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Engagement Channels
BEEE

Regular meetings
EHgE

Business meetings

Training programs

Regular performance appraisals
eSS

BIIET &

TEHIRIRATZ

General meetings
Annual reports

Direct communication
company’s website
REXE

FERE

BHEER

NN FE e

Customer hotlines
Website and social media
Online customer feedback
Guest satisfaction surveys
Day-to-day communication
company'’s website
EPAE
Ak At R A A8
MEEPRE
ERREEAS
HEBB

NN FE e

Business communications
Meetings and discussions
Tender Notice
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Charitable and volunteering activities
company'’s Website

ESG report
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Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group understands the expectations and concerns from
them. The feedback obtained can allow the Group to make
more informed decisions, and better assess and manage the
resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are
important to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues
and key performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the
Report according to recommendations of the ESG Reporting
Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules).

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in
ESG aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification —
Industry Benchmarking

Step 2: Prioritization —
Stakeholder Engagement

SR W — NETREE SR @ERF — HHEBR

e Relevant ESG areas were
identified through the review
of relevant ESG reports of the
local and international industry
peers.

key stakeholders on

to ensure all the key

e The Group discussed with
ESG areas identified above

aspects were covered.
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Step 3: Validation — Material
Issues Determiination

SB3: R — BREEAE

e Based on the discussion
key with key stakeholders and
internal discussion among
the management, the
Group’s management
ensured all the key and

The materiality of each ESG
area was determined based on
the importance of each ESG
area to the Group through
internal discussion of the
management and the
recommendation of the ESG
Reporting Guide.

AR  HEREABEE
B b R EE R > 18
PR MR REAREHA -

BRE HEhELRBEZE
R IRE S B EEE N
R - e REAREE
SIEFEZBRIE  HENER
BEHAKEZESMHETE -

« AEEREEHNERL
WA EESEE T
REABBETNR MU
REME AR -

material ESG areas, which
were important to the
business development,
were reported and in
compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide.

o RIBEEERMEZTH
NETRE 2 M ER T &

' 7f ~EERERRDE
¥

FEREARE  HE
BAEE - BHAES
B RERREES -
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As a result of this process carried out during the Reporting
Period, those important ESG areas to the Group were
discussed in this Report.

MRIE S BRI UL R IR WA E M B
BEYEE HBREARBDRARE
AEt R -
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In order to align the concerns of the stakeholders on ESG
issues related to the Group, the Group invited stakeholders to
score the degree of importance of every ESG issue to them
and to the Group from 0 to 6 marks (0 represented not
important and 6 represented the most important) for ranking
the 19 ESG issues.

RE—FOEHRNEEBHERE HER
BRRaNI ARERBERF0ELRE
ARR -HekERZEYHAE S MAKE
MEEUTD  A0ZE6H (ORKRTEE -
ORRRER)H19IBRR HENERE
RETTHER o

Environmental Social Operating Practices
RE HE EEERH
1 Air Emissions 8  Staff Welfare 13 Ethically Responsible Sourcing
2 Waste Management 9  Equal Opportunity 14 Customer Service
3 Greenhouse Gas Emission and 10 Occupational Health and Safety 15 Anti-corruption
Energy Use 11 Staff Development and Training 16 Community Investment
4 Water Consumption 12 Employment Compliance 17 Data Protection and Cyber
5  Climate Change Risk Security
6 Green Procurement 18 Economic Performance
7 Supply Chain Environmental Risk 19 Business Growth
1 ZERITEBERY 8 BIwEF 13 aTEREECRE
2 EBEYER 9 FEHe 14 BPR%
3 RERBHRKEEIREA 10 BEEERZE 15 R&S
4 FEK 1M BIRERSE 16 (HREFE
5 REZ/LRER 12 EBREGH 17 BERRERBELS
6 HERE 18 EXRRE
7 HERRERER 19 EHBER

The management aligned the opinions and expectations of
our key stakeholders with the development of the Group so
as to prioritize the ESG issues in two dimensions: “Importance
to Business” and “Importance to Stakeholders” as the below
materiality matrix. This materiality assessment enables us to
direct our attention to each ESG issues and enables the
Group to perform a more comprehensive sustainable
development plan in the future.

BEEERIERNENERLRYEERE
BB REBEER  URMEREETR
B REABRENELRF  [HEK
ZEZEIRERHNEZERME] - AT

ZHEMMTR - ZE B2 M5 E R
FIBRRE HelkERHEE YA
RAKEBERENERKATEZ @A A FE
BRETE -

68 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B - HERELIRE

The materiality analysis results are shown in the materiality
matrix which allows the Group to identify ESG issues that are
material to the Group so as to manage and adjust our
approach to sustainability. The issues located on the top
right-hand corner imply the most material issues and will be
emphasized in this ESG Report. This year, we identified 5
material topics, namely occupational health and safety, anti-
corruption, business growth, data protection and cyber
security, and economic performance.

BEEMOMEREEENERPEATR &
AEBEREHEPHHANEEEENRE
HekERZEE  EtMEERFAZLRMN
ARFERRTEH LR A LANZERR
EZMEE UHRARR -HEREAR
BEPEHMA - RAFE - RS HRS
EEXZE DRl ABEEERZE K
B REBER EHRERBEKZE2N
KR ERR -

Materiality Matrix

BEEMERE

7

10 @

19@
17 €—18

150

5
1 ® 2

14 @

Importance to Stakeholder
HiSMEZEEM

16 @ 13e@ 6 e

1@

Importance to Business

HWEBEEN
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REPORTING STANDARDS AND REFERFKER

PRINCIPLES

This Report is in compliance with the reporting principles AR ERFEBBE A XS AR A R E M
determined by the ESG Reporting Guide of contained in Ay E MR IS C2FR & 3R B - H & REA
Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules issued by of The Stock $R&E#ESIFAEEMREFRL o thoh - RE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Besides, the reporting JREIFFMLAT :

principles are detailed as follows:

Materiality Through conducting a materiality assessment and engaging stakeholders of the
Group, the Board reviews and prioritizes the ESG issues that are most relevant to
the Group. Details of the stakeholder engagement can be found in the “Materiality
Matrix” section.

EEM FREEUTHRAKSERMNEC 28 EEEREULAEEME BB IRE
HEREREEIREZSEECELERT EHEFHELEAZFBAILZHIE
Z B | —&p o

Quantitative This Report discloses the relevant standards and methodologies in the calculation of
environmental and social key performance indicators (“KPIs”) with the aim of
ensuring the data disclosed is measurable and comparable. Performance targets of
KPIs are set by the Group based on historical data and business development plan.

21t ARERBRAERRERGSAREIER ((BREJUSE]) BATRA BT
ERFZE BUEBRABBESEIFERTELR - AEEERBTER REB
BRERASRTHERBEIIERCRBBZ -

Balance This Report provides an unbiased picture of the ESG performance of the Group
during the Reporting Period by avoiding the selection, omission, or presentation
formats that may inappropriately influence the judgement of the readers.

T ApEReEARREEEBEETERE 2GR ERIEWAN  UAF
RBMAEENRREMECIRE g RER/KRR -

Consistency The data calculation methodologies of this Report shall be consistent to facilitate
comparisons with historical data.
—Ht RBEFEACEBEAER AR UFEEE L SIREITHE -

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG A& EE RNIBE - He REAREES T
Reporting Guide and identified the key ESG issues that are  #RAEZEZ MR B - I B #% Bl ¥ A & B £ 7%
important to the business of the Group. All the key ESG areas, MEEBEEMTBIRE L@ NERERE o
aspects and key performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in -~ AR &E DR IEIRE - H & N EARE B
this Report are according to recommendations of the ESG HM#EEEZ  E/RAEETERE LK
Reporting Guide. EREls BEKBREBUIER -
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ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG
issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in
overseeing the management of the Group’s sustainability
issues. During the year, the Board and the ESG Working
Group spent significant time in evaluating the impact of ESG-
related risks on our operation and formulating relevant policy
in dealing with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to
ensure the management to have all the right tools and
resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy
and long-term value creation.

ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and
accountability, our Group has established an ESG Working
Group, which has clear terms of reference that set out the
powers delegated to it by the Board. We highly value the
opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as the
cornerstone for the development of the Group. During the
Reporting Period, the ESG Working Group mainly consisted of
executive directors, Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ"), Finance
Manager and Accountant.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing
and supervising the ESG process, and risk management of
the Group. Different ESG issues are reviewed by the Working
Group at the meetings, which holds annually. During the
Reporting Period, the ESG Working Group and the
management reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG
iSSues.

Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy for material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations
of different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality
assessment is conducted annually. We ensure various
platforms and channels of communication are used to reach,
listen and respond to our key stakeholders. Through general
communication with stakeholders, the Group understands
the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained can allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and better assess and manage the
resulting impacts.

B ERELHE
§$ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

E%éﬁm
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HERR BEECNEETIEFARREE
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ARBERAGEREEENIRE HERE
SREE
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B #HEaRERIEIA
RERRMLERE KA RGE  RE
BEXRYIRE HekERIENE H

B BREE JRHESEMET
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SEFEMAE

RE e hEaIlE N NEXTEAEEMH
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in
ESG aspects through the following steps: (1) material ESG
area identification by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area
prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation
and determining material ESG issues based on the results of
communication among stakeholders and the management.

Hence, this can enhance understanding of their degree and
change of attention of our stakeholders to each significant
ESG issue, and can enable us to plan our sustainable
development direction more comprehensively in the future.
Those important and material ESG areas identified during our
materiality assessment were discussed in this Report.

Board review progress against ESG-related
goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance
of the goals and targets shall be closely reviewed from time
to time. Rectification may be needed if the progress falls
short of expectation. Effective communication about the
goals and targets with key stakeholders such as employees is
essential, as this can enable them to be engaged in the
implementation process, and to feel that they are part of the
changes that the Company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years
enables the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and focus
on results of achieving the visions.

Setting targets require the ESG Working Group to carefully
examine the attainability of the targets which shall be
weighed against the Company’s ambitions and goals. During
the Reporting Period, our Group set targets on an absolute
basis.

$E@Ei§ﬂb{—l—*%uﬂ$1§iﬁ ek
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RIEE®@
A1. Emissions A1. BERYD

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS A.

The Group believes in the importance of
sustainable development and environmental
protection and integrates environmental
protection into all aspects of our business
activities while supporting local sustainability
action plans. Our ESG Strategy and Policy provided
a guiding framework for the Group to develop and
implement relevant guidelines, operations
procedures and measures based on our business
nature, covering greenhouse gas emissions, air
emissions, energy use, water use, and waste
disposal.

Despite the fact that little environmental impact
can be caused by office-based operations in Hong
Kong, the Group is committed to operating its
business in an environmental-friendly manner,
fostering mindful resources consumption in daily
operations and arousing its employees’
environmental awareness. We constantly monitor
our environmental performance and strive hard to
reduce the negative impacts on the environment.

For the hotel hospitality business, the Group is
committed to driving sustainability among the
local community by regularly attending the
monthly meetings with Niseko Town & Hotel
Association to support the Niseko Eco-Model City
Action Plan and to discuss environmental issues
with the Niseko Environmental Division.

For the trading and distribution of liquor and wine
business in the PRC, the operation is office-based
and no manufacture activity is involved. As the
electricity expenses and water consumption
charges are included in office rental expense paid
to the landlord of the PRC office, the PRC
electricity usage data and water consumption data
cannot be recorded and available this year.

AEBREAFBERERMRRR
HECERN  THRIRBEREBA
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XEEMNAREERITEA
2 HMNRE HERERR
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B ZRSRERY - BERE
o RKREYEE -

BEEBREZENNREYHRE
FEIAN  BEARREHNARR
MDA EER AR ZEET
BEBIBERERTR ARS
BTHRREH - RMAFEEE
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RBERGFEBMS - AEBEH
DRHEESE MR 2 A58 %
& - BB TF HMfE Bt kA
120 [E 48 4% (Niseko Town & Hotel
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P ity A AR AR T I T B B T 2
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Plan) & £2 — t & 28 55 B (Niseko
Environmental Division) 57 5 & 15
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During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
complied with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and was not aware of
any non-compliance of laws and regulations that
could have significant impacts on the Group
relating to air pollutants and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, or
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes, including but not limited to the followings:

o Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311
of the Laws of Hong Kong);

o Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

o The Basic Environmental Law (BEL) of Japan
(Law N0.91 of 1993);

e The Air Pollution Control Act of Japan (Act
N0.97 of 1968);

e The Waste Management and Public Cleansing
Act of Japan (Law No. 137 of 1970); and

o The Water Pollution Prevention Act of Japan
(Act N0.138 of 1970)

Air Pollutants Emission

Air pollutant emissions control is essential to
mitigate the impact on the environment and to
protect the health of employees. The Group strictly
complied with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and The
Air Pollution Control Act of Japan during the year.
For money lending and investment business, the
operation is mainly office-based and it is not
involved in the combustion of stationary sources.
For the trading and distribution of liquor and wine
business in the PRC, there is no air pollution as no
vehicle use is involved in daily operation. For the
hotel hospitality business, the air pollutants
emitted are mainly generated from the diesel and
gasoline consumed by business vehicles, such as
tour buses and private cars, electricity purchased
from the grid, as well as heavy oil and kerosene
for the hot spring operation and bathroom water
heating in hotel guest rooms. Despite of it, the
Group encourages employees to adopt alternative
communication means, such as telephone
conferences and video conferences, in order to
reduce air pollutants emission arising from
additional traffic.
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S

The increase in air pollutant emissions in 2024 was R NFER SRR E G
mainly attributable to the increased fuel usage in MmhEEHRE-T - =4F4f
the hotel operation for the increase in the number Lt B RIRE ABCE N ROBEE
of visitors to Japan and the increase in the number BEAFBREUEN  BUEBEEE
of hotel guest nights, as compared with 2023. E’Jkﬁfﬂﬁﬁgt?’r gEoh - REE
Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce the WEERR -_ZE=_FR#HER
emission of air pollutants by around 5% by 2032, EEMBENER D KI5% (AZF
using 2022 as the base year. T FEREEFE) o
During the Reporting Period, the air pollutants RIREEE - 2R 54N =
emission was as follows: wmr
Money
lending & Hotel
investment  hospitality 2024
Air Pollutants i business business Total
HER “E-MmE
EREEY REXK BERGEYR @
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg - 7,517.10 7,517.10 1,416.88
—&/bHR(NO,) T
Sulphur dioxide (SO,) kg - 14,263.11 14,263.11 3,621.04
Z&/bHi (S0, T
Particulate matter (PM) kg - 494.06 494.06 270.72
BRI (PM) T
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emission

The Group recognises that climate change is
gradually concerned by the community as it
affects our daily life and poses a risk to its
business. Hence, the Group is committed to
mitigating the effects of climate change and
protecting the health of employees. For money
lending and investment business, electricity
accounts for their GHG scope 2 indirect emission
during the office operation. For hotel hospitality
business, the diesel and gasoline consumed by
business vehicles, such as tour buses and private
cars, as well as heavy oil and kerosene for the hot
spring operation and bathroom water heating in
hotel guest rooms contribute to GHG scope 1
emission. The electricity purchased from the grid
for hotel guest rooms accounts for the GHG scope
2 indirect emission in Japan. In an effort to
minimise the carbon footprint, the Group is
devoted to maintaining an efficient and effective
use of resources by adopting energy-saving
initiatives which will be further elaborated in the
section “Use of Resources” of this Report. The
increase in GHG emissions in 2024 was mainly
attributable to the increased electricity and fuel
usage in the hotel operation for the increase in the
number of visitors to Japan and the increase in the
number of hotel guest nights, as compared with
2023. Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce
the GHG emission by around 5% by 2032, using
2022 as the base year.
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During the Reporting Period, the GHG emission

was as follows:
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Money
lending &
investment  hospitality 2024
GHG Emission’ business business Total
BER —E-mE
RERBERE REER BRERESEE @t
Scope 12 tonnes 0f CO-e - 755.41 755.41 644.90
#E 1 “attiREE
Scope 22 tonnes 0f CO-e 6.09 448.49 454.58 489.06
#E2 “aftiREE
Scope 3* tonnes 0f COe - 13.93 13.93 032
#HE3 “atiREE
Emissions reduced by tonnes 0f COe - (0.23) (0.23) N/A
planting trees
BRERRL 2HRE “atiREE
Total GHG emission tonnes 0f COe 6.09 1,217.60 1,223.69 1,134.28
BERBHNEE “E(iEE
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO-e/ N/A 0.08 N/A N/A
equivalent TEA TEA TERA
guest night®
RERBHEREE “EtiREE
EEMEH%%(* g5
GHG emission intensity ~ tonnes of CO,-e/ 0.76 N/A N/A N/A
HK employee NEF TEA PEA
BEREBHNEE WM_EtikEE
ABEE
' The calculation of the GHG emission is based on the “Corporate ' BERE titﬁﬁliﬁ’lutiiTJ%EA EREFEEN2
Accounting and Reporting Standard” from GHG protocol. FE@stAREEL] -
2 Scope 1: Scope 1 GHG emissions include fuel used by the Group’s ? #E1: #EVREREHREEAEEREERLA

business vehicle fleet in Hong Kong and Japan, as well as the hot spring. 2 RSB K NOR R P B 2 R

3 Scope 2: Scope 2 GHG emissions include purchased electricity consumed  °  #[E2: SE2REREHREEAEBEERZCHE
by the Group. HE

4 Scope 3: Scope 3 GHG emissions include business air travel, the relevant ¢ #E3: BEIE=REFREEMBREEK - 8

GHG emissions are calculated by the International Civil Aviation R = RS HE N 2 KRB R AR A (11CAO L) Bk HE i

Organisation (“ICAQ") Carbon Emissions Calculator. ATESREE -
s Equivalent guest night was the total number of nights that guests stayedin =~ ° EFAFBRHE SERBEHHEFTAE KIS
our hotel during the Reporting Period. 2 KRR ER o
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Waste management is considered as one of the
material topics in environmental protection. The
Group recognises the importance of waste
reduction. Waste management measures have
been introduced and implemented to minimise
the amount of waste generated and the impact on
the environment. With our business nature, no
hazardous waste is generated or discharged
during office and hotel operations. The Group
strictly complied with the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
358 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and The Waste
Management and Public Cleansing Act of Japan
during the year.

For money lending and investment business, the
major source of their non-hazardous waste is the
general office waste consisting of paper and
plastic waste, which is considered as insignificant
to the Group’s business. For the trading and
distribution of liqguor and wine business in the PRC,
the office waste generated is considered
immaterial to the Group. No waste was recorded
during the year. The PRC office will try its best to
develop a proper waste data recording system in
the coming year. For hotel hospitality business,
the non-hazardous waste includes paper and
cardboard, plastics, metals, glass and disposable
room amenities and linens. The Group endeavours
to reduce the amount of waste and strengthen the
environmental awareness of the employees. The
Group ensures all the wastes generated are
properly collected and handled by the property
management company. The Group will plan to
establish an effective non-hazardous waste data
collection system to record the waste amount in
the future.
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To reduce the amount of waste generated, we
recommend our staff to use reusable cups and
bowls in the workplace to reduce the use of
disposable containers and minimise the waste and
harm to the environment. We recycle every printer
toner cartridge, rechargeable battery, and CD-
ROM disc, as well as encourage proper sorting of
recyclable materials including waste paper,
metals, and plastic. Moreover, we encourage
duplex printing for most of the printing jobs in our
office to avoid paper overuse. We pre-set the fax
machine to convert incoming messages to
electronic files and transfer them directly to the
server to avoid bulk printing of promotional copies.
Single-sided paper, envelopes, and the backside
of letter pads are also reused to the greatest
extent.

Our hotel operation strictly complied with the
Water Pollution Prevention Act of Japan during the
year. Supporting the Niseko Eco-Model City Action
Plan, the Group has installed a sludge circulation
filtration system, which treats domestic
wastewater generated by the hotel operations by
sedimentation and filtration, before discharging
into the municipal sewage network of Niseko
Town. Sludge generated by the treatment system
is collected annually by the authorised vendor for
further treatment. During the Reporting Period,
36.1 m?3 (2023: 42.0 m®)¢ sludge was collected
through the system.

6

The data of last year have been restated to facilitate the comparison of

data.
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The increase in the amount of non-hazardous TN EELECEETEDE
waste generated in 2024 was mainly due to the EMOEERE _T =%
increased hotel operation for the increase in the Lt SR IRE ABUE N ROBEE
number of visitors to Japan and the increase in the EAEBEE N - BMEBEEE
number of hotel guest nights, as compared with e ki AEBWBEERR
2023. Furthermore, the Group targets to reduce T FRIBMEECBEERE
the non-hazardous waste generation by around IR H5% (AT _FER
5% in 2032, using 2022 as the base year. The non- BERFE) AKEEENES
hazardous wastes generated by the Group were BEMIIAT -
as follows:
Money
lending & Hotel
Non-hazardous investment  hospitality 2024
waste generated business business Total
BER ZBINF
FEEZEEREY REXK BERSER st
Non-hazardous waste generated  Kg 9.00 30,965.00 ~ 30,974.00 1,401.02
FEEZ BEEY) T
Non-hazardous waste disposed Kg - 26,350.00 = 26,350.00 N/A
FRE 2 EEEY) TR i
Non-hazardous waste recycled Kg - 4,615.00 4,615.00 N/A
Bz EEREY) TR i
Non-hazardous waste Kg/equivalent N/A 194 N/A N/A
generated intensity guest night’ TER ~ER MER
EEZBEENEE Fr/BEAR
BHEE’
Non-hazardous waste Kg/HK employee 113 N/A N/A N/A
generated intensity NEA ~ER MER
EEZBEENEE Tr/E%EE

7 Equivalent guest night was the total number of nights that guests stayedin =~ 7 BERAXBEEEERNREHPEETEAERMHBES
our hotel during the Reporting Period. ZIBRRE o

80 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



A2. Use of Resources

The Group strives to take all feasible measures to
incorporate sustainability into its business
operations and improve its environmental
performance. Realising that resource conservation
is crucial for maintaining environmental
sustainability, we promote green office
management and encourage our employees to be
aware of the need for resource conservation in
daily operations. We pledge to reduce resource
consumption and carbon footprint in all our
businesses and operations through the application
of several actions and practices. Energy and water
are our primary resources, and we strive to
minimize their usage. Notably, we do not use any
packaging materials during our operations.

Energy

The energy consumption of the Group mainly
comes from purchased electricity for our hotel
operation, the diesel, and gasoline consumed by
business vehicles, such as tour buses and private
cars, as well as heavy oil and kerosene for the hot
spring operation and bathroom water heating in
hotel guest rooms. The PRC electricity usage data
cannot be recorded and available this year as the
electricity expense is included in the office rental
expense paid to the landlord of the PRC office. To
reduce the energy consumption, the Group
advocated various energy conservation strategies
as follows:

o Installed hot water pipes for hotel guest
room heating purpose

o Double-glazed windows that reduce the
absorption of heat through the outer layers
of the building while still keeping high levels
of natural light
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o Chiller system that contains automatic
temperature management function to
improve energy efficiency

o Gradually replacing light bulbs with light-
emitting diode (“LED") bulbs

o Used daylight whenever possible to save
electricity used for lighting

o Switched off all electronic appliances when
they are not in use

o Used energy-saving light bulbs to reduce
power consumption

o Given a choice whether to change the bed
linen daily as a part of our environmental
responsibilities for energy saving from
washing machine uses

The increase in energy consumption in 2024 was
mainly attributable to the increased electricity and
fuel usage in the hotel operation for the increase
in the number of visitors to Japan and the increase
in the number of hotel guest nights, as compared
with 2023. Furthermore, the Group targets to
reduce total energy consumption by 5% in 2032,
using 2022 as the base year.
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During the Reporting Period, the energy REERME - ERBFENT -
consumption was as follows:

Money
lending & Hotel
investment  hospitality 2024

Energy consumption business business Total
HER RN
BERE# Efr REER BEEREGER st

Indirect energy

AR
Purchased electricity MWh 9.23 841.44 850.67 888.40
ERES KE
Direct energy
EEER
Kerosene MWh - 359.16 359.16 407.28
jcu: KE
Diesel MWh - 48.08 48.08 95.01
5 KE
Heavy ol MWh - 2,022.63 2,022.63 1,993.63
=g KE
Unleaded petrol MWh - 61.69 61.69 49.68
P K EL B
Total energy consumption MWh 9.23 3,333.00 3,342.23 3,434.00
EREREAE KE
Energy consumption intensity MWh/equivalent N/A 0.21 N/A N/A
guest night® NER TER TER
EREREE KRk ER
AEBHEE?
Energy consumption intensity MWh/HK 1.15 N/A N/A N/A
employee NEFE TEA PEA
EREREE g4
AEEE

& Equivalent guest night was the total number of nights that guests stayed in =~ ¢ EFEEAETBRHEERRBEHHEZAEHRFEE
our hotel during the Reporting Period. L KRR EN o
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Water

Water is another critical resource utilized by the
Group. The water supply for the Group’s
operations is provided by the Water Supplies
Department. However, for the money lending and
investment business, the office water supply is
solely controlled by the building management
company. In this case, it is not feasible to record
the water consumption data specifically for the
office operations, as there is no separate sub-
meter installed.

To reduce water consumption, the Group has
taken measures to strengthen water-saving
awareness among employees. The Group sends
out emails and posts signs to remind employees
to conserve water. Additionally, in the Group’s
hotel operations, the Group offers guests the
option to forgo daily bed linen changes as part of
its environmental responsibility efforts, which
helps reduce water consumption from laundry
operations.

Unfortunately, the water consumption data for the
Group's PRC offices cannot be recorded this year,
as the water charges are included in the overall
office rental expense paid to the landlord. Overall,
the Group did not encounter any water supply
issues during the Year, and we are committed to
responsible water management. We continues to
explore ways to optimize water consumption
across its various business operations.

The Group has installed a spring water circulation
system at its Niseko Moiwa-Mountain Natural Hot
Springs facility. This system utilizes natural spring
water to operate the spa center, reducing the
reliance on freshwater supplied by the local water
utility network. To maintain the water quality in
accordance with the Niseko Hygiene Management
Office Standards, the Group adds fresh water and
chlorine to the spring water circulating through
the system.
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The wastewater generated from the Group's
various operations is primarily municipal
wastewater. The effluent is promptly discharged
into the local sewage pipeline network, where it
undergoes further treatment by the local drainage
services department. As a result, the Group’s
wastewater discharge has a minimal environmental
impact.

By implementing the spring water circulation
system and properly managing the wastewater
discharge, the Group demonstrates its
commitment to sustainable water resource
management and minimizing the environmental
footprint of its operations.

The increase in water consumption in 2024 was
mainly due to the increased hotel operation for
the increase in the number of visitors to Japan and
the increase in the number of hotel guest nights,
as compared with 2023. The Group targets to
reduce water consumption by around 5% by 2032,
using 2022 as the base year.

During the Reporting Period, the total water
consumption was as follows:

AEBBREBELCBEBKEIER
WK SRR A Z
HIKEH - I B E HBEK AR A5 AP
FIE—F R - Bt - AEBEZ
f$ﬁﬂL%Z%%%%ﬁﬁ

ERERRKBREAGLZEE
3 BEIKBE DR - $E@EﬁTE%
ARERKERERE Eﬂm
BEWRRPE 2K

TECNFREKEEMNDEEN
FRE-FT-_=FAL AR
BEAZSRLRBEEREATBEEH
BN BUEEE S EE N o A%
EHNBEZANR _ZT=_F/E
IKEIMAS% (LA =T =~ — &1k
BEEFE) -

PSR BRKEWT

Hotel
hospitality 2024

business Total

12
RERE st

Money
lending &
investment
Water Consumption i business
HER
FkE B REXEH
Water Consumption m? N/A
FEKE FHK NEA
Water consumption intensity m3/equivalent N/A
guest night? NEA

KB FHR/BEAE

BEEE’

23,112.71 23,112.71 22,041.00

1.45 1.45 047

9 Equivalent guest night was the total number of nights that guests stayedin =~ °* BEEAEZBRHZERERBEHEEEAERFEE
our hotel during the Reporting Period. 2 KRR ER o
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A3.

A4.

The Environment and Natural
Resources

In terms of the Group’s business activities, we
have not observed any significant impact on the
environment or natural resources. By
implementing green office and hotel practices to
reduce air pollutants, greenhouse gas emissions,
waste generation, and resource consumption, the
Group is committed to improving environmental
sustainability and minimizing its impact on the
environment.

Climate Change

Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based
on the nature of the risk to our operations. The
physical impacts of climate change, including
extreme weather events, or damage to facilities
have immediate operational impacts and are
treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related
risks and opportunities, may be discussed by the
ESG Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board
oversees climate-related issues and risks regularly
during board meetings and ensures that they are
incorporated into our strategy.

In order to ensure that our Board stays abreast of
the latest trends in climate-related issues, we will
provide climate competence training to ensure
that they have the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of such issues. Our
Board also seeks professional advice from external
experts when necessary to better support the
decision-making process.

A3.

A4.
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The company’'s ESG Working Group provides
effective governance for integrating and
addressing ESG issues, including climate change,
across the business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving the company’s
operational emissions reduction targets, and it
also commissions ESG benchmarking and gap
analysis exercises to identify areas for
improvement in ESG disclosure and policy, in
comparison to industry best practices. Moreover,
the ESG Working Group works closely with the
company’s various operational departments to
develop consistent and enhanced approaches for
managing ESG-related risks, and it regularly
reports to the company’s management on the
progress and outcomes of the ESG initiatives. By
establishing this dedicated ESG Working Group,
the company has put in place a structured
governance framework to drive the integration of
sustainability considerations throughout the
organization. This helps ensure the company is
proactively identifying, addressing, and
continuously improving its ESG performance in
alignment with best practice standards.

Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk
profile through its role in increasing the frequency
and intensity of certain diseases, and the health
and mortality impacts resulting from natural
disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by
taking into consideration a range of diverse risk
factors across the many categories in our services
range. This diversity of risk is combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint
helps us mitigate risk and provide protection
against the impacts of short-term climate change
effects.

Our services continue to provide protection for
people in our communities against weather and
heat-related diseases. Besides, we plan to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and
reduce their operational carbon footprint by taking
into consideration different climate-related
scenarios, including a “2°C or lower scenario”
through the following steps:
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Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate
Change Effects

As climate change measures proceed, there is a
possibility that the industry will be exposed to
substantial changes, such as stricter policies
including the introduction of and increases in
carbon pricing, as well as advances in technology
and changes in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on
the International Energy Agency (“IEA") scenarios
and others, we developed multiple future images
of 2025 as the external environment that will
surround our Group. With regard to the IEA
scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C scenario and
pictured future images in case where climate
change measures do not progress and where
such measures progress further Beyond 2°C
scenario.

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each
of the future images developed in Step 1. We
believe that in such a society, it will be possible to
expand carbon dioxide emission reduction effects.

With regard to the effects on our Group’'s
procurement, office operation, and hotel
operation, the introduction of an increase in
carbon pricing is anticipated following the global
advance of climate change measures, leading to
the possibility of higher procurement, office
operation, and hotel operation costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate
change measures are not adequate throughout
society, business operation interruptions and
supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a
result of higher frequency and intensification of
natural disasters such as typhoon and flooding.
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Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of
the use of non-renewable energy in our office
operation and hotel operation. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each
demand for the regions where the emission
factors of purchased electricity consumptions are
high. By promoting real carbon emissions
reductions throughout the world through
comprehensive energy-saving policies and
introduction of renewable energy, we are working
to achieve zero carbon emission in our business.

With respect to renewable energy in particular, we
have set a target; to achieve a 5% reduction rate
for purchased electricity and fuel consumption by
2032, using 2022 as the base year. Concerning the
ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group's strategies, we believe that
we will have opportunities for stable funding and
sustainable increases in corporate value through
appropriate information disclosure, and dialogue
with institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related
risks or to test the existing risk management
strategies under climate change with the aid of
risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new
strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based
approach using national data, local information
and expert knowledge, which can identify how
climate change may compound existing risks or
create new ones. The risk assessment is
conducted through the following steps:

Step 1: Establish the context

o Objective/goal

o Scale

e Time frame

o Climate change scenario for most climate
variables and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and

current)

o Identify the record of occurrence of climatic
hazard in the past in the area

o Risk management strategies in place to
tackle future occurrence of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

o Explore climate change projections for the
selected time frame(s) and emission
scenario(s)

o Identify potential hazards

o Investigate whether any existing risk from
Step 2 may get worse under future projected
changes

o Identify new risks that can emerge under
future projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

o Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.
geographical areas, business operation,
assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has the
potential to be at risk in future
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As outlined in the “governance section of Section
A4. Climate Change” above, the Group has robust
risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the board of
directors in order to identify, assess and manage
climate-related risks. The Group engages with
government and other appropriate organizations
in order to keep abreast of expected and potential
regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change
in regard to monitoring of carbon and energy
footprint in our daily operation. However, there
remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our
operations, assets and profits. Our Group assesses
how the business addresses climate change risks
and opportunities and takes the initiative to
monitor and reduce their environmental footprint.

Significant Climate-related Issues

During the Reporting Period, the significant
climate-related physical risks and transition risks,
which have impacted and/or may impact our
Group’s business and strategy in (i) operations,
products and services, (ii) supply chain and value
chain, (i) adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv)
investment in research and development, and (v)
financial planning, as well as the steps taken to
manage these risks, are as follows:
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Climate-related risks description

Financial impact

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZZ AR EENEE

RIZEEE R HTR MK E
Physical Risk

BRER

Acute physical risks

B B 1 B PR L B

e Climate change can lead to more
frequent extreme weather. Super
typhoon may be an extreme weather
in Hong Kong. It can cause serious
impacts on the office and hotel
infrastructure. Office and hotel
windows may be broken due to
heavy wind and rain. The Group'’s
equipment, documents, systems,
back up storage may be destroyed as
a result of typhoon.

e QOperating cost and
maintenance cost
increase.
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EMEP A EERRBRMBIE -
AEENZE XK ZH- -EH
GFREJEEERBRERMmIBE
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¢ Office and hotel will take sufficient
and necessary measures when
there is an announcement of
typhoon. All documents will be
stored in a proper manner and
kept away from the window.
Additionally, the electronic
version of the documents will also
be saved for backup. The backup
will be kept by the senior
management and stored in
centralised backup of internal
network.

e The Group will provide safety
training for employees to enhance
their safety awareness and
formulate contingency plan to
ensure a timely response during
an emergency.

o BERHMEABRE  PAEREB
JERIRFE D RV EEEE © BT
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Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks

596 161 B L B Y i 3 b2 REEZERERM RN ERE

Chronic physical risks
18 1 B R A B
e Prolonged hot weather may increase e Operating cost increase. e The Group has implemented
the energy consumption. As lighting zone control and adopted
electricity supply is crucial for running efficient lamps in the office and
a business, a surge of energy hotel.
consumption may lead to fuel
shortage, resulting in shortage of e By posting energy-saving notices,
electricity supply. employees are reminded to
switch off the electrical
appliances when they are not in
use.

e Room temperature is maintained
at an energy-efficient level of 25
degrees Celsius. The Group has
implemented lighting zone control
and adopted efficient lamps in the
office and hotel.

e By posting energy-saving notices,
employees are reminded to
switch off the electrical
appliances when they are not in
use.

e Room temperature is maintained
at an energy-efficient level of 25
degrees Celsius.

o RIFFAIMEARRAIGGEMEER o SERAEM- o REBENNEREEEHERA
HE-ARENHEEHEBEES DEERMEKASUEEEA -
BEEZ fLREFESETEEEN
BHEER - € S| BE R R o o BRRAEGEET  REEEH

AT EANES -

o ERRIFHER K25 E M EIREK
FoREEERRERBEE M
READ BRIZH MERA R A -

o BBRMIMES TS REEBMR
P ERMERS -

o ERRIFEREK 25 EMEIREKFE -
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Climate-related risks description

Financial impact

596 161 B L B Y i 3 b2

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZZ AR EENEE

Transitional Risk

BIE R

Policy risk

BUR R

e Mandates on and regulation of e Operating cost increases
existing services. If there is a for high compliance costs
restriction on logging for and increased insurance
environmental protection purposes premiums for the Group.
imposed by relevant governments,
the supply of wood will be affected,
hence, affecting the supply of paper
and other natural resources.

Furthermore, there may also be a
restriction on fossil fuel and electricity
use. As their supply may be limited and
controlled by the government.

Hotel guests and staff in our office will

be affected correspondingly.

e HRAMRBIWERERRE -WiEH o XEEARKASD IR
BRFHRERERE OB ERKR S BIE - BEEENANE
HerE8RMER EMTEHRKR e
KEAMEREREULRE o

BESN - A RME A KR EL R B S B R R]
REX BRI REE  ZFER
HY (€ A T R BE S BIPR Al

BEEERBFAEE THERTIZE -
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Monitor the updates of the
relevant climate-related
environmental policies, to avoid
the unnecessary increase in cost
and expenditure due to the
violation of the climate-related
environmental policies.

Monitor the regulatory trends and
ensure the Group’s operation
complies with relevant ESG
requirements.

Identify areas of improvement on
ESG and implement relevant
measures if applicable.
ERAEREARREIEN R
MiER  #rRERRIKERR
BEREMBHAVEXRRFH
0

EREEBY WMRAKEZE
FHEMERE B REARE
RERE L8 RERHDESR
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Climate-related risks description

RIZEEE R HTR
Legal risk
EERR

Exposure to litigation. We have to
adapt to the tightened laws and
regulations issued by the government
due to climate change. We may have
the risk of litigation once we fail to
comply with the new laws.

Stringent ESG reporting mandates
may necessitate a significant time
investment from the Group to meet
the heightened standards set forth by
the new requirements.
FeamEk HMEERBFEER
ﬂiiftﬁﬂ&%iﬂumﬂﬁ r—BX
SEEUED - BlgEERFARRE o

BRORR HEREARERTE
AREFEAEERARNERE N
ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬂmﬁ M ERIRE -

Technology risk
F i LB

More low carbon energy-saving
material and energy saving
technologies are developed, the
capital investment and research and
development expense increase
consequently.

More green building strategies with
low-carbon, energy-saving
technologies are adopted by industry
peers. Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

i 5% BB 2R HRER R A1 KL SX B g A
EMTERIRARMERAEREEM -

[ 3% 5% BB % {8 R (K Bik N 5 E Al
HAR B R SRR IS - SRR AT RE & HI 55
B HEFES -

Financial impact
METE

Operating cost increases
for high compliance costs
and increased insurance
premiums for the Group.

AEEERRA KR EIR
e BEEERAEM -

Upgrading office and hotel
supplies with low-carbon
and energy-saving
technologies may involve
higher investment costs
and research and
development expense.

Bt A= RBERRAR
150 R EC AR K B gE B il A9
FA on AT BE B BUR B AR |
BEE & R -

Steps taken to manage the risks
REBZZRBMRNNEE

e Monitor the updates of the
relevant climate-related
environmental laws by checking
against the service and
procurement agreement terms,
as well as reviewing internal
policies and procedures on
climate change issues. This aims
to avoid unnecessary and
unexpected increases in cost and
expenditure due to non-
compliance.

o FiBRE R R E RA
REBEEBEREE BN A
HENEF BERBEERKEANE
REBZARNEHEN - WBEHE
BREEATARBEAMERTINE
R ESMOBCAR N B 38 AN e

e Examined the feasibility and
benefits of applying the latest
low-carbon and energy-saving
technologies into our operation.

. EHEEA%LQJJE}EHE—%MEEJ%&%
BERR AT HO AT 1T 14 R A o
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Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks
1% 40 BA L B Y i ot g3 2 REBZZRBMRNNEE
Market risk
™ 5 B
e More customers are considering e Revenue decreases forthe e Tightened the control of the
climate-related risks and change in customers'’ climate-related environmental
opportunities, which may lead to preferences. pollution in daily business
changes in customers’ demand for operation.
services. ¢ Procurement cost
increases as abrupt and e Planned to carry out study of the
e Loss of clients due to poor unexpected shifts in application of recycled materials
environmental condition of the hotel. market price of office and and lower-emission energy
hotel supplies. sources.
e Shift in consumer preference
jeopardizes the viability of certain
business models.
e Increased cost of office and hotel
supplies. More environmentally
friendly office and hotel supplies may
be much more expensive, which may
increase the operating cost.
s FLRPHARGHEERBLKSE: o 8

FlRIFAZETRGER o AT ZETNBHRRBER

> BISRHER -

~

\S

AL HEPHRBNBRLBAE -

e FMBERBMAREMARES - o KERAARAZREE o FERREEEEM S RIEHER
AR mEERRARE BEIRIE FARBE o
e HEERUNEBESYELETEKE HNEEED T3 A0 o
AT ITME o

o WAENOHIE R AR AL - 8]

iﬁf?f‘(ﬁ}]ﬁ#/—\ﬁ JBIE A2 B
BEIEESD  HGWMEENRA -
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Climate-related risks description
SR1% ¥ 28 L Bk 9 3 3

Reputational risk

1‘%

BER

Unable to fulfil the expectations of
the customers which may lead to
potential damage to the Group’s
reputation and image.

Stigmatisation of our business sector,
such as more stakeholder concern or
negative stakeholder feedback on our
business operation, in a less
environmentally friendly way.

Fail to meet the social expectation on
the Group's ESG performance may
negatively affect our reputation and
result in loss of potential customers.

BrmEEPNMER G EH AL
BEELRTRXE-

FEHRMNEBAEHZT LSE - flwn
BOHEUBRTRANEEIANE
EMESRMHELEBEENED
[REELE N

BAMELEHAEERE HE
RERKRROME Al gt g ¥, M
MEBERBETENAREEERE
BEERK -

Financial impact

b2

e Revenue decreases from

the drop in income as a
result of reduced
customers.

Operating cost increases
from negative impacts on
workforce management
and planning.

WAREFRLMAMRT
B% - BT D o

BANEERRENEE
FEGIBIMNEEMRA -

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZZ AR EENEE

Planned to support and participate
in the activities that are related to
environmental protection, and
conservation.

Planned to select suppliers who
carry out relevant policies to
protect the environment.

Disclose ESG information through
the annual ESG report.

Planned to maintain a close
relationship with major
stakeholders to ensure timely
response to their inquiries
regarding the Group's ESG
performance.
HEERFR2ERRRERRE
HEEE -

At ELE BRITHBABCR A RER
SRR

FERFERE HENERRE
RERR G NREREM -

AEEIERNERBEEH
17 ARELR KBy [ JR IR AR &R
BRE - LB REARRNEN
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Furthermore, the significant climate-related
opportunities and associated financial impacts on
our Group during the Reporting Period were as

follows:

Detailed description of

climate-related opportunities

AN REHE  AEENE
RRIRAEREEE RN G E
LI

Financial Impact

RARAEBI MR A9 5 4B 4

Resource efficiency
e Reduce paper usage

e Reduce water and energy consumption
ERME

e MR

o BMARAKKEERBER

Energy source
e Use of lower-emission sources of energy

e Use of supportive policy incentives

e Use of new technologies

BEIR

o {FREKBENEEIR

o RAYIEBIRERE

o {FRAFTEAM

Products and services

e Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions

o Ability to diversify business activities

EmkR%

o HIIF RIEHEE IR R RS R

o ZILILEREEIR L

Markets

e AcCcCess to new markets

[
o EAFEMIG

B e

Operating cost reduces through efficiency
gains and cost reductions

7 3B IN 58 R K B8 PR AR AR & RO

Operating cost is reduced through the use of
lowest-cost abatement

Returns on investment in low-emission
technology increases

2B E R KA BERR K 2 & B
IE AR HE U AT ) 48 & [0 ¥

Revenue increases through new solutions to
adaptation needs, such as insurance risk
transfer of products and services

FRBEEAEOTRATE (WES LIRS
BRI EREB) Rk

Revenue increases through access to new
and emerging markets

3 B HE A HT T 58 I
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Detailed description of
climate-related opportunities

RIZEERE AR

Resilience

e Participation in renewable energy programs e

and adoption of energy-efficiency
measures

e Resource substitution or diversification

= IE

o 2MABARIRAE LREENRERE .

s BRERHZ LI

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and
manage climate-related risks and opportunities.
The energy consumption and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions indicators are the key metrics
used to assess and manage relevant climate-
related risks where we consider such information
is material and crucial for evaluating the impact of
our operation on global climate change during the
year. Our group consistently monitors our energy
consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
indicators to evaluate the effectiveness of
emission reduction initiatives and establish targets
to minimize our impact on global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target
applies and base year from which progress is
measured are described in the Section A1:
“Emissions” and Section A2: "Use of Resources” of
this Report. Our Group adopts absolute target to
manage climate-related risks, opportunities and
performance.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIESE

Financial Impact
HREE

Market valuation increases through
resilience planning, such as planning of the
research in the use of renewable energy
sources

Reliability of supply chain and ability to
operate under various condition increases

Revenue increases through new products
and services related to ensuring resiliency

FiEEIERE (R BT FTER A BARIR)
’AMISMHE

38 0 5 ) T M T E TR R4 T

ERE
25 18 578 JIE ) AR R ) T S m K% AR %5 38 pn Mk

EEREBER
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SEEANER  BERERHE
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS B. it EMmE
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR BREREZFIENR
PRACTICES
B1. Employment B1. &f&

100

Employees are regarded as the Group’s important
and valuable assets to the Group’s success. We
aim to provide a safe and healthy working
environment to our employees, ensuring their
rights and welfare and providing them with
optimal development and training. The
commitment is incorporated into staff handbook
and other human resources management policies.
Our staff handbook covers the Group’s policies in
respect of compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods and other benefits and welfare.

Employees’ Rights and Welfare

The Group prioritises the rights and benefits of its
employees. We believe well-being of employees is
correlated to their productivity and sense of
belonging to the Company. We strive to move
forward with high labour standards, respect
human rights and minimise the staff turnover rate.

The Group strictly complies with applicable local
regulations, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485),
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), the
Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602) of
Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, the right and the
obligation to work (Art. 27 para.1) of Japan, a ban
on child labour (Art. 27 para. 3) of Japan, and the
freedom of workers” association — the worker’s
right to organize, to bargain and to act collectively
(Art. 28) of Japan to ensure fair remuneration and
benefits for our employees. We provide
remuneration for our employees according to their
qualifications, experience, performance, job
duties, and service years as well as to the market
benchmark. We review performance appraisals on
an annual basis to ensure our remuneration
practices are competitive and aligned with market
rates. In addition to salary, we provide mandatory
provident funds, allowances, medical benefits, and
variable incentive-based remuneration such as
discretionary bonuses to our employees.
Employees are also entitled to various types of
leave including annual leave, paid sick leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, compassionate
leave, etc.
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Equal opportunities, diversity and anti-
discrimination

The Group strives to construct a diverse and
inclusive workplace where all our employees are
treated with dignity and respect. We strongly
oppose to all discriminatory behaviour against any
individual on their gender, age, nationality, race,
colour, disability, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, marital status or family status. The
principle of equal opportunities is applied in all
employment practices, including but not limited to
recruitment, promotion, and transfer, work
allocation, benefits and training and development.
During the Reporting Period, there were no
instances of non-compliance of laws and
regulations relating to employment and labour
practices in Hong Kong, the PRC and Japan.

Employee Composition

The employee compositions by gender, age group
and geographical region, employment type and
employment mode at the end of the Reporting
Period were as follows:

Employee composition

FEHRE SR RRER

REBRNELZ TR
BELNEELEE
8 o P Mg 2 = — ) A {E A&
BIALZ MR Fik - B

T {EIRIE -

kBB -BR =10 "%

PEBR @ ~ 28 W AR 3 K BE AR
HIRZBRITR - FIEREDR
BREAET
[REABE R LFEE - TED
i - 18 A A RSB 9 B 3 IR
THE MEEREE HBEE
BABBERNLE IERZED

BEAFEHSRA

FOERBIER

BEARK

RmEBRER - RIER
AR - RERLRERERN

gDz EEAKMT :

—E-NF

FieiE

20231

£ 7 Y

&

By gender & B8l

e Male o 5%

e Female o It

By age group RERERN S D
e Age 30 0r below e 30FRTMAT
e Age31-40 o 31ZE405%

e Age41-50 o MES0RL

e Age 57 orabove e STERIMAE
By geographical region ZEinEE 5

e Hong Kong o HE

e Japan e HAR

e PRC o HHE

By employment type &Eﬂ%ﬁi_ﬂz
e Senior management SRERE
e Middle management o HAERE
e General staff e E@WMET

e Contract/short term

By employment mode REREX &2
e Full-time staff e BT
e Part-time staff e FREETL

o AH/REH

" The data of last year have been restated to facilitate the comparison of

data.

25 25
16 14
12 8
8 8
8 S
13 18
8 8
32 30
1 1
8 8
5 8
15 9
13 14
28 25
13 14
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The employee annual turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region during the

Reporting Period was as follows™:

Employee turnover rate EERAE

By gender &R &l

e Male e S

e Female o It

By age group RERER & 2
e 30 years old or below e 30BRIMAT
e 31-40vyears old o 31ZE405%

e 41-50 years old o MZES0RL
e 51 yearsold or above e S5TpREIA L
By geographical region ZEinEE 5

e Hong Kong o HE

e Japan o HAR

e PRC o
Overall mat

B2. Health and Safety

The Group provides its employees with a safe and
healthy working environment. We ensure that our
daily operations are compliant with all applicable
rules, to minimise and protect employees from
any occupational health and safety hazards that
may cause risks. We strictly comply with the rules
and guidelines stipulated in the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance by the Labour
Department in Hong Kong Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 509) in Hong Kong,
the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases Law of the PRC, Industrial Safety and
Health Act (Act No. 57 of 1972) of Japan and the
Industrial Accident Compensation Insurance Act
(Act No. 50 of 1947) of Japan.

" The data of last year have been restated to facilitate the comparison of

data.
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R EERE - RIER - FicAER
MiEE» 2 FEREERRIM
—F'l'l 0

2024

—E-mF

132% 188%
156% 236%
208% 438%
200% 250%
113% 280%
62% 61%
13% 13%
178% 263%
0% 0%
141% 205%
B2. #ERZZ®
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Safe and Hygienic Workplace

The Company furnishes its employees with a
comprehensive set of directives aimed at
cultivating a safe and nurturing work environment
for all staff members. Our commitment includes
offering medical benefits, enforcing no-smoking
policies in designated areas, and strictly
prohibiting the introduction of explosives or illicit
substances without prior authorization.
Additionally, we disseminate internal memos to
reinforce occupational health and safety protocols
among our workforce.

Demonstrating a genuine concern for both the
physical and mental well-being of our employees,
we engage in frequent interviews to identify and
address any employee apprehensions, alongside
conducting regular surveys to better understand
their needs. To further safeguard our employees,
we undertake daily disinfection in hotels and
maintain a schedule of regular disinfection in our
offices. Proactively, we arrange for pandemic
prevention supplies like masks, protective gear,
and disinfectants for our front-line staff.

During the Reporting Period, there was 0
employee (2023: 1) injured and 0 lost days (2023:
nil) due to work-related injuries. There was no
fatality case during the last 3 years, including the
Reporting Period. Moreover, there was no violation
of any laws and regulations relating to
occupational health or safety in Hong Kong, the
PRC or Japan.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group believes that development and training
are crucial to enhance its employees’ potential for
work advancement. We support our employees in
the performance of their designated roles and
help them to fulfill their potential during the course
of their employment. To improve employees’
professional knowledge and skills in discharging
their duties, we provide on-job trainings to our
employees with contents covering occupational
health, corporate governance, etc. Our employees
are funded suitable seminars, aiming to encourage
and support them in pursuing professional
development and continuous learning through
external training.

To uphold our services quality, understand
different case scenario faced by the frontline staff
and timely respond to the views from our staff, the
Group always seeks for improvements on the
trainings by conducting assessment and collecting
feedback of participants. This can help the Group
continuously improve the training programs
covering various aspects offered to all levels of
employees so as to enhance their job
performance.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
employees trained and average training hours by
gender and employment type was as follows'

Employment category {EfEE 7!

By gender RERE S

o Male o Sl

o Female o it

By employment type  RERERE S
o Seniormanagement o HAEEE
o Middle management o HREEEE
o General staff o LHET

o Contract/shortterm o A#)/5EH

2 The data of last year have been restated to facilitate the comparison of

data.
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B3.

Percentage of
employees trained
ZIEEESH

2024

b o 123

61%
39%

9%
22%
52%
17%

R RE
AEBERERRIEIHESE
BHMBXEREELB/ER -
MXFHREETASNETR
B HWHEEEIGKERE
- RREREEBEITREMNER
M tge  HMIREERERE
BIE - ARRERRER  ©
XBERE -RMEPEEZ2HEA
BRI S - ABB RS RE
BBINPIF I ERKERER R
BAEE -

RTHEF-ENRBESR  £E
AIARBE TEH W ARBER - L&
ROEETWER A&B—H
BBFERRELEENREER
FUAS KRG @ BAOGE © 1t BY
REE TN BOE S S RIEB M
MEBEEIRE - LNESEE
H TR -
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pelllays Ty

Average training hours
(hours/employee)
FERE (g EE)
2024 2023
ZE-mE

75% 1.68 1.52
25% 1.63 0.64
19% 0.63 1.00
50% 3.00 3.00
25% 2.40 1.33

6% 0.92 0.21

2 ATERBREE  EF2BEBKEET -
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B4. Labour Standards B4. % T %8|

The Group prohibits engagement of child and
forced labour in compliance with the relevant
laws, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong, the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, the Labor Standards Act
of Japan (Act No. 49 of 1947), and the Employment
Security Act of Japan (Act No. 141 of 1947). We
have implemented a preventive recruitment
procedure with a thorough background check, to
ensure that no underaged or illegal persons are
employed. Furthermore, to prevent unlawful
recruitment of employees under the age of 15 as
child labour, employees are required to provide
identity proofs to Human Resources Department
to verify the age as part of the recruitment
process. All work should be voluntarily performed
and shall not involve forced labour. If any violation
against laws and regulations in relation to labour
standards is found, we will investigate the
incident, impose appropriate penalty to
accountable staff subject to the severity and
review any defects in the human resources
system in place. Besides, the Group does not in
any way force its employees to work overtime.
Employees are compensated in accordance with
labour laws and company practices on overtime
compensation in cases where working outside
normal working hours is inevitable.

During the Reporting Period, there was no
employment of child labour discovered, nor any
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating
to forced labour.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a set of guidelines for
procurement of goods and services, with an
objective to maintain proper supply chain
management in the Company. We expect our
suppliers to share the same values and operate
business in a responsible, fair and honest manner.
For office operation, the Group mainly works with
third party services providers which provide
services such as information technology services,
property management services, advertising
service and legal and consulting services. We also
work with suppliers that supply office equipment,
printing and stationery. For hotel operation, the
Group works closely with a number of suppliers in
providing a range of hospitality goods, including
guestroom consumables, tableware, furniture, and
electrical appliances.

Stringent procedures are applied in the selection
of suppliers. In addition, we maintain a well-
established system to monitor the quality of
suppliers, ensuring that the goods supplied and
services provided are of high standard. The Group
also emphasises on the selection of products that
cause minimal impacts on the environment, for
example, we purchase green cleaning products
and reusable items instead of single-use
disposable ones. To raise awareness and engage
our suppliers to contribute to sustainable
development, we welcome suppliers who
demonstrate their commitment to sustainability.
During the year, the Group had 37 suppliers (2023:
46 suppliers) in Hong Kong and 85 suppliers (2023:
174 suppliers) in Japan.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmEE

Service levels are deemed essential by the Group
because quality service is indispensable factors in
remaining the market position of the Group in the
highly competitive market. Our employees fully
understand the obligation of delivering high quality
service to customers. Striving to achieve a high
standard of professionalism, we seek continuous
improvement in service quality by welcoming
comments and feedback from our customers. To
improve our service, the Group’s complaint
handling policy is strictly in accordance with
regulatory standards to ensure that customers’
opinions are heard and responded in a timely
manner. During the Reporting Period, no material
products and service-related complaints were
received, and no products sold or shipped
subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons.

Quality Management System

The Group believes the opinions from customers
can drive our continuous improvement and are
essential to our pursuit for excellence. We
welcome the opinions from customers by
establishing various communication channels with
customers, such as customer service hotline and
email. We have also established a customer
service survey form on our website to understand
the needs of our customers and improve our
service quality.

The Group has established procedures of guest
complaint handling, to clarify the responsible
departments and handling procedures for guest
complaints, and handle the complaints in a timely
and effective manner. The Group assigned specific
persons-in-charge to conduct complaint handling,
complaint supervision and tracking of hotel
management issues.
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We have also partnered with Online Travel
Agencies (“OTA") and used their online platforms
for sales and marketing, as well as receiving
comments from guests. The information collected
will be reviewed regularly to identify key areas for
improvement on our hotel hospitality services.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any violation of relevant laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to services
provided and methods of redress. During the
Reporting Period, the Group received no complaint
(2023: 0 complaint) related to our hotel hospitality
services and facilities. In the events of any
incidents, they will be well documented and
reported to the hotel management, refunds and
compensations will be provided to the clients,
where appropriate.

Personal Data Privacy and Protection

The Group protects its customers’ privacy by
confidentially processing and maintaining personal
data in compliance with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong and
the Act on the Protection of Personal Information
of Japan (Act No. 57 of 2003). For all our
businesses, we handle customers’ personal data
with extra care, to ensure that the information is
properly stored in a locked room and is accessible
only to authorised staff to prevent from improper
disclosure or misuse.

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-
compliance of laws and regulations relating to
data privacy.
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B7.

it SR E GRS

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to maintaining and
safeguarding intellectual property rights to comply
with the relevant regulations and to protect our
employees and customers. Our Staff Handbook
strictly prohibits the use and installation of
unauthorised or illegal software on the Company’s
computers. During the Reporting Period, we are
strictly complying with the relevant regulations,
including but are not limited to, the Copyright
Ordinance (Cap. 528) and Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong as well as the
Copyright Law of Japan, the Group is not aware of
any incident on intellectual property rights
infringements.

Anti-Corruption

The Group treasures integrity as its core value. As
a financial services provider, we consider money
laundering as an important risk and are obligated
to achieve high standards of openness and fight
against any corruption activities. We strictly
comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201) of the Hong Kong, the Criminal Law
of the PRC, the Unfair Competition Prevention Act
(Act No. 47 of 1993) (the UCPA) of the Japan and
the Penal Code (Act No. 45 of 1907) (the Penal
Code) of the Japan.

The Group expects employees at all levels to share
the value of integrity and honesty. The Group
strictly abides by the laws and regulations on
integrity and prevention of corruption, bribery,
fraud and extortion in regions where it operates,
such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in
Hong Kong. The Group explicitly states that any
form of corruption, bribery or kickback is strictly
prohibited in its employee manual. Employees
shall not solicit or accept any forms of bribing
benefits, including banquets, cash, gifts, rebates
and commissions. If any case of suspected
corruption or other criminal offence is discovered,
it will be reported to the Independent Commission
Against Corruption or other relevant authorities.

B7.

REHHER
AEBRNGEERRENBE
& LA ST ARRRE R R AR B F AP
ZEEREF - HMZEITFM
BEEARRERERRLZER
RIS IEEM - RS H
A LABRBETHEER &8
RETRNEBEDISE 528 F (it
RGP ) N 5 486 B A B # (FL
B) & B A & B AR Z (E 1EH#
B AEBE YA A MEBAAEMERIL
HBERZEN -

RES
AEBRBEAEZOEE- - 1E
B—RemRGHER  BRMR
AREER—EEARK IAE
EBERSKIENAHEHREE
ARITEEMESES - HAIER
BT EBEMNE201Z (W IE
FEER GO (R BIAIE)Y ~ BA
ZATREBRFH IR (—ANAZ=
FHATFAER) R BARZ HE)
(—WELFEAISHER) -

AEBHMELEREEREHER
HETENEER - AEEER
BT B PR E B R UE KB
IEEYS - R - BRF R RGRF DA
B RER - E SR (P LE R B
fE&pl) - AEBE R T F it 84
EREBREERMPANES M
FREEMITR - BE NSRRI
WEERPEA 2 BHENE 281
Eg -He Y BMNEH
T o MBEREMERETHEAM
MEFRITZER  BRRBRE
HEMERE RBER -

T ONEER o BRHERKEARAT 109




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIEE

The Group also has a well-established
whistleblowing policy to encourage our staff to
report any suspicious cases related to misconduct
or malpractices with a confidential platform in the
Company. The Board provides reporting channels
and guidance for the employees to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters in relation to
business ethics principles. During the reporting
period, anti-corruption materials were distributed
to Hong Kong staff for their review and updates.
The Group plans to deliver more comprehensive
anti-corruption training — both external and
internal — to all employees and directors in the
near future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance of laws and
regulations relating to bribery, fraud, extortion and
money laundering.

AEETEHETENEREK
R wEE TRE—(ARENF
BERARATAEMNEETE K
PRITAMAIGRER EEXEM
B BIRMHIERRE LB - IAFL
MRS NAEEREMEH
BEERRUZEERGEELN
FEETRRELRE - RNBEH
B HZMEEFEEINERE
SEMHEENNREN  AKE
AERTAKRAAARE RE
ERHEZEMNINIEABRE

IR o

RBEHE - NEEY A B
I EFHE - IFF - BRFLERE
HEREGI SOERTERER

COMMUNITY it &

B8. Community Investment B8. H+tERE

110

As a socially responsible enterprise, the Group
remains attuned to the needs of the community,
dedicated to securing our sustained prosperity
and advancement. In addition to contributing to
charitable organizations, the Group actively fosters
employee engagement in volunteer initiatives.

Throughout the year, the Group both attended and
hosted various corporate social responsibility (CSR)
events, with detailed summaries provided in the
table below:

Events

August 2023, Niseko Town Summer Festival 2023
(Donation of JPY10,000 for Niseko Chamber of
commerce).
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWI R BEh R E

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to
210, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2024, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment for property, plant
and equipment on hotel hospitality business
Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and
notes 3.7 and 3.9 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had property, plant and
equipment with the brought forward net carrying amount of
HK$240,104,000 (before the current year impairment 10ss)
arising in hotel hospitality business.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amount of the non-
current assets based on higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. The recoverable amount of the
non-current assets in the hotel hospitality business cash
generating units (“Hotel CGU") was determined by the
directors based on fair value less costs of disposal, which is
higher than its value-in-use.

The impairment assessment involves significant judgements
and assumptions by the directors of the Company underlying
the determination of the recoverable amount of the non-
current assets in the Hotel CGU.

The directors of the Company has engaged an independent
professional valuer to determine the fair value less costs of
disposal of the non-current assets in the Hotel CGU. The
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on the recent sales of similar transactions in the market.
Directors of the Company concluded that, based on the
assessment result, no impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment has been recognised for the year.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our procedures on the impairment assessment by the
directors of the Company for property, plant and equipment
on hotel hospitality business included:

(i) obtaining and reviewing the valuation report prepared
by the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group;

(i) discussing with the independent professional valuer
and challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the valuations, including comparable market
transactions, and to assess the independence,
objectivity, qualifications and expertise of the
independent professional valuer;

(i) assessing the valuation methodology adopted by the
independent professional valuer and comparing the key
estimates and assumptions adopted in the valuation;
and

(iv) checking input data to supporting evidences, such as
the market comparables used and assessing the
reasonableness of these comparables.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group'’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Wing Yin
Practising Certificate Number P06946

Hong Kong, 27 September 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEREKER

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THILFE

2024 2023
—EoE —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Revenue g 6
Hotel income B JE A 22,526 25,551
Trading income B 5WA 2,206 119
Interest income B A - 390
Dividend income % B U A 6,534 5,099
31,266 31,159
Cost of sales 5B B (16,697) (17,522)
Gross profit E A 14,569 13,637
Other income and gains AP S T E 7 5,520 3,417
Selling and distribution expenses HE MY HEAX - (10)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 17 5 5% (25,297) (21,104)
Finance costs A& R A 10 (692) (1,457)
Share of loss of associates SR E R REE 18 (101) (1,316)
Net loss on fair value change of BEATEFABRZEHE
financial assets at fair value EZRAFEEZE
through profit or loss E18 %58 22 (41,547) (43,732)
Loss on derecognition of other iR EREREL M R W FRIE 2
receivables B8 20(b) (23,002) —~
Reversal of impairment loss/ FEWE SR B BB
(impairment loss) on loans #E CREERE)
receivable 21 200 (8,693)
Reversal of impairment loss/ E b FEYGRIE R IE & BB
(impairment loss) on B e L, CREEE)
other receivables and deposits 20(b) 157 (260)
Impairment loss on property, plant — #1% - &= & & & R E & 18
and equipment 15 - (9,801)
Net deficit on revaluation of REYEEHBAFE
investment properties 16 (1,415) (3,100)
Loss before income tax RSB AIE B 8 (71,608) (72,419)
Income tax credit FRiHiE % 11 837 2,588
Loss for the year, attributable  AQATEE AEEERER
to owners of the Company BB (70,771) (69,831)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FaZEmlia®

For the year ended 30 June 2024 BHEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

Other comprehensive income Hi2EWA

Item that may be subsequently HERJBEEF 74
reclassified to profit or 10ss E2HEmIHE
Exchange differences arising MEBINET
on translation of foreign FrEAER Z5
operations (21,334) (13,594)

Other comprehensive income AERHMEEEBA
for the year (21,334) (13,594)

Total comprehensive income KATEE ANEM

for the year, attributable to TERAEZEHBRALE

owners of the Company (92,105) (83,425)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted — ERREE 13 HK(0.45) cent  HK(0.44) cent

A Bl
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBERAER

Asat30June2024 R-ZE_ENA=+H

2024 2023
—E-mEF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 15 240,454 270,459
Investment properties LEYE 16 - 15,900
Interests in associates RN 18 - 1,919
Total non-current assets FEMBEERE 240,454 288,278
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 3,115 3,846
Trade receivables, other receivables, & 5 fEUBRIE - H #b ek
deposits and prepayments PR BEeREMNFIE 20 9,815 84,794
Loans receivable U E 21 - 1,200
Financial assets at fair value through 2 A F{EzT Az 2
profit or loss SREE 22 131,326 118,186
Deposits in a financial institution e R 2 17K 23 89,780 67,356
Pledged bank balances EEBRITER 30 582 650
Bank balances and cash RITER IR S 23 26,075 56,281
Total current assets MEEERE 260,693 332,313
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables B S EMNIRIA - Bt ER
and accruals FIEKERTE R 24 7,076 5,679
Contract liabilities aHEE 25 214 2,378
Borrowings BE 26 24,260 46,184
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 349 -
Current tax payable FEfT BN ERFL I8 2,147 2,399
Total current liabilities mEaERE 34,046 56,640
Net current assets MEEEFE 226,647 275,673
Total assets less current EEHERABEE
liabilities 467,101 563,951
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERRIBE & 28 33,058 37,803
Total non-current liabilities EREBERTE 33,058 37,803
Net assets EEFE 434,043 526,148
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/ Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBKAR

Asat30June2024 R-ZE_ENA=+H

2024 2023
—EUE —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners ARREEAELER
of the Company
Share capital f& 7 29 784,776 784,776
Reserves i (350,733) (258,628)
Total equity RS 434,043 526,148

These consolidated financial statements on pages 117 t0 210  F£ 117 E210B 2 Z S AU B RERE N =
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZT_WFNA-F+tHEESSHERKE
directors on 27 September 2024 and are signed on its behalf ~ #E T3 » W H THESKEEE -

by:

wong Siu Keung Joe Chu Yin Yin Georgiana
EIKE R FE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERREDx

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

e
S

Share Share Contributed  Exchange Special Other Accumulated
capital premium* surplus* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses*
A RAEE*  HABH T Hivfde*  RiER*
i $'000 HK$'000 { HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FAL BT BT THL TAL
(note(b)) (note ()
(Bt (o)) (FHE() (K )
At 1July 2022 R-Z2--%th-A 784,776 1,217,887 340,932 (114,677) (43,246) (15,990) (1,560,109) 609,573
Comprehensive income 2EKRA
Loss for the year AERER = = = = = = (69,831) (69,831)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKRA
Exchange differences arising on REENERRES
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - (13,594) - - - (13,594)
Total comprehensive income AERZAUNER
for the year - - - (13,594) - - (69,831) (83,425)
At30June2023and 1July2023 R=F==FXE=t+ARK
“E-=%th-AH 784,776 1,217,887 340,932 (128,271) (43,246) (15,990) (1,629,940 526,148
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Loss for the year AERER - - - - - - (70,771) (70,771)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKRA
Exchange differences arising on REFNERAES
translation of foreign operations ERZEE - - = (21,334) = = - (21,334)
Total comprehensive income AERZAUNER
for the year - - - (21,334) - - (70,771) (92,105)
At 30 June 2024 RZB-MEXA=1H 784,776 1,217,887 340,932 (149,605) (43,246) (15,990)  (1,700,711) 434,043

* These reserve accounts comprise of the consolidated deficit reserves — * ZERBEPEEEUBRARAZIGEEEA
of HK$350,733,000 (2023: HK$258,628,000) in the consolidated f# % 350,733,000 7T (=& — = £ : 258,628,000

statement of financial position. BIL) °

“ECEFR o ERHMEREEERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEREREDx

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

Notes:

122

In prior years, the Group undertook capital reorganisations resulting in
the elimination of: (i) the share premium account of the Company with
a balance of HK$260,881,000 as at 30 September 2005 against
accumulated losses of HK$88,157,000 as at that date with the
remaining balance of HK$172,724,000 credited to contributed surplus
of the Company; and (ii) share capital of the Company of
HK$168,208,000 which was credited to contributed surplus of the
Company.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
on the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.

Special reserve arose from the business combination carried out by
the Company in 2004, which was accounted for as a reverse
acquisition. Details of the transaction were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 14 June 2004.

Other reserve represents the effects of transactions with non-
controlling interests in the prior years.

B

REERBEFEBETZRABRAEH - S5
WARRR—_ZEERFNA=THZKMDHEE
AR 4% £ 260,881,0008 ¥ $5 % B 2 251 B 18
88,157,000 T + #r%58 172,724,000 7T Bl 5+ A A
NAIBARR  RA)EHHEFTARNRRBAR
2 ANA B ZS 168,208,000 7T ©

SMNERBRIBRESIINEBRIEWMRMELM
BERZH -

BARBEDHENRARAE_SENFETER
BHMEL  ZEXBAMHCIE—BAERAR
B-RXZHABERARAFBMA_ZTTOER
A+mBZ&EE -

HihFEENBEFEZHERERRFITE -
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

2024
o115
HK$'000
FHET
cash flows from operating REXEBKZHRERE
activities
Loss before income tax FriSHi Al B 18 (71,608)
Adjustments for: B TFIIEE EH A% -
Depreciation of property, Y% - BEREETE
plant and equipment 8 4,044
Net deficit on revaluation of KEMESHBATEE
investment properties 16 1,415
Dividend from financial assets at BATEABRZ
fair value through profit or loss PREEZRE 6 (6,534)
Write-down of inventories FEMR 8 603
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ Hib Y RIERIE S
impairment loss on other CRE®EERRE),
receivables and deposits BEEE 8 (157)
Impairment loss on property, W - BB L&
plant and equipment BIEEE 8 -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ FERE R OREERE
impairment loss on loans L),/ mEERE
receivable 8 (200)
Net loss on fair value change of BATEABRZ
financial assets at fair value ERMEELATE
through profit or loss SEEIBTE 22 41,547
Gain on disposal of interests in HEBE RN R R W
associates 7 (82)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEMNBARIZKz=E 7 (101)
Loss on derecognition of other 1 MR E A FEUURIE 2
receivables B8 20(b) 23,002
Interest income from banks and RIT RS RN B WA
a financial institution 7 (4,791)
Finance costs & B A 10 692
Share of loss of associates DI E N RS 18 101

2023
—E-=4F

HK$'000
TAET

(72,419)

3,989
3,100

(5,099)

260

9,801

8,693

43,732

(2,529)
1,457
1,316
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERaRER

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

Operating loss before working

2024
—E-omEF

HK$'000

FTERT

2023
==E==

HK$'000
THETT

capital changes (12,069) (7,699)
Decrease in inventories FER D 94 8
(Increase)/decrease in trade B S5 EARIE - B
receivables, other receivables, FIA -~ e RIERFFIE
deposits and prepayments (3% hn),/ k> (2,737) 11,522
Decrease in loans receivable JE W& SRRk A 1,400 412
Decrease in trade payables, other & 5 EfTBRIE « HfER
payables and accruals HIEREGERARD (172) (441)
Cash (used in)/generated from & X% (FrA) B8RS
operations (13,484) 3,802
Income tax paid 2SR (7) (228)
Net cash (used in)/generated ReExK (A FMERe
from operating activities TFEE (13,491) 3,574
Investing activities RETH
Proceeds from disposal of HEZRAFERTA
financial assets at fair value BRsemEEL
through profit or loss FriS3K18 1,841 39,633
Proceeds from disposal of a HE—HWNBARZ
subsidiary FriS #1718 14 1,700 -
Proceeds from disposal of interest & —EE & R AR 2
in an associate Fri5 5038 18 1,900 -
Purchases of property, BEWE  WERLHE
plant and equipment (1,548) (1,427)
Interest income received from EUERTT R & RUHE
banks and a financial institution FEWA 4,791 2,529
Dividend received 2 AR B 6,534 4,789
Release of pledged bank balances & & B KIBIRI T4 54 - 40
Net cash generated from REZEBME
investing activities REeFE 15,218 45,564
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2024 &= —

T-mEARASHAILFE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E_=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Financing activities RMEER
Proceeds from borrowing B EMFIA 35 340 580
Repayments of borrowings EEEE 35 (6,269) (6,833)
Repayments of principal portion EEHEBENASIHD
of lease liabilities 35 (330) (348)
Repayment of interest portion of BEHESEAENT LI
lease liabilities 35 (30) (12)
Interest paid EAFE 35 (662) (1,445)
Net cash used in financing RMETBMARSEE
activities (6,951) (8,058)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁlﬁ |
and cash equivalents W), nE (5,224) 41,080
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXRSHUELR
changes on cash and cash ReSEEAZRE
equivalents (2,558) (4,216)
cash and cash equivalents at FHNERERESEHEER
beginning of the year 123,637 86,773
cash and cash equivalents FRESRESLEEEB
at end of the year 115,855 123,637
Analysis of the balances of ReRkHELEEEE
cash and cash equivalents BT
Deposits in a financial institution e BTS2~ 17 3K 23 89,780 67,356
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR NIRE 23 26,075 56,281
115,855 123,637
“EPUFFIR o EEHEEEGRATE 125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

126

GENERAL INFORMATION

DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the Company’s registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business was
Room 905, 9/F., Wings Building, 110-116 Queen'’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company'’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
business of (i) hotel hospitality business; (ii) provision of
money lending services; (i) trading and distribution of
liguor and wine; and (iv) investments in listed securities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) New standards, interpretation and
amendments adopted from 1 July
2023
In the current year, the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has applied for the first time the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which are effective for the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 July 2023:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Except for the below, the application of these new
or amendments to standards has no material
impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior period. The Group
has not early applied any new or amendments to
standards that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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RAT]) BT o "R R FEM #F E B b ik
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EEWHABELE2RF/RNEFR110-116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

New standards, interpretation and
amendments adopted from 1 July
2023 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide guidance and examples to
help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments
aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their
‘significant accounting policies” with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material accounting policy
information” and adding guidance on how entities
apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the
Group's disclosures of accounting policies, but not
on the measurement, recognition or presentation
of any items in the Group’s financial statements.

New guidance on accounting for the
mandatory provident fund (“MPF")

— long service payments (“LSP")
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
issued by the HKICPA

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) was enacted. The Amendment
Ordinance abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
contributions under the MPF scheme to offset
severance payment (“SP") and LSP (the
“Abolition”). Subsequently, the Government of
HKSAR announced that the Abolition will take
effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). The
following key changes will take effect since the
Transition Date:

- Accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions cannot be
used to offset the LSP/SP in respect of the
employment period after the Transition Date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EHERZEH &)

(b) New guidance on accounting for the (b) ERARESTMASHEMBH

128

mandatory provident fund (“MPF")
— long service payments (“LSP")
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
|ssued by the HKICPA (Continued)
The pre-transition LSP/SP is calculated using
the last month's salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date, instead of
using the last month'’s salary of employment
termination date.

Due to the complexities of the accounting for the
offsetting of accrued benefits derived from an
employer's MPF contributions and its LSP
obligation and the accounting for offsetting
mechanism could become material in light of the
Abolition, the HKICPA published ‘Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong' (“the
Guidance”) in July 2023 to provide guidance to
account for the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition. The HKICPA concluded that there are
two acceptable accounting approaches for the
offsetting mechanism, being:

Approach 1: Account for the amount expected to
be offset as a deemed employee contribution
towards that employee’s LSP benefits in terms of
HKAS 19.93(a)

Approach 2: Account for the employer MPF
contributions and the offsetting mechanism as a
funding mechanism for the LSP obligation

For the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2024, the
Group's LSP liability before the expected offsetting
under the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism is
immaterial. Application of the Guidance had no
material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024 &= —

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) New Standards, interpretations and
amendments that have been issued
but are not yet effective
The following new and amendments to standards,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK Interpretation 5
(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 21
and HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 18
HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current!

Non-current liabilities with Covenants'

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause'

Supplier Finance Arrangements'

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments®

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability
—Disclosure*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

B Effective date to be determined

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these new
pronouncements upon application.
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-~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
7 BaMBHmRME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

130

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules™).

Certain comparative amounts have been re-
presented to conform with the current year'’s
presentation to better reflect the nature of the
financial performance of the Group.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for certain financial instruments and investment
properties, which are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000")
except when otherwise indicated.

3. WEBEERERIHE

3.1

3.2

3.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

3.5

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income up to the dates of
disposal.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present. power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 3. REEERSHBE»®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
3.6 Revenue recognition and contract 3.6 WaEBAREGHNERE
liability
(i) Revenue from contract with customers (i) EFE&EHWE
(@)  Sales of goods @ BmiEeE
Revenue from sales of goods is 7 on 85 & W = 1
recognised at a point in time as when THEDEBRERR
the control of the goods has been BEREREESEY
transferred to the customers and there BERRBEITENRME
is no unfulfilled performance obligation 2R GHEBER -
after the acceptance of the goods. The AEEHLTERRPT
Group allows a credit period of not ZN365AZIEEH -

more than 365 days to its customers.

(b)  Hotel income (b)  JBEKA

Hotel income from room rental is REFEME B ERA
recognised overtime as the customers REPRRBESRZ
simultaneously receives and consume FA 7K £ B AR 7% 71 25 B
the benefits of the Group’s services. BE — ER 5 R 8 7% T 7
The progress towards complete RexT2RBITEBHOE
satisfaction of a performance obligation EREE TR HE
is measured based on output method, FFE BIREBEEE
which is to recognise revenue on the BESEERTER
basis of direct measurements of the MR mekRBEE
value of the goods or services M RIEE N ARHR
transferred to the customer to date HOBRTEmERE
relative to the remaining goods or BEEERKZ B
services promised under the contract, F AR B R R AN 52
that best depict the Group's PR ER ok R T 1
performance in transferring control of IS ERBABNR
goods or services. The Group allows an REBG TIRITH R
average credit period of not more than TERFHNTEHEEER
90 days to travel agents and corporate HIN #8900 H - &k B
customers. Hotel revenue from food BEIHE 2 BE =
and beverage sales are recognised at a REEFREMRERE
point in time when the relevant goods mE R AR
or services are provided to the s AR 7% 18 I 48 &) oK
customers and there is no unfulfilled TERHERZE B
performance obligation after the fE 2EHER o

provision of goods or services.

All sales of goods and hotel income is for FrEMmEE RBEKRA
periods of one year or less. As permitted WHEIR A —FHER -&
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price BB ®EERFE 155
allocated to the unsatisfied (or partially AHFRBERT  DBREXR
unsatisfied) contracts is not disclosed and BT (KEH D RET) &L
the transaction price is not adjusted for the MRSERILEREE M
effects of any significant financing REERMEREMERX
component. BMEBOHREEL AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition and contract

liability (continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources

(@ Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is
accrued on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset.

(b)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when
the right to receive the dividend is
established.

(c) Rental income
Rental income under operating leases
is recognised on straight-line method
over the term of the relevant lease.

(iii) Contract liability
A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 3. REBEERSHEE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment 3.7 N%E  BERREE)

134

(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Right-of-use assets Over the lease terms

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings Over the shorter of the

term of the related

lease or at 2%

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the

remaining terms of the

related lease or at 5%

Equipment, furniture 16.60%—-33.33%
and fixtures

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

20.00%-33.33%
12.50%-33.33%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or 0ss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 3. REBEERSHEE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Investment properties 3.8 REWMHE

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an
investment property.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. MEMBEERERIHE =2

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 39 k¥EeREERE

136

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment, interests in
subsidiaries and associates are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related
business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 3. REBEERSHEE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 39 k¥emMEERME#E)

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment 10ss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, if measurable, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other non-
financial assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 3. REBEERSHEE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Income taxes 311 FrB®t

138

Income taxes for the year comprise of current tax
and deferred tax. Income taxes are recognised in
profit or loss except when they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences. Except for goodwill and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
which is not a business combination and at the
time of the transaction affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised
or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. WEUBERERIBE =2

3.12 Leasing 312 HE

All leases are capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value that the
Group choose not to capitalise. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liabilities (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liabilities); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. MEMBEERERIHE =2

3.12 Leasing (continued) 312 HE (&)

140

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liabilities by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liabilities; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

3.13 Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than functional currency are
recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 3. REBEERSHEE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Foreign currencies (Continued) 313 ¥ (&)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised as profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as exchange reserve.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

142

3.14 Financial instruments

Trade receivables are initially recognised when
they are originated. All regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

(@

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method. Interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

All financial assets not classified as
measured at amortised cost as described
above are measured at fair value through
profit or 10ss. These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income are
recognised in profit or 10ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

ECL is probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets at amortised
cost, the ECL are based on the 12-months
ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

144

3.14 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For loans receivable, ECL is determined by
reference to the estimation of the exposure
at default ("EAD"), probability of default (“PD")
as well as a loss given default (“LGD"). The
12-months and lifetime PDs represent the
probability of default occurring over the next
12 months and the remaining maturity of the
instrument respectively. The EAD represents
the expected balance at default, taking into
account the repayment of principal and
interest from the reporting date to the
default event together with any expected
drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD
represents expected losses on the EAD given
the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect
of collateral value at the time it is expected
to be realised and the time value of money.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group'’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at
amortised costs. These liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

The Group generally derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to the
future cash flows in relation to the financial
asset expires.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Written-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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3.

146

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The judgements, estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
competitors’ actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassess the estimations at the
end of each reporting period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual values, if any.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives,
depreciation method and the estimated residual values,
of the assets at least at the end of each reporting period
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The depreciation method, useful lives and residual
values are based on the Group’s historical experience

4.
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asset. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables, loans receivable and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of receivables on a forward-looking basis. In
making the judgement, management considers
reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information that is available such as actual or expected
significant changes in the operating results of debtors,
actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business and financial position of the debtors. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed by the Group’s management.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment and reversal for all non-financial assets at
the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable or
impairment loss recognised in prior periods (other than
goodwill) may no longer exist or have decreased. An
impairment (a reversal) exists when the carrying amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount (vice versa), which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk management objectives
and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
loans receivable, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, deposits in a financial
institution, pledged bank balances, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables and
accruals, borrowings and lease liabilities.

The main risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. UBRBREE 2

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@ MEEREEBEEZERBX
and policies (Continued) (&)
Foreign currency risk ShEE LB

/4

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Japan with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, Renminbi (“RMB”)
and Japanese Yen (“JPY”), which are the functional
currencies of respective group companies. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arise from certain financial instruments which are
denominated in United States Dollar (“USD"),
which are currencies other than the functional
currency. In this respect, it is assumed that the
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pegged rate between the HK$ and the USD would E FE o TRMMEERA (K
be materially unaffected by any changes in ﬁﬁiéfﬁ%I?EEl ) Fr#Ea 2K
movement in value of the USD against HKS$. The
following table summarises the Group’s major
financial assets denominated in JPY held by group
companies whose functional currency is not JPY:
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2023
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Bank balances and cash IRITEBR NI = 4,499
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. UBRBREE 2

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@ MEEREEBEEZEREX

150

and policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the reporting date to a reasonably possible change
in JPY exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss for the year.

Increase/(decrease) in 10ss
for the year:
5% strengthening in HK$ B ITHE %

5% weakening in HK$ B ITEZ B 5%

AERFBELMOfD)

(4&)

SN RS ()
T%ﬂm&%ﬁﬁmm%Tmm
BT - RERE B AR EEARE
NEEYH BEERNES R L2
B BRRE -

2023
—ET-=F

HK$'000
TAET

= 225

= (225)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has
policies in place for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loans receivable, deposits in a financial
institution, pledged bank balances and bank
balance and cash.
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E-mEAASTAILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. HERBEH»)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BHXEBREEEERBE

and policies (Continued) (&)

Credit risk (Continued) FERE (&)

The Group considers the probability of default AEERYITEREERERE
upon initial recognition of assets and whether AFAEXRNEREHEEER

there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the assets as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.

It considers reasonable and supportable forward
looking information that is available. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available)

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counterparty’s
ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counterparty

e significant expected changes in the
performance and behaviour of the
counterparty, including changes in the
payment status of counterparties in the
group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparty

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
when they fall due.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. HERBEH»)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BHXEBREEEERBE

152

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation
of ECL are unbiased and probability-weighted, and
incorporate all available information that is
relevant to the assessment including information
about past events, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
events and economic conditions at the reporting
date. In addition, the estimation of ECL would take
into account the time value of money.

The credit risk of deposits in a financial institution,
pledged bank balances and bank balances is
limited because the majority of the counterparties
are institutions with good reputation. No
impairment had been provided under 12-month
expected credit loss assessment.

The Group presumes that the credit risk of loans
receivable has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. The Group considers
that default has occurred when the instrument is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more backward default
criterion is more appropriate.

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024

(%)

FERR(E)

fiaf 4B & T2 YR A AT W B SRR B - A
WM REE

EERBRHNEHRBEREEER
MHJEEQE&WfM%%
T - WAt APTH R4 A R
MAGEN BREEHEEES
- RITAOR BB BRI E 1Y
é@&ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%&ﬁﬁia
HIE0 AR LR B R o e S
%ET%EM%JF&&T%%
REE -

HRABRDE T REER R
B BRERgEZER 28
ﬁﬁﬁ%%u&ﬁﬁ IR IEE
RAR - MERE12MEAEH
ET%%HHJ%HE

AEERRMNE BB
0B BRERNEERRBS V)
FHERBLARE ARIZ I - BRIEA
SEBEERARIEAHEAE
H R RIS Bl o AN E 7R

fid TEBEAEE0R L%E%
£ BRIFAKEERERARE
ERBTRRRNENEIER

B e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERBRER &)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BHXEBREEEERBE

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk of loans receivable is determined
based on the combination of the internal and
external credit rating, the average debt recovery,
peer review information and comparison with
public available data. The Group calculates ECL
using three main components: a probability of
default ('PD’), a loss given default ('LGD’) and the
exposure at default (‘'EAD’). The 12-month ECL is
calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD, LGD
and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the
lifetime PD instead. The 12-month and lifetime PDs
represent the probability of default occurring over
the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of
the instrument respectively. The EAD represents
the expected balance at default, taking into
account the repayment of principal and interest
from the reporting date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of
committed facilities. The LGD represents expected
losses on the EAD given the event of default,
taking into account, among other attributes, the
mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of
money. The total impairment allowance on the
loans receivable as at 30 June 2024 amounted to
HK$229,055,000 (2023: HK$229,489,000) has been
provided under expected credit loss assessment,
of which reversal of expected credit losses of
HK$200,000 (2023: expected credit losses of
HK$8,693,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 June 2024.
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ERERNEERBR LS A
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o RITRAERREARER
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MR BHETBREEESRE: &
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BARER(TEHBAX]) RELHR
BrAdE ([BORBAE]D - 121
AEBHEEEBBEIEI2EAE
sk RE  BOBRERRENRE
SAERFME - 2HTEHE
BEEBAERASIENKAET
B -REAREHENIAED
Bl RK12ME A K T AR eF
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K F BB KA B E R E {18
HA4RENRE - BB AKRIBHIRE
HEHREYRBRAE ZTEHE
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HIE IR REER 2 BNy &
&f%%ﬁﬁﬁ =11t =
NAZTH ERETREEE
#8%6229,055,000/8 L (Z T ==
F 1 229,489,000/ 7T) B R KB
HE BB BT ETREE &+
T8 Hi {2 & &5 18 # [81 200,000 7% 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BERRBRER &)
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BXERAKBEEBEEREKE
and policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) FERE (&)

An analysis of the gross amount and impairment
allowances of loans receivable as at 30 June 2024
and 2023 is as follow:

Stage 1
F1RR

HK$'000
TERr

EWESRBABENRERER_-F
TER_E-=FA=1H
2O

Stage 2
E2MEER
HK$'000

THERT

Stage 3
EIPEER
HK$'000

TET

#iE
HK$'000
TER

At 30 June 2024 RIE-NEXA=TH

Loans receivable e E K - - 229,055 229,055
Impairment allowances REREE = - (299,055)  (299,055)
Net amounts R - - - -

Stage 1
E1EER

HK$'000
TR

Stage 2
F 2R
HK$'000
THT

At 30 June 2023 R-ZE-=5XA=1+H

Loans receivable EE R - - 230,689 230,689
Impairment allowances RERRE - - (229,489) (229,489
Net amounts R - - 1,200 1,200
For the trade receivables, the Group carries out REFEKREEAEMS AEET

regular review on these balances and follow-up
action on any overdue amounts to minimise
exposures to credit risk. The Group measures the
lifetime expected credit loss based on the
outstanding balances and historical credit loss
experience adjusted to reflect the Group’s view of
current and forecast economic conditions that
may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables. As at 30 June 2024, the total
impairment allowance amounted to HK$117,000
(2023: HK$116,000) had been provided under
expected credit loss assessment by using
simplified approach according to the ageing by
due date. No further expected credit loss was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the years ended 30
June 2024 and 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

5. HERBEH»)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@ BHXEEAKREEEERERER
and policies (continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK (&)

The loss allowance as at 30 June 2024 and 2023

was determined for trade receivables as follows:

RZE-_NFEN B -_=F,X7
—tHEZRKRBETEZE

Expected
credit loss
rate —
weighted
average
(%)
HHEE

BRLE
— i
4
(%)

BEEET

Gross
carrying
amount

Loss
allowance

BERE
HK$'000
TER

Net
amount

H
HK$'000
TET

At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-MFEAA=+H

Not yet past due fr] A 480 H N/A T F 974 - 974
Overdue within 90 days BHOAR N/A T F - = =
Overdue 91 to 180 days BHTEE180H N/A FiEF 2,751 - 2,751
Overdue over 365 days 8 1838 365 H 100% 117 117 -
Total B 3,842 117 3,725

Expected
credit loss
rate —
weighted
average
(%)
BHREE

iRk E
— 0
et
(%)

Gross

carrying
amount

Loss
allowance

EERE
HK$'000
TAET

Net
amount

i
HK$'000
TR

At 30 June 2023 RZBEZ=£xA=1+H

Not yet past due 1 7K 480 N/A i A 688 - 688

Overdue within 90 days B AR N/A 7N iE - - -

Overdue 91 to 180 days BHTHEE180H N/A i A 12 - 12

Overdue over 365 days AR R 365 B 100% 116 116 -

Total k] 816 116 700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. HERBEH»)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BXERAKBEEBEEREKE

156

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For the other debts instruments, given the short
term nature of these assets, the ECL had been
provided under 12-month expected credit l0ss
assessment. The total impairment allowance
amounted to HK$235,000 (2023: HK$393,000) has
been provided under expected credit loss
assessment.

The Group has concentration risk on trade
receivables and loans receivable.

At the end of reporting period, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on trade receivables
as HK$2,650,000 (2023: HK$129,000) and
HK$3,141,000 (2023: HK$378,000) of total trade
receivables after considering the impairment loss
due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group also has concentration
of credit risk on loans receivable as HK$1,200,000
and HK$1,200,000 of total loans receivable after
considering the impairment loss due from the
Group’s largest borrower and the five largest
borrowers respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
deposits in a financial institution, bank balances
and borrowings with a floating interest rate.
Management closely monitors cash flow interest
rate risk and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. HERBEH»)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BHXEBREEEERBE

and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2024, it is estimated that a general
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
(decrease)/increase the Group’s loss for the year
and the accumulated losses by approximately
HK$946,000 (2023: HK$942,000) respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above was determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100
basis points increase or decrease represents
management’'s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
was performed on the same basis for 2023.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
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MEEE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

5.

158

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if
floating, based on rates current at the end of
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.

5. HERBEH»)

(@ MHEBREEEERBE
(%)
REBESRERE(E)
TR AEEFTECREE
RBEHR AT AN HAEFF
1B DERRETORMBERER
E(BREERASTOMNER (1A
FEM ) RRBERARIIRT
MEFHEZ2HB ) MAEE
ARRANRZZFEHEE -

Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
EHEE Y —FR
FEE RIRELE FREXR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FEx FEx
2024 —E-mE
Borrowings EE 24,260 24,466 24,466
Trade payables, other BHEMNERE - Ef
payables and accruals ENFIERERER 5,397 5,397 5,397
29,657 29,863 29,863
2023 —E-=F
Borrowings R 46,184 46,592 46,592
Trade payables, other BHREMNRIE - 2l
payables and accruals eI R ERT & A 3,905 3,905 3,905
50,089 50,497 50,497
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERBRER &)
(Continued)
(b) Fair values (b) A¥ME
The fair value of listed securities is determined by EHESFZAFETIZZEERR
reference to their quoted market prices at the HEHEZMISRESTE °

reporting date.

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial BEEMBHRERNETRATE

instruments that are measured at fair value by BIEATATFESERDRBER

level of the following fair value hierarchy: ATEFFEZERIA:

Level 1 — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active F1H — HEEEXEER
markets for identical assets or ERTIS 2 WE R
liabilities. KR o

Level2 — Inputs other than quoted price Fo2h — BEILBREZ®
included within Level 1 that are BN AT EHEHE
observable for the assets or liabilities, EERCEAESEB
either directly or indirectly. B A B o

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that F3/ — WIHREBETERT
are not based on observable market GHEBTECEE
data. B ERABE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Fair values (continued)

At 30 June 2024 R-ZBE-WEXA=TH
Assets &E
Investments in listed securities  _EmEFRE

5. HERBEH»)

DNFE#)

(b)

Level 1
E1K

Total
#E
HK$'000
FRET

Level 3
E3R
HK$'000
FEx

Level 2
F2R
HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
TRT

131,326 = - 131,326

At 30 June 2023 R-ZBEZ=HXA=T1H
Assets BE
Investments in listed securities  FmEHIRE

Total
#(E
HK$'000
FTET

Level 3
ERE
HK$'000
THT

Level 2
E2R
HK$'000
THT

Level 1
F1K

HK$'000
THT

118,186 - - 118,186

The methods and valuation technigues used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods. There were no significant transfers of
financial assets and liabilities between Level 1,
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

/4

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. W& RSiEHE
Revenue represents consideration expected to be W EARFAREBETBHRAERELSH
entitled by the Group for goods sold and services BREHEFBZHBERAIIRESH
provided to outside customers, net of sales related ENmERERBEZEZRE B
taxes, interest income from loans receivable and ERZHMBWMAR ETBEFKRE 2K
dividend income from investments in listed securities BUA ©
during the year.
2024 2023
—F-mE | == =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue from contracts with EEEHWE
customers
Hotel income: B IEWA
Room Rental FEEHAE 20,626 22,742
Food and beverage sales BEHE 1,900 2,809
22,526 25,551
Trading income: BH5BA
Sales of Liquor and wine EFREmIEE 2,206 119
24,732 25,670
Revenue from other sources H i 3RR 2 W 22
Interest income: MERA -
Money lending services BEE RS - 390
Dividend income: B B UL A
Investments in listed securities LB HEE 6,534 5,099
Total HEr 31,266 31,159
Disaggregation of revenue from BEFEHAWREDIF:
contracts with customers:
At a point in time RE—FR2 4,106 2,928
Overtime BE — ER FF R 20,626 22,742
Total FES 24,732 25,670
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7 BaMBHmRME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

162

Segment reporting

(a)

Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the Company’s
executive directors.

The Group currently has four reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different products and services
and requires different business strategies as
follows:

(i) hotel hospitality business;

(i) money lending services;

(i) liguor and wine; and

(iv)  investments in listed securities

There were no inter-segment transactions
between different operating segments for the year
(2023: Nil). Central revenue and expenses are not
allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segments’
results that is used by the chief operating
decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.

6. BRRHSBMEE @)

Pk

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE —

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(@

Reportable segments (Continued)
The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSS, except that:

— fair value change on investment properties
—  share of result of associates
— finance costs

— corporate income and expenses which are
not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except interests
in associates and investment properties. In
addition, corporate assets, bank balances and
cash and deposits in a financial institution which
are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but current
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities. In addition,
corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a
segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

164

(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 30 June 2024

6.

Bk 3EREE @

TREBE (&)

(b) 7mEWmRER
R mED BN 2 AEE WS
REEDHMT

BE-Z_NWEA=1+HLHF

E

Hotel Money Investments

hospitality lending Liquor in listed
business services  andwine  securities Total

BEFS EhE%
% REERE  BEEER RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TARL TARL TARL TEx
Segment revenue 2 ElE 22,526 - 2,206 6,534 31,266
Segment (oss)/profit HE(BR)/ &7 (1,752) (1,027) 1,210 (58,680)  (60,249)

Unallocated corporate income and R A B A "I R Uiz

gains 4,743
Unallocated corporate expenses KA AARER (F3)

(note) (13,894)
Finance costs BEMNK (692)
Share of loss of associates AEBERAEE (101)
Net deficit on revaluation of RAMEFERELTE

investment properties (1,415)
Loss before income tax FERAEE (71,608)
Note: P E

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included corporate staff
salaries, directors’ remuneration and legal and professional fee
for the year ended 30 June 2024.

BE-_Z-_MENAZFTHLEFE X5
RARFYEZEREAREI: &=
e AR ERREEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

e
S

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. W@ R72MEE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) DEWE (B
(b) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (b)y PEWEREE(E)
For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_Z_ZFXA=Z1+HLF
E
Hotel Money Investments
hospitality lending Liquor in listed
business services and wine securities Total
BERE LhER
EY) BERE BEER RE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL THL THL
Segment revenue 2 ElE 25,551 39 119 5,099 31,159
Segment loss NEEE (1003) 8571 (602 (42,361) (61,570)
Unallocated corporate income RAEL A RN
and gains 2971
Unallocated corporate expenses AR AR (Hi)
(Note) (7.947)
Finance costs BENK (1457)
Share of loss of associates AEBERAEE (1,316)
Net deficit on revaluation of RAMEEREHFR
investment properties (3,100)
Loss before income tax FERAES (72419
Note: MoeE -
Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included corporate staff BE_Z-_=FA=Z1+BLFE x5
salaries, directors’ remuneration and legal and professional fee BEARAXEIERERAREIH EF
for the year ended 30 June 2023. MeEAREEREXER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. W R72MEE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) TEBRE &)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c) PEEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets BamENEE D AEEEE
and liabilities by reportable segments: NBESITHT :
2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET
Segment assets PTHEE
Hotel hospitality business B JE AT 246,994 273,631
Money lending services BEERE 516 1,418
Liquor and wine R E M 16,212 18,925
Investments in listed securities LB HERE 131,845 198,117
Total segment assets NEEERE 395,567 492,091
Interests in associates RN - - 1,919
Investment properties wWEYE - 15,900
Deposits in a financial institution A& R IE 2 175k 89,780 67,356
Unallocated bank balances and & EsR1T4 62 IR &
cash 14,485 41,905
Unallocated corporate assets KoBE AR EE 1,315 1,420
Consolidated total assets HEEEME 501,147 620,591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. W@ R72MEE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) TEBE &)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (c) 2BEEREE(E)
2024 2023
—F-NmE | == =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Segment liabilities PEEE
Hotel hospitality business B JE AT 28,747 36,597
Money lending services BEERE 349 -~
Liquor and wine R E M 133 2,297
Investments in listed securities LB HERE 25 25
Total segment liabilities NDEBEERE 29,254 38,919
Current tax payable FETBNEARH IR 2,147 2,399
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE 33,058 37,803
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO BARIAE 2,645 15,322
Consolidated total liabilities FeEBEERE 67,104 94,443
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frS R ERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. W R72MEE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) TEBRE &)
(d) Other segment information (d HthoEEHR
For the year ended 30 June 2024 BE-_Z-_MFEXRA=THLHF

E

Hotel Money Investments

hospitality lending Liquor in listed
business services and wine securities Unallocated Total

EERE L%

2H EERHE EEER B#& AR it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR TR

Amounts included in the measure st A2 BENSFES

of segment profit or loss or AREETEZEE:

segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets REFNBEE 1,535 13 - - - 1,548
Depreciation of property, nx BEREZENE

plant and equipment (3,702) (342) - - - (4,044)
Reversal of impairment loss on other - R EUNFEREEHE

receivables and deposits BB - - - 157 - 157
Reversal of impairment lossonloans ~— EME SR EEEAR

receivable - 200 - - - 200
Interest income from banks and BOREBEETSMA

a financial institution 1 2 401 1 4,386 4791
Netloss on fair value change of financial AT B ABRZ £ 8

assets at fair value through profit EELATEEY

orloss BiEFE - - = (41,547) - (#1,547)
Amounts regularly provided to the  EHETZEERRH

chief operating decision-maker REBIETALE

but not included in the measure ~ ERAFEH B2 EE:

of segment profit or loss:
Finance costs BERA (246) (30) - - (#16) (692)
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e MERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)
(d) oOther segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Hotel
hogpitality
busingss
it

HKS'000
TAL

Amounts included in the measure 3t A2 R AFHES

of segment profit or loss or PEEEHEZEE:

segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE 1427
Depreciation of property, n% BERAENE

plant and equipment (3989)
Impairment loss on property, NE - BERRERE

plant and equipment EE 9,801
Impairment loss on other receivables  EtERFUER K45 (E

and deposits BE -

Impairment loss onloans receivable  EEFRERE
Interest income from banks and FIREBEETBMA
afinancial institution 1

Net loss on fair value change of BRTEFABR 2R
financial assets at fair value through ~ AE 2 AFEEE 2
profit or loss BEFE -

Amounts regularly provided to the BRI ¥ EEBRKE
chief operating decision-maker  EHRBURHASE
but not included in the measure RIS FEHE2
of segment profit or loss: 8!
Finance costs RENK (315)

Money
lending
Services

HKS'000
47

ZECUFFER o BEFEFEEERAT

6. BRRIBWWE ©)

DEBE (&)

d) HtoEER(E)
HE_ZT—
=4

Liquor

and wine

BEEm
HK$'000
TR

Investments

in listed
Unallocated

(260) -

181 2,32

(43,732) -

- (1,130)

e
S

=FERNA=THILHF

1427
(3989)
(9.801)

(260)
(8693

2,529

(43732

(1457)
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& MR RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 &= —

T-MERAS+AILFE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(e) Geographic information
The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong
Kong (place of domicile), the PRC and Japan.

The Group's revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets (other
than financial assets) by geographical markets are
detailed as below:

6. BRRHSBMEE @)

B|EEE)
h & &
REB LB TEMAED
(REIME) - PEIRBAR -

(e)

AEB R R TIZE D KB IR
BEPZWahBREFRBDEE
(ERMEBERIN) 2BERFELT

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

170

REIREF ZWz FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“ECMT N TN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FERT FAT
Hong Kong B 6,534 5,489 1" 17,819
The PRC i 2,206 119 - -
Japan H R 22,526 25,551 240,443 270,459
31,266 31,159 240,454 288,278

The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the goods and services
are delivered. The geographical location of non-

BEPZHIBMNE IEX N Em &R
RIGAAEMEME ° IFRBDEE
ZHBNEDNIREEZERUE

current assets is based on the physical location of M E °
the assets.
(f) Major customers H FEEF

There is no external customer whose revenue is
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for the
years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023.

BE_Z-_MFR-FT-_=ZFRX

A=Z1THLFE  WEEFINT
EPRGEBEBAKE KR Z
10% °
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Interest income from banks and a

7. RftltARME

RITREREEFE WA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

2023
—ET-=F

HK$'000
TAET

financial institution 4,791 2,529
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 14) 1 & — M B A 7] 2 Wz
(PF3E14) 101 -
Gain on disposal of interest HEREE QR 2R
in associates (note 18) Z Wz (FFFE18) 82 -
Government subsidies (note) BR AT # Bh (B E) - 32
Rental income from investment wEMEZHSEA
properties 170 510
Other sundry income H A MBI A 376 346
5,520 3,417

Note:

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the government subsidies
represented a subsidy under Employment Support Scheme launched

B EE

by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Ak -

HE_T_=FA=ZTHLLFE BFHE
EEBRAITHERA L RMETEET 2
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

172

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

=

FEBRANER
PSRBT R TN/ (GEA) T3

Auditor's remuneration % BRI B & 1,600 1,750

Depreciation expense in respect of: ERATHSEZIWERY !

Owned assets (note (a)) BEEE (M:E@) 3,704 3,989

Right-of-use assets (note (a)) EREEE (@) 340 -

4,044 3,989

Cost of inventories recognised as BRBAZZFERA -

expense, including: BIE 16,697 17,522

— Write-down of inventories — FE MU 603 —
(Reversal of impairment 10ss)/ ERER OREEE

impairment loss of loans |, RmESE

receivable (note 21) (fF3E21) (200) 8,693
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ Ha e IA R IZ S

impairment loss on other receivables — CR{EE 1B [E) M (E

and deposits (note 20) E518 (P35 20) (157) 260
Impairment loss on property, plant Y% - WERE&EBERE

and equipment (note 15) E518 (M45E15) - 9,801
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®RFAHAY (BEES

directors’ remuneration) (note (b)): <) (FFFE®D)) -
Salaries and allowances e MEh 9,476 10,032
Contributions to retirement benefit RRE A E B

schemes 459 647

Short term lease expenses (note 27) RHRER X (:E27) 414 261

Exchange losses, net ME H 1R F 5 668 184

Notes: 5T -

(a) Depreciation expense of HK$3,501,000 (2023: HK$3,772,000) has (a) Y ER % 3,501,000 L (ZFE ==
been included in cost of sales, and HK$543,000 (2023: 3,772,000 ) EFT ASHE KA - i
HK$217,000) in general and administrative expenses. 543,000/ 7T (ZZ = =4 : 217,000/% JT)

B A—MRITHAX -
()  Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ remuneration) b EEEAMAZ (BEESHE) 4,979,000

of HK$4,979,000 (2023: HK$5,132,000) has been included in cost
of sales, and HK$4,956,000 (2023: HK$5,547,000) in general and
administrative expenses.

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WF SA=+HIFE

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

Defined contribution pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The Scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement benefits
beyond the employer contributions. Contributions under
the Scheme are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
PRC.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Japan are required to participate in
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans.
Contributions are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

FRrsMATE IR (@)

EREHRBRARESER

REBRER G IERBE ST BIEOIR
BEBETAHERTESRIKEN G
g ([afESarall) - HRREBENR
FE-EAOLEL RRERES
AEVRAIEMNEEREINNG - 2ES
AEIEEEAEBEENF BB
BERESHA AKRBZEREHFR
R Es EERERKRERMA -

AEERPEARIMBE ((HE]) K
EEBZHBARZEREAZ2Eb
HHERFEE 2R RERGTE - %F
fBARIARTIEKAETADLRA
R R ARG BN - FHEIAER DR
KEEXNZREREZEE  KIE
EHRON - REEBAERRAKK
AR HEMERRENE PE-TEE -
AR RN RIED BDER BN RS
IR

AEERBALERBZMBRRZ
& B 7R 7 RR H FOR IRFT IR - it
RREERURBFREBERARRAR
P
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND 9. EEFMLRAEABEREHFAL
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Particulars of the remuneration of the directors and the UTAAXFREERAE R T AL
five highest paid individuals for the year were as follows: ZHEER
Year ended 30 June 2024 BE-Z-_NEANA=1THLEE

Salaries and Contributions
allowances to retirement

and benefit benefit
Fees and kind schemes Total
Hek
REUAR BAREA
e FEREY AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Cheng ChiKin (note ) BT B A (B EE) - 367 12 379
Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe EkkE - 845 18 863
Non-executive director FHTES
Ms. CHU Yin Yin Georgiana AEFELL (M)
(note i) 60 - - 60
Independent non-executive BYEHTEE
directors
Mr. Chiu Wai On BELZEE 180 - - 180
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE 180 - - 180
Mr. To Chun Wai (note iv) HIRELE (V) 180 - - 180
Total @t 600 1,212 30 1,842

174 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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e MERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

9. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2023

e
S

EEFMURAEBEEFAL
(%)
HE_ZT_=ZFA=1+BLFE

Salaries  Contributions
and allowances  to retirement

and benefit benefit
Fees and kind schemes Total
Hek
AR RREH
ks FEREY FTEIER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Cheng Chi Kin (note i) 87254 (P EED) - 520 18 538
Mr. Wong Siu Keung Joe EkkE - 844 18 862
Independent non-executive BIFHUTEES
directors
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZEE 180 - - 180
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BRIREAE 180 - - 180
Dr. Sheung Kwong Cho (note iii) 7 ¢ 481§ 1 (B &Eiii) 114 - - 114
Mr. To Chun Wai (note v) HIRE LS (V) 37 - - 37
Total @t 51 1,364 36 1,911
Notes: Bi5E -

(i) Mr. Cheng Chi Kin was resigned as executive director with
effect from 1 March 2024.

(if) Ms. CHU Yin Yin Georgiana was appointed as non-executive
director with effect from 1 March 2024.

(i)~ Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho was resigned with effect from 17
February 2023.

(iv)  Mr. To Chun Wai was appointed as independent non-executive
director with effect from 18 April 2023.

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HFEREFH T _PNFE=H— HiEE
FHITES -
ZEBIERTES -

BHrEEEB - E_=F_A++tAHE
BT -

MiEEE+EE - _=FW0A+ B
BEERBUIENITES -
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e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023.

Disclosures required by Section 383 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
information about benefits of directors) regulation (Cap.
622G) and Listing Rules:

(@ The executive directors’ remuneration shown
above was mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group during the years ended
30 June 2024 and 2023.

(b)  The non-executive and independent non-executive
directors’ remuneration shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company and
the Group during the years ended 30 June 2024
and 2023.

(c) None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 30
June 2024 and 2023.

(d) During the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors.

(e) No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2023:
Nil).

9.

;?ﬁﬂll&&i%ﬁﬁﬁki
&

EEVERHE _ST_ONELE_F
__EAH_+E¢$§¢ﬁEﬂ§
BN EXREHREEME -

ic8 - UNGIE =3 J(%622E)§E3831bﬁ‘ N
Bl (HEEEFZER) B (622G
E)NMETRAREMBEEZER

@) iY%fﬂﬁ%%Z%Miyﬁ
FREE—Z _V_EJE&—v —
FRA=ZTHLEFEREAR
$%E$%%ﬁ%ﬁz%%°

() EXFRRIEMITRBLIENITE
ECHMEESRREBEZE
“MER—ZE_=ZF,A=TH
HFEERARARAEEES
R R -

© MMEBEEFRBE_FT_NFR-
E_=FRXA=ZTRHLFEER
HR Sl i BRI 4% LE BR A5 AR A ©

d) BE-_T-NFER-FT=_FK
A=+THLFE HMEREEL
XERERENOEE AR KA
ERESEHEZERELE
R BUERREMI SR -

@ RERIAFRNEMERE  HE
FEAA AR ZEFMEARAF
EBMEBERAARAEER
ﬁ#%&ﬁﬁ&i?ﬁ&éﬁ%\ Z

R REREHN(ZTE=F:
&) e
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e MERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND 9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
one (2023: two) executive directors of the Company,
details of whose remuneration are included above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2023: three)
individuals for the year ended 30 June 2024 were as

EEFHMLURABEREFAL

(%)

AEEBREESFALTH  Hb—F
(ZZEZ=F WRB) BEARRHTE
B HFEZHEFBHR L -HT
WE(ZTEZ=F: =%) ATREZE
—E_NMENA=THIEEEZHS

follows: (I NI
2023
—ET-=F
HK$'000
FET
Salaries and allowance e KoERL 2,064 1,715

Contributions to retirement RARAE FFT B R

benefit schemes 36 18
2,100 1,733

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$0-HK$1,000,000 07 7T & 1,000,000 7 7T

FEA L 2 B2 FIA T AR

Number of individuals
AE

2024
—ENF

2023
—ET-=F

4 3

No share options were granted to non-director, highest
paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group
for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023.

There were no arrangement under which the above
non-director, highest paid individuals waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration for the years ended 30 June
2024 and 2023. No compensation for loss of office has
been paid by the Group for any individual for the years
ended 30 June 2024 and 2023.

BHE_ZT-_NWNFE_FT-=9"H
—t+HREFEMEEEER T AL
LA AN B AR 2 ARG AT AT BE R
T o

HE_Z-_NMFR_ZFE-_=ZF7-A
“t+BIFE LHFEEESHA
THERBENLHEREIAETRL
FAMEe BE_Z-_MERK_-F
TZEXNAZTHIEEE  AEEW
mR AR A TR E o
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

10.

11.

178

FINANCE COSTS 10. AR &

2024 2023
—EomE | —F =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TAET
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 246 315
Interest on other loans HihE A B 416 1,130
Interest on lease liabilities (note 27) FE & EH & (MEE27) 30 12
692 1,457

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax was provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong
for both years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for
the current and prior periods as the Group has no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to
enterprise income tax (“EIT") at tax rates of 25% for both
years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023. No provision for
PRC EIT has been made for the current and prior
periods as the Group has no assessable profits arising
in the PRC.

The Group is also subject to PRC withholding tax at the
rate of 10% in respect of dividend income derived from
PRC incorporated companies for the year ended 30
June 2023.

Under the relevant Japan tax regulations, the profits of
the business under tokumei kumiai arrangement (“TK
Arrangement”) which is distributed to a tokumei kumiai
investor after deducting any accumulated losses in prior
years is subject to the tax rate 20.42%. There is no tax
paid or payable for the both years ended 30 June 2024
and 2023 as there are no distribution reserves.

11. IS IRER

HE-_Z-_MFEFR-_ZT=-_=FA
“+HIEMEEE REEEEZHE
BT FE R B E M IR K 16.5% 1E H & B
FEHBEE ARNAEBERAERE X
BEBEYEEEBELRRATRN
MW B BB RS THAIE D -

HE-_Z-_MFEFR-_ZT=-_=FA
=+HIEMEEE  RP B2 K
BARBERRE25% M XS/
(BRI - ARASEE R A H
MBI EERBREERRY
A I ER R B ERERED
Bt o

BT - A=+tHILHFE"
AEBIMARNFRFMELAHAR]
BT 2 B B R A 3R B 2R 10% S Al
BT o

BEBEEBEAARBRI  EREHE
B(ERBHZH]D BTEBR &M
(R BTFEEMRTEEBES
KE—RERBHIEESE) BIRHEE
2042% I - AR E D IR FE - W
HE-_Z-_MFEFER-_ZT-_=FA
=+ HIEMEFELES N REMT
18 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continuea) 1. IR IRER &)
The subsidiary established in Japan is subject to HE-_Z_HNFERZT==FA
prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes on a per =+BHLEFE - RABEAKIZZHBR
capita basis in accordance with the relevant Japan tax AIZEMRIE ARG B AR SR AR A E
regulations for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023. B REERS
2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET
Current tax B ERFR 18
— The PRC — - 220
— Japan — B 7 8
Deferred tax R IR (844) (2,816)
Total income tax credit FrisBi e iass (837) (2,588)
Income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss RENFAEHEGES 2 EWRKDOM
before income tax per the consolidated statement of BHBIBEHERNT

comprehensive income as follows:

2024 2023
—E-E —E =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax FriS Bl B 18 (71,608) (72,419)
Tax on loss before income tax, RERREEHRERE
calculated at the rates applicable  #EE&FH K EH
to the tax jurisdictions concerned  FT15 i A E5 18 718 (11,802) (12,415)
Tax effect of expenses not TR A N HIELE
deductible for tax purposes 11,408 9,729
Tax effect of income not taxable for H7B4F WA B FH 18 2 &
tax purposes (2,297) (1,608)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERHEBEENHIBEZE
recognised 1,854 1,706
Total income tax credit PR3l 4858 (837) (2,588)
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e M RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THIFE

12. DIVIDEND 12. KR
The Board does not recommend the payment of any EESTEENRBE-_T_NF A
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil). StTHEFERNEMERE (ZF

TTFE )

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREG IR
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is EREARBEEBNIEARRER
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of ABERFRNBEBERERNFRND EHITYE
the Company and the weighted average number of BIRMEFHEGEHE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2023
—ET-=F

HK$'000
TAET

Loss for the year attributable to RETEEREARRE S
owners of the Company for the BB ZARBEE A
purpose of calculating basic and R ARF AEE
diluted loss per share (70,771) (69,831)

Number of shares
%0 & B

2024 2023

—E-ME —E=F
‘000 ‘000
T F A%

Weighted average number of ordinary  F{EstE SR EAR KL
shares for the purpose of calculating BEEE R LBk

basic and diluted loss per share e 1 8 15,695,532 15,695,532
Diluted loss per share amount for the years of 2024 and AT EEELTBR W _MF
2023 is the same as basic loss per share because there ERZT_=FE28REEEES
is no potential ordinary shares. HEGREARNEEMRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE-ZT_FA=THILFE

14. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of Goldkeen Limited (“Goldkeen”)
On 4 December 2023, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its entire equity interests of Goldkeen at a
consideration of HK$1,700,000. Gain on disposal
amounted to HK$101,000 for the year ended 30 June
2024 was analysed as follows:

14. HE—RHRE LT

HESRERAR(S®E)
RZEZ=F+=-AMA - AN&EBHEH
—BBUYBE=AFIN R AHEHR
RE 2R - K& %&1,700,000
/%713 %Z;ZE_?_V_EJQE/\H ‘T‘EIJJ:
FE - HEREA101,0008 7T - 247
wnr

Net assets disposed of: EREEEFE:
Investment properties (note 16) HEWE (H5E16) 14,485
Deposits and other receivables B NCH M HE B IE 131
Other payables H b fE FRI8 (97)
Borrowings B (12,920)
1,599
Less: Proceeds from disposal W S FTS RIE (1,700)
Gain on disposal o W (101)
Net cash inflows arising on disposal HEEE RS RAFE 1,700

Cash consideration of HK$1,700,000 from the disposal
of Goldkeen has been fully received by the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2024.

%ii_Q_Ei/\H_+EIJJ:$F"
rEFEERHEREEERRMERS
{& 1,700,000 7T °
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

15. R - BE R

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment,
Right-of-use Freehold Leasehold furnitureand ~ Plant and Motor
assets land Buildings  improvements fixtures  machinery vehicles
RRE XA g ®fE GAR HER
- EELH BT nERE BERE B hE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T ; T T ThL
COST: HA:
At 1July 2022 R-Z-Z%th-A 653 161,001 235,601 2318 2477 2,148 131 405,569
Additions RE - - - 1,083 374 - - 1427
Written off i = - - (505) (99) (209) - (809)
Exchange realignment EiEE - (9,240) (13521) (159) (168) (113) (38) (23239
At30June 2023and 1July 2023 R-E-=FEXA=1REK
“E-=EtR-R 653 151,761 22,080 2,707 2,588 1826 133 382948
Additions RE - - - 688 628 - 232 1,548
Lease modification HEEH 679 - - - - - - 679
Written off s (653) - - - 0] - (707) (1.369)
Exchange realignment EHEE - (15905) (23274) (333) (299 (191) (83 (40,079)
At 30 June 2024 R-Z-mEXB=TH 679 135,8% 198,806 3062 2914 1,635 775 343727
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Bt ERBEFS !
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES:
At 1July 2022 R-Z-Z%tf-A 653 30,657 66,944 2318 2477 2,148 131 106,568
Provided for the year KEREE - - 3884 18 87 - - 3989
Written off i - - - (505) (%) (209) - (809)
Impairment loss recognised ERIAESSE - 4318 5440 34 9 - - 9,801
Exchange realignment B EE - 2353 (4,291) (111 (154) (13 (38) (7,060)
At30June 2023and 1July 2023 R=-Z-=FXF=1EEK
“EZ=EtR-R 653 3262 nan 1754 2,32 1826 133 12,489
Provided for the year REREE 340 - 3405 n 137 - 50 4,04
Written off K (653) - - - ] - (707) (1.369)
Exchange realignment EHEE - (3419 (7,789) (190) (22) (191) (70 (11,891
At 30 June 2024 R-Z-mENB=ZTR 300 29,03 67633 1,63 220 1,635 606 130,273
NET CARRYING AMOUNT: BEFE:
At 30 June 2024 R-B-MEXB=ZTH 339 106,653 131173 1426 694 - 169 200454
At 30 June 2023 R-B-Z§xB=1H - 119,139 150,103 953 264 - - 210459
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

As at 1 July 2022, 30 June 2023
and 1 July 2023

e
S

15. W% - BB RiE (2)

EHEEE

Land and
buildings
leased for
own use
=SR]

HE i
kEF
HK$'000
FHET

R-FBE-ZHtA—-8"
—g-=#xA=+ARK

—E-=%+H—H -
Lease modification MEEKR 679
Depreciation e (340)
As at 30 June 2024 RZE-ZMEXA=1+H 339

The freehold land is situated in Japan.

Property, plant and equipment with the brought forward
net carrying amount HK$240,104,000 (2023:
HK$280,260,000) (before the current year impairment
loss) is attributable to the cash-generating unit of hotel
hospitality (“Hotel Hospitality Business CGU") with which
the goodwill amount is recognised. As at 30 June 2024,
the Directors reviewed the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment in Hotel Hospitality
Business CGU as the business incurred losses. Hotel
Hospitality Business CGU continuously faced the
relatively low occupancy rate. This had adverse impact
on the estimation of the recoverable amount. Based on
the result of assessment, no further impairment loss
(2023: impairment loss of HK$9,801,000) has been
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2024.

“ECEFR o ERHMEREEERAT

KAEREL AT A o

45 B8 B T % E /240,104,000 7T (=
T~ =4 : 280,260,000 7T) (1 &
FEREBEEERA) 2UE BERE
HEBRBIERFZREEESM (B
EREEBBReELEN])  EmE
LHOEBR R _ZT-_ME A
=+H BARNBERFESEEEIE -
HEEEEMBEERFERREEE
BUZYE  BEREEAIKESEE -
BIERFESReEEEUFEER
EEEEAEER  HralkE e E b
EETHTE - BREFHER  RE
E-TET-_NEXA=1HIFEEHE
BRAE—TREEBEB(ZE =4
SR E18 9,801,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE—_Z_WFSA=+HILFE

15.

184

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the Hotel Hospitality
Business CGU is determined by the Directors of the
Company with reference to a valuation report issued by
an independent professional valuer. The recoverable
amount of the Hotel Hospitality Business CGU has been
determined from fair value less cost of disposal (which
is higher than its value-in-use), in which fair value is
primarily making reference to the recent sales of similar
transactions in the market and cost of disposal is
estimated at 3.5% (2023: 3.5%) of assessed fair value. It
is Level 3 non-recurring fair value measurement. The
key significant unobservable input to determine is the
discount on age, location and condition. The higher
discount on these factors would result in the lower in
the fair value measurement of the fair value, and vice
versa.

As at 30 June 2024, property, plant and equipment with
the brought forward net carrying amount of HK$350,000
(before the current year impairment loss) is attributable
to money lending business. As at 30 June 2024, the
Directors reviewed the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment in the business segment
of money lending business as the business incurred
losses. No interest income has been recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: HK$390,000) since
there was no new loan for the year. As such, money
lending business incurred losses for the years ended 30
June 2024 and 2023.

As at 30 June 2024, the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment in the business segment of money
lending business is based on value-in-use calculations.
That calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering a five-year period, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flow at zero growth rate
which do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the
business in which the money lending business operates.
Based on the result of the assessment, the
management of the Group determined that no
impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 30 June 2024 and 2023.

15.

MR- -BWEREME )

EREEE (&)
BERGEGRSELEM 2T KD
ERIVAARAREELLERHIUER
HEMMBERGERSMEE - B/E
REEBRSELELM 2 AT O S
BAVERLERAMERE (2R
SREERER)  ATFEXTEZ2E
M5 MBALUR ZHE - M HEK
R HERAFENIS®% (ZF
Z=F 35%) mE - WREBEIN
FREURAFEAE BEEMANE
ZEANABRGABEBERFY 1
BRI BEIRE - 2 FHEENEE
BEBA XFENAFEFELE -
[RZ IR

R-ZZE-WNFNA=+H"  £HET
JF {8 4 350,000 7T (30 AN F IR E
BB Z2UE BEARZRERBR
EBEEK RZTE-_NFA=+H"
HMNMEEEBELEER MEEFEH
ZEBHIEZYVE BERRBEZT
WEERE AREE_T_MF A
ZTHLEFETEFER  HITER
ZEEBIBMNBERA(ZE=_=F:
390,000 7T) - At - EE X BN E
E-TNER_ZTE_ZFA=ZF
HItFEEALEIE -

R-Z-WNENA=+TH EHEEK
DE2ME - BEREE2TKE S
BORERAEAEFESL - it EF
AUAAREEEEEMILERERFH
ZHBEEREM RS RETEN -
EMATBBEEEBMECEEBLH
REREERNTHEREXELETTHES
NE - BREFGHER ~5EERE
RERBE_FT_NFR T _=4F
NAZTHIEFESEERRERIE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. RBEYME

////

2023

—ZEZ=F

HK$'000

FHET

At beginning of the year G 15,900 19,000
Net deficit on revaluation of KEMESHBAFR

investment properties (1,415) (3,100)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 14)  H& — KB R A (M5E14) (14,485) -

At end of the year RER - 15,900

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties
at the disposal date and 2023 has been assessed by an
independent professional valuer using direct
comparison method. Net deficit on revaluation of
HK$1,415,000 (2023: HK$3,100,000) has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2024.

In December 2024, the Company has completed the
disposal of investment properties through disposal of a
subsidiary at a consideration of HK$1,700,000. The
details of the disposal are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. As at 30 June 2023,
investment properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$15,900,000 have been pledged to
secure borrowing facilities granted to the Group (note
26).

RHEBSE T -=F AR A&
BYEZ AN FET BB BEGERM
FREELLBRETTE - ARAE
REBEZE-_Z_NFA=THILFE
ZieaemBERTEREGEMTF
%81,415,0008 0 (Z T = = F :
3,100,000 7T) °

RZEBE-WNF+=-A  KRFRIEEB
(B 1,700,000% 7T & — R B A
AN EREME - NEFBERN
BAMBHRERMF4 R -=4F
SNAZ=+H8 - RmE4EE A15900,000
BILZBBREYECERR  UIE
REAEEEX 2 EERE (MzE26) °
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1\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. EME &)
Fair value hierarchy ATFEER
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 WEMELAFEBFEIRLTFTHEATF
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of BitE FYVIRFRATFTELEHRLEER
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided E /(A
below:
2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET
Opening balance FUEH
(level 3 recurring fair value) (BI/EEMENFE) 15,900 19,000
Net deficit on revaluation of KEMEEHBAFRE
investment properties (1,415) (3,100)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 14)  H& — KB R A (H5E14) (14,485) -
Closing balance FRREER
(level 3 recurring fair value) (BIMBEMENTE) = 15,900
Change in unrealised losses for the HiRmt/~ A =+H
period included in profit or loss FrisEEFFABRZ
for assets held at 30 June REMEBES = (3,100)
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #EHZE—_Z_WMFSA=+HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. BEME (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Company’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

For the fair value measurement for investment
properties under direct comparison method, it is
assumed that each of the properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant markets.

One of the key unobservable inputs used under direct
comparison method in valuing the investment
properties was the price per square feet, which takes
into account the differences in time, location, condition,
age and other individual factors between comparable
transactions. The price per square feet used is HK$6,404
(2023: HK$7,029). An increase in the price per square
feet would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage increase, and vice versa.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

DY ESFHKE)
REBEE_ZE_NEFER_FT_=F,XH
=STHIEFE  F1REF2H ML
MERIEE NEEEBAEIRK
BEIFEH ARAZHERABNRE
BIEELBE CMERARERSATE
EHRBEBREENR -

RRBERLBLFEREMELT
EMs BARERSEVEITRAER
ARXRELE YELEEETHARF
Z A BB ERE

FEEEMER  BBEEBELEAFE
AZEETAEBERGASE s —AS
FHREW® EFEARATELRR
SZEERR e R BE K
H@ENEAZR Lt =82 -FTASEAS
RERB6AAB T (T = =F :
7029%87L) B AREWR EHAEE
BIREWE QAT EFT2RER 2L M
EEBIEIN - RZTRER ©

AFEHEDRE DANEZER
BEMB N %5 M REERA
23 R -
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

GOODWILL 17. 58
HK$'000
FET
COST: RN :
At 1 July 2022 R-E-_—_FtA—H 45,407
Exchange realignment bE 5 T 2 (2,606)
At 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023 R-ZBE-=FEXA=+HEK
—E-=ftH—H 42,807
Exchange realignment ME W, (4,485)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZB-ZNFEARA=1+H 38,316
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES: 2 BEERE :
At 1 July 2022 e o o = el = 45,407
Exchange realignment ME W R (2,606)
At 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023 R-BZ=FXA=+tHK
—E-_=%+tH—H 42,801
Exchange realignment ME W (4,485)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-_NFEXA=1+H 38,316
NET CARRYING AMOUNT.: ERMEEE :
At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-_MEASA=1+H -
At 30 June 2023 R-E-=FXA=1+H -
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is RETRENR HEIRENATH
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGU") identified BrReEESN (REEEEM]) -
as follows:
HK$°000
FExT
Year ended 30 June 2024 BZEZ-Z_-_MEXNA=1THLEE
Hotel hospitality business B IE R T 38,316
HK$'000
FHET
Year ended 30 June 2023 BZE-_Z-_=FXA=1+HLEE
Hotel hospitality business B JE SRR 42,801
The goodwill was arising from the acquisition of hotel HMEEABBTFEWRELERGE
hospitality business and was fully impaired in the % WEBBURE °
previous years.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. R EATFIZCES

2023
—ZEZ=F
HK$'000
FHET
At beginning of the year G 1,919 3,235
Share of loss for the year DIERFRNEE (101) (1,316)
Disposal k= (1,818) =
At end of the year RER - 1,919

Details of the Group's associates are as follows: AEB 2B ERBFBEOT -

Particulars of Place of Percentage of
Name of company issued capital  incorporation interest held Principal activities
NGIEE ERITRAFE ZTMRLBE FERET DL ETEEK

2024 2023
“ENE 2=

Ming Fong Group Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong - 31.2% Dormant
("Ming Fong")
HEEEERARDA 10,0005 7T B e E 0
(repe])
On 11 December 2023, the Group entered into an RZEZ=F+=ZA+—H FK&5H
agreement with an independent third party to dispose WH—RBYE=FELHE NEE
of the equity interests of Ming Fong at a consideration 75A ek $ZE” R A& & 1,900,000 7%
of HK$1,900,000. Gain on disposal amounted to o HEWZ A820008 TERNERE
HK$82,000 has been recognised in the consolidated “E_NFERAZTRHIEFEZES
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended PHYBERPER BE_T_MNF
30 June 2024. Cash consideration of HK$1,900,000 from ~NA=+A8 Jt¢§ CAREEE R EE
the disposal has been fully received by the Group during & P15 £ K& 1,900,000 % 7T °

the year ended 30 June 2024.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REBEBAFIZHE &)

The summarised financial information of the Ming Fong HEREWE AR (BAEEE]) A8
and its subsidiaries (“Ming Fong Group”) extracted from BERBENT  DHEgeEEET
its management accounts for the year ended 30 June E=FANA=-THILEFEMNERR
2023 is as follows: H:
2023
B =F
HK$'000
FHT
Ming Fong Group BHEEE
As at 30 June RAB=+H
Current assets MBEE 6,525
Current liabilities mBEE (375)
Net assets EEFE 6,150

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest AEBRHALERN

in Ming Fong Group: FERNWER :

Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB AL 31.2%

Group's share of net assets of the associate A& E 5 (h FY B & A 7]
BEFAE 1,919
Carrying amount of the investment KENREE 1,919
2023
—E=4F
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue Wz -
Loss for the year KENEE (4,218)
Other comprehensive income His 2 EUA -
Total comprehensive income 2HE A LEE (4,218)
Dividend received from the associate B2 U R AR R -

Reconciliation to the Group’s share of EEESEHERE

result in Ming Fong Group: HEENEE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBER AL 31.2%
Group'’s share of loss of associates KEBEDEMEE QA ER (1,316)
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consumables JHFE M 165 165
Merchandise (Gl 2,950 3,681
3,115 3,846
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 20. RZEWIREIR - iR
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND B -EBeRAMRIE
PREPAYMENTS
—EUE B =4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Trade receivables B EWERE 3,842 816
Less: Provision for impairment R EBERE
losses (117) (116)
Trade receivables, net (note a) 25 EWERTE SR (MisEa) 3,725 700
Other tax recoverable H {th AT Ue 21 75 18 1,642 1,494
Other receivables (note b) Hth Uy 58 (BPsEDb) 2,994 82,384
Deposits and prepayments e NI FRIR 1,454 216
9,815 84,794
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Notes:

@)

192

“MEARA=THLEEE

The Group allows credit period of 0 to 365 days (2023: 0 to 365

days) to its customers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision for
impairment losses, based on invoice date, is as follows:

i

@)

AEBGTEEPEEHNT0EISH
(ZZE-_=F:0E365R) °

REZAHEHRREBRBEFRZE
SRR RIER R AT T

2023
—E-=F

HK$'000

Within 30 days 30EA 925 666
31-60 days 31E60H 49 22
Over 90 days 90 H LA k£ 2,751 12

3,725 700

There is no collateral for trade receivables as at 30 June 2024
and 2023.

The movements in the expected credit loss for trade receivables
for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

RZE_NER—TE_=FA=+H"
B S REWARTB Y SRR o

HE_Z-_NWFR-_ZT-_=F-~A=+

ALFERSRUREZ EREEER
T

2024 2023

—E-mEF —E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

At 1 July RtA—H 116 126
Exchange realignment b 5 2 1 (10)
As at 30 June RANA=+H 117 116

Other receivables as at 30 June 2023 mainly represented the
receivable from an independent third party of HK$79,500,000 as
at 30 June 2023, which was settled during the year ended 30
June 2024. Loss of HK$23,002,000 has been arising from
settlement of receivable by way of shares in another entity
listed on the Stock Exchange.

The movements in the expected credit loss for the other
receivables for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 are as
follows:

RoTB-—=ZFEXA=Zt+HZEMERK
HEZAR_ZT_—FA=+HXE
—RBILE =5 2 FEUWFKIE 79,500,000 7%
T ZREERBEZSWFE AT
B FE& - E51823,002,000/%8 T A
DR RFT ETM S —EEARMD &N
JEMGRIBIME & ©

BE_ZT-_MER=
Eiiﬁﬁ%%%
gEmT

7——@/\)% +
XIERTEHEEREE

2023

—E_=4F

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 July RtA—H 393 153
(Reversal of expected credit loss)/ RNER(BHEEBERE) TEH

expected credit loss for the year EEEE (157) 260

Exchange realignment [ 5 A B (1) (20)

As at 30 June RA<A=+H 235 393

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

21. LOANS RECEIVABLE 21. B BE®

////

Gross loan and interest receivables & W & 3k & FI| 5 48 58
Less: impairment losses allowances J& : J8 (B &5 18 B &

2023
—ET-=F

HK$'000
TAET

229,055
(229,055)

230,689
(229,489)

= 1,200

As at 30 June 2024, the loans receivable with gross
principal amount of HK$146,894,000 (2023:
HK$161,894,000) in aggregate and related gross interest
receivables of HK$82,161,000 (2023: HK$68,795,000)
were due from seven (2023: eight) independent third
parties. These loans are interest-bearing at rates
ranging from 8% to 20% (2023: 5.5% to 20%) per annum.
All the loan receivables were repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and
therefore were classified as current assets.

As at 30 June 2024, the Group held collateral over
loans receivable with gross principal amount of
HK$46,833,000 (2023: HK$61,393,000).

Reversal of impairment loss of HK$200,000 (2023:
Impairment loss of HK$8,693,000) has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2024.

RZE_WNFENA=TH  EKt
FZ(ZEZ=F NR)BILF=ZFK
%ﬁgﬁm,\ué)g%oooﬁém(_?
= 1 161,894,000 7T) ~ fE W &
&*H%@F‘iﬂﬂlﬂgﬁ‘gﬁﬂm 00078
75(_2_:¢ 68,795,000 7T) °
Z% FTIEFRENTEEZE20E (=
——¢ 55EBEZEN0E)FE A
ngﬁgihﬁ,\ﬁ’\ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ{é‘f'_{lﬂm
fﬁ?& .lﬂ: ’\*57%,,|L;i§)j§F

EA_Q_E¢/\H +E| ZIK%.TJE
K& 485 546,833,000 T (B ==
F 1 61,393,000 7T) 2 FEWEF %E
Tﬁﬁuu"

B B &5 8 %% [21 200,000 7T (ZF = =
F - (B E718.8,693,000% T) B R EL
E_E_NERA=ZTHIEFENG
armkaERT R -
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

21. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 21. B &= (2
The movements in the impairment losses allowances HE_ZT_MOF B — — =F7XH
for loans receivable for the years ended 30 June 2024 “THLEFERRERZ BEBER
and 2023 are as follows: EHEHHWOT
2024 2023
—E-F —E =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
At 1 July BntB—H 229,489 204,033
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ RERCRERBEER),
impairment loss for the year BB E R (200) 8,693
Written off i 24 (16,515) -
Unwinding of discount on the BBREERBEER ZITE
credit-impaired loans 16,281 16,763
At 30 June RANA=+H 229,055 229,489
Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for loan HE_ZT-_NFE_T==FH
receivables for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 STRILEFERKERREAEB Y
are as follows: R

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1ER F2ER  F3ER At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TERr TERr T&r

Balance at 1 July 2022 R-ZE-_—H+B-RAz&& = 784 213,554 214,338
New financial assets originated KB # & R EE - 18 372 390
Unwinding of discount bR YTE - - 16,763 16,763
Repayment R = (802) - (802)

Balance at 30 June 2024 RZBE-ZNEXA=1THER

and 1 July 2023 “EC-ELA-HZ&H = - 230,689 230,689
Unwinding of discount BRI R - - 16,281 16,281
Repayment 'R = = (1,400) (1,400)
Written off ik - - (16,515)  (16,515)
Balance at 30 June 2024 RIBE-ZNERB=1THz&S - - 229,055 229,055

194 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME
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21. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 21. B &= (2
Movements in the expected credit loss in respect of HE-_Z_HNFERZT==FA
loan receivables for the years ended 30 June 2024 and =THIEFE BEAERERNER
2023 are as follows: EEBEZFHUT :
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1EE  FoRE  FEIRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET THET TAT
Balance at 1 July 2022 R-E-ZF+B-RAz&&H - 83 203,950 204,033
Expected credit l0ss BHEEEE - (83) 8,776 8,693
Unwinding of discount BRI R - - 16,763 16,763

Balance at 30 June 2023 R-ZBEZ=ZFXA=1+HEK

and 1 July 2023 —EBCZFtA-H2&H - - 229,489 229,489
Reversal of expected credit loss TEEA{Z & E 18 # D - - (200) (200)
Unwinding of discount R - - 16,281 16,281
Written off ik - - (16,515) (16,515)
Balance at 30 June 2024 R-B-_NEXB=THZES - - 229,055 229,055

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. FRFEGARZZEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2024
—E-E
HK$'000
FHET
Listed securities in Hong Kong EMEFECHEBLTMES
at market value (note) (BM3E) 131,326 118,186
Note: (T
For the year ended 30 June 2024, the fair value loss of listed securities Eﬁzi ZHEARAZTHLEFE LWEH
was HK$41,547,000 (2023: HK$47,471,000) which has been dealt with in ?LEEHE 741,547,000 T (ZE =45 :
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year 47 4710008 7L) F Z e EERBE_T_NF
ended 30 June 2024. NAZTHLEFENGE2EARERPEE -
The fair value of the listed securities is Level 1 recurring fair value ITTESFNATFEBS 1 REEERAFETE -
measurement.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 & ZE —

23.

196

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND
DEPOSITS IN A FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION

Bank balances and cash

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods ranging from one day to three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy financial institutions with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the bank deposits and bank balances and cash
approximate to their fair values.

Time deposits comprised of short-term bank deposits of
HK$10,576,000 (2023: HK$32,120,000) with an original
maturity of three months or less held by the Group. The
amounts carried interest 3.1%-4.9% (2023: 3.9%—4.6%)
per annum.

Bank balances as at 30 June 2024 of HK$1,584,000
(2023: HK$2,010,000) are denominated in RMB, which
are placed with banks in the PRC.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.
Under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Deposits in a financial institution

As at 30 June 2024, HK$89,780,000 (2023:
HK$67,356,000) was placed in a creditworthy licensed
financial institution with no recent history of default. The
short term time deposits earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates.

The carrying amounts of the deposits in a financial
institution are denominated in HK$ which are
approximate to their fair values.

B-MEAASTAILFE

23.

R 1745 85 B 3 & Ll B 1t o o ¢
WMzER

RITHESBRERS
RTREEBHBIERANERZ)ZH)
FIERMEFE - REBAETHTRZER
BN TF—HZ=Z@ATE  RTALE
B2 B IR & F kM jE - WK 5 H
TFHGFHF RBREF B - IRITESRTT
MR EERITARAVEERLRZ
TR RITERURBITESRK
Re7FEEHEEAFERS

iﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%éuﬁﬁa
%:flﬂ&LATE’JEHﬁEﬁﬁ
10,576,000 T (=& = = F :
32,120,000 7T) ° S E S ERERE
BIBERAE (ZE_=F:39B %
A6B)ETE o

RZZE_WNFENAZTHRTES
1,584,000/ 7T (=& = =4 : 2,010,000
BIL) TAARBEE  WHFERPEH
ZRIBIT o

ARETTEmLBARMEE 18
o0 B A PR S E S A AR AT - 8
BN EEEET  AEEEEES
AR T ONE RS 2 RITISA R
RiRAE M o

REBMEBZER
R-ZE-WNFA=FTH" AAFMA
1%5&%&;&%14&?@%5%2%#&
% B 17 189,780,000 7T (— &
_—E 67,356,000 1) - & = 5
T HATE SRR A8 R A8 E HA 13 3R R = B
HF &8, e

M%T%ZT? R BREETIAB T

uﬂﬁ NHEEE -

/\/\
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 24. S EFIRE « Rt EFHRIE
AND ACCRUALS REER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TAT
Trade payables (note (a)) B ZEMARE (@) 1,684 1,104
Other tax payable H b fE S 1 IR 1,679 1,774
Other payables and accruals B eI RIBE R ERTE R
(note (b)) (B 3E (b)) 3,713 2,801
7,076 5,679
Notes: B o -
(@)  The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is (a) HEZABZESENERERESITOT
as follows:
2024 2023
—E-_NF —ET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 30 days 308 & 1,677 1,053
31-60 days 31E60H = 33
61-90 days 61290 H - 10
Over 90 days 90 H Mk 7 8
1,684 1,104
() As at 30 June 2024, other payables and accruals consists of O R-TZEEFRA =+08  HthENKIE
accrued audit fee of HK$1,600,000 (2023: HK$1,750,000). K BB B B 4E FE 5T 25 4% B 3 1,600,000

BT (ZZ =4 : 1,750,000/ 7T) °
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. e¥AR
AHABEEACKBESFMNBEMNK
B AEEBRE R FEBERRR
FEHW G - 2ERAEELE  BR
T E-=ZFXA=1THZH&#%
2,343,000 8 T (HERARK
2,000,0007T) FEH A R R 1218 A 2 14

The contract liabilities mainly represented the advance
consideration received from customers. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in the future when or
as the goods is delivered. Except for the balance of
HK$2,343,000 (equivalent to RMB2,000,000) as at 30
June 2023, which is expected to occur beyond to the

next 12 months by reference to the latest track record, AN AR TEKRTBHRAKI2
all remaining balances are expected to occur within the &l A AEEAE -

next 12 months.

Movement of contract liabilities EHREBNES

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 1 July Rt A —BH&ER 2,378 2,651
Decrease in contract liabilities RERERR =L FIEH
balance at the beginning of the BEEBRR D
year as a result of recognising
revenue during the year (2,203) (883)

Increase in contract liabilities as a

HEWHRIESE WA EIEN

result of receipt in advance 72 801

Exchange realignment bE W R (33) (191)
Balance as at 30 June RANB=1+HW&Ee 214 2,378
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

26. BORROWINGS 26. & H

BHEMRITER
BEMEAME R
EEAE M E R

Bank loans, secured
Other loan, secured
Other loan, unsecured

2023
—ET-=F

HK$'000
TAET

24,260 33,604
— 12,000
= 580

24,260 46,184

Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment
on demand clause, borrowings are repayable as follows:

REERHHEMEFAFERBHAL
B REMREREEGRR2TE
FE/EEAL/(TH?@FWQ :

2024 2023
—EUE —Eo=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year —FR

FER THETT

24,260 46,184

Bank loans were secured by (i) land and building with
the carrying amount of HK$237,826,000 (2023:
HK$269,242,000) (note 15); (ii) the bank balances of
HK$582,000 (2023: HK$650,000); and (iii) the entire
equity interest of certain subsidiary as at 30 June 2024
and 2023.

The abovementioned bank loans are charged at floating
rates of 0.85% per annum (2023: 0.94% per annum).

As at 30 June 2023, other loan is secured by a legal
charge over investment properties with the carrying
amount of HK$15,900,000 and is charged at 9% per
annum.

R 17 B XA () BR T B & 237,826,000 7
T (T = =4 : 269,242,000 7T) 2
T REF (EE15) : () R1T 4 %
582,000/ 7T (=& = =4 : 650,000%
7o) R(iNETHEBEARN -Z M
FRZIEZ=FA=1THZE2ZK
REVEH R -

PR ITERTIRFEFEF KR0S E
(ZE-_=F  FRR0UAE)E -

R-E-_=FA=1TH EMHEX
LA B8R T {8 /2 15,900,000 7T 89 3% & )
ELATHREERT  WIRFEF KRB
A e

T OMFFR o ERHFEREEMERRT 199



N
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEA®
The amount included in the consolidated statement of FEMBRAKRMEERHEERER
financial position in respect of the carrying amounts of HEERRNFRNESHHSEAT
lease liabilities and the movements during the year is as
follows:
Land and
buildings
T REF
HK$'000
FHT
As at 1 July 2022 N-—ZB-=—#+tH—8 348
Interest expenses (note 10) FERMZ (KEE10) 12
Lease payments HER (360)
As at 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023 RZEBE-=FXA=THK
—E-=%+A-—H -
Lease modification HE BN 679
Interest expenses (note 10) FERZ (F15E10) 30
Lease payments MER (360)
As at 30 June 2024 R-ZB-WEXA=+H 349
Future lease payments are due as follows: REMENZOEHRERDOT :
2023
B =F
HK$'000
FET
Future lease payments due LA T B B 9
KRIRFME K
— Within one year ——FR 360 -
Less: future interest expenses W R B (11) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEHRE 349 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continuead) 27. HG& B »)
The present value of future lease payments are REMENFKBEENDHT :
analysed as:
2023
—ZEZ=F
HK$'000
FHT
Current liabilities mBaE 349 -
2024 2023
—F-NmE | = =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Short term leases expenses EHHEERY 414 261
Aggregate undiscounted EEIEE R KRB IR AL AR
commitments for short term
leases 327 196
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences
under the liability method using applicable tax rates
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

The following is the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised by the Group and their movements:

28. iEFERIF

A 018 T B PR A A A %
2 RTEM B E LR R
B REE -

UTAAEE R T BRTEHEA
BE/(AE) REZHER

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
business Tax
combination losses Total
k(Bast
BEEZ
AFEAR HIEEE Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2022 R-E=-=FtH—H (42,949) - (42,949)
Credited to profit or loss FFARFANE R
for the year (note 11) (BFEE11) 2,816 - 2,816
Exchange realignment bE 5 & 2,330 - 2,330
At 30 June 2023 and R-BZ=F
1 July 2023 ARA=THRK
—E-_=%tHA—H (37,803) - (37,803)
Credited to profit or loss FFARFEANER
for the year (note 11) (FF3E11) 756 88 844
Exchange realignment PE H % 3,907 6) 3,901
At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-NEF
~NHAE=+H (33,140) 82 (33,058)
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FREMBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HE—ZT_FA=THIFE

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. SBIEMIA (&)

/4

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

RREEMBMRRKREINME & T
BEERBEERABCEEE - AT
SR BHREN S HETCHBRGEHRE
TR AT

2023

—ET-=F

HK$'000

FET

Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 82 -
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEEE (33,140) (37,803)
(33,058) (37,803)

As at 30 June 2024, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$175,267,000 (2023:
HK$104,769,000), subject to the agreement of Inland
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. As at 30 June
2024, the Group has estimated unused tax losses arising
in the PRC amounted to HK$32,935,000 (2023:
HK$33,140,000) which are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies and will expire
at various dates for a maximum period of five years
from the reporting date. As at 30 June 2024, the Group
has deductible temporary difference of HK$579,000
(2023: HK$39,000) in respect of expected credit loss and
write-down of inventories. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these estimated unused
tax losses and deductible temporary differences as
these were incurred by the companies that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not probate that
taxable profit will be available against which these tax
losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

T ONEER o BRHEREEARAT

R-ZZE-_WNFEA=TH AEEHE
EAELEZEHADEHEEIR
175,267,000 0 (Z & = = & :
104,769,000/ 7T ) A & R HA A B 4K 58
BEEBZ AR Z RKRERTRF
HEFRERRAE RN FN
A=+H AEBEEPBEESEZ GG
KB FR T8 B8 32,935,000 7T (— &
— =4F : 33,140,000 7T) ¥R T E B
F(xREREBEBRESBHEARFE)E
W AT FRER A2 A A 2 R R E R
Baf e R -—WmESA=+H "
AEEGRTEBREEHFERFEMRE
AR 2 B = E579,0008 L (&
T =4 :39,000/87L) o AR A I
ZEMFTADARBBSERAINRZ
TRNEZEBERECHREEE  RAA
ZEMFT A ARIBEEE RTFEMR
THESRSEE—BRERZARES
BAFT T & B BRFEF AT A IEKHE
ZEBBEBRAINB 2 ERER -

203



= _d

/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRME

For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &%

Number of
shares Amount
& B RE

‘000 HK$'000
TR FET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 eachat RZ-ZZTZ=FRk-_ZT_HF

30 June 2023 and 2024 NAZTHERK
H{E0.05/8 T2 EilBhk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 July 2022, 30 June 2023, R=-B-_—-F+H—H-
1 July 2023 and 30 June 2024 —E-=FXA=+H"
—E-=F+tH—-HE
—E_mEANA=1H 30,000,000 1,500,000
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE NE
‘000 HK$'000
T TATT
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE
At 1 July 2022, 30 June 2023, 1 KRBt H—H"
July 2023 and 30 June 2024 —E_=%XA=+A8H"
—E-=F+tHA—HK
—E-_WEXA=TH 15,695,532 784,776

204 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2024 &= —

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had pledged the
following assets to secure borrowing facilities granted

T_MERA=THILFE

30. REEH

BEEReMBREREMEBOAIE
EHN KEITTE’%I’WL/{TéTET’E%
AEBEREEREZER (M

(note 26) to the Group. The carrying amounts of these 26) - WEEBEZRABEITHAT :
assets are analysed as follows:

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment WM - BB REE 237,826 269,242
Investment properties HEME - 15,900
Bank balances RITHE & 582 650
238,408 285,792
31. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 31. X AFIEW

Share  Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total

R4 RE N RiAER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEL FEL FAT FAT

At 1 July 2022 R-ZE--%#tA-H 1,217,887 414,226 (2,084,032) (451,919)
Loss and total comprehensive  AEREERE B ALE

income for the year - - (50,662) (50,662)
At 30 June 2023 and RZBZ=ZFXA=1HRK

1July 2023 ZE-=fE+A-H 1,217,887 414,226 (2,134,694) (502,581)
Loss and total comprehensive  AEREHERZANABE

income for the year - - (46,370) (46,370)

At 30 June 2024 R-ZZE-MEXA=TH 1,217,887 414,226 (2,181,064) (548,951)
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For the year ended 30 June 2024 #HEZ—ZT_FA=THILFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32. XA R MK AT
OF THE COMPANY

2024 2023

—EmEF —Eo=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F# T TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets IREBEE

Interests in subsidiaries EUNGIPE £ 10,206 85,574
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 10,206 85,574
Current assets REBEE

Other receivables H {th jE Uk K18 357 310

Financial assets at fair value BAFETAERZ

through profit or loss SREE 131,326 118,186

Deposits in a financial & B 2 1750

institution 89,780 67,356

Bank balances and cash RITEBREIR S 7,519 14,100
Total current assets R EERE 228,982 199,952
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals and other payables — fE&T 2 F & H th fE S 5178 2,249 2,217

Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{ B A 7318 1,114 1,114
Total current liabilities MENEERRE 3,363 3,331
Net current assets REBEEFRE 225,619 196,621
Net assets EEFRE 235,825 282,195
EQUITY R

Share capital [ 29 784,776 784,776

Reserves ERe] 31 (548,951) (502,581)
Total equity mrEs 235,825 282,195

ARARBBRARER T _MFI
A= —I-tEIZ%%%ATtt/E&%@E'J?*
Wil FIEERRE

Statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 27 September 2024 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Wwong Siu Keung Joe
Bk

Chu Yin Yin Georgiana
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33.

34.

INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment share capital
HMRL/ Ry CRARAEZRE

Place of

Name of company

NEER

DeTai Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1

ERMBERRA 0 18T

Guofeng Liquor & Wine PRC US§10,000
Business (Sichuan) Ltd.* (note) 10,000% 7T

EEEE () BRAR (FE)

Cambridge Venture Partners Japan JPY10,000
Kabushiki Kaisha ("CVP KK") B 10,0008

* The English name is for identification only
Note:

This subsidiary is registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under
the law of the PRC.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

Rental income generated by leasing the investment
properties held by the Group during the year ended 30
June 2023 was HK$510,000. Tenants were committed to
the Group for leasing the properties for the next one but
not later than two years for the year ended 30 June
2023.

The Group had the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating lease
contracts as at 30 June 2023:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than two years

33.

e
S

FREEMBLTIZEH

Percentage of equity

interest attributable

ARREERER DL
Directly

34.

Principal activities and
place of operation
TEERREEHE

to the Company

Indirectly

E& 3

- 100%  Money lending in Hong Kong

REBMR
- 100%  Trading and distribution of
liguor and wine in the PRC
REBBERD HEEER
- 100%  Hotel hospitality business
in Japan
RAFREEERFES

* R ATEE R
GEE

B ARIREFEARELRIIEBEDE

HERE

EREHAA
RBEE-_T_=FRA=1THILFE
AEEARERENRENEMESL
Z WA R/S10,000ET - HE-F
T=EFRB=THLEFE - EHEEM
REBEFAGRRARE - FETEBRMF
HEWE -

RZZBZ=FXA=+H rEER
BAHELEHEANBUTREK
RIEEE U FRIE

2023
—E_=F

HK$'000
TAET

394
420

814

ZECUFFER o BEFEFEEERAT
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35. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. 8B &t ERM:E

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

ERERBAEERBECHER

activities:
Lease
Borrowings liabilities
BE HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 July 2022 R-ZZE-_ZFtA—H 54,550 348
Changes from financing MERSRESE :
cash flows:
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (6,833) -
Proceeds from borrowings EEFTSRIA 580 -
Lease payment MERK - (348)
Interest paid 258 (1,445) (12)
Total changes from financing MERSRESBHAHE
cash flows (7,698) (360)
Exchange adjustments ME W A (2,113) -
Other changes: Hh 25 :
Interest expenses E=Nba 1,445 12
Total other changes Hih@ 54858 1,445 12
At 30 June 2023 and 1July 2023 R=-ZFE=-_=HxA=+HBkK
—E-=%+tHA—H 46,184 -
Changes from financing cash AMERESRESE
flows:
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (6,269) -
Proceeds from borrowings EEFTSRIA 340 -
Lease payment MERRK - (330)
Interest paid 2 F B (662) (30)
Total changes from financing MERESRESBHARE
cash flows (6,591) (360)
Exchange adjustments ME W A (3,075) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 14) HE B R (KiFE14) (12,920) -
Other changes: Hih# 5 :
Lease modification HEEBN - 679
Interest expenses BB X 662 30
Total other changes Hih@# )48 %8 662 709
At 30 June 2024 R-ZZE-_NEXA=1+H 24,260 349
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36.

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management
personnel

The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all directors of the Company. Details of their remuneration
are disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objective of managing capital is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns and benefits for
members and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes borrowings less deposits in a financial
institution, pledged bank balances, bank balances and
cash and total equity as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as the issue of new debts or redemption
of existing debts.

T ONEER o BRHEREEARAT

36.

37.

FREALZS
FEEE A SR
FEBMEIETRARBEADAZE
ER- RS IMeFBREAH
BRI W -

RempRER

AEBESEERERERAKRESR
BENFERE e AR KE H

KM g WHRFRIBEERER - A
AR E AR o

AEEZERNGERBRAEFE 2
TEEEERREREB2ER B
HEMRTEG RIOTERRRSAUAR
RERA MR RIKER 2 #4g -

S B 18 B 45 M A —
R ERULBHADSS EREE
BEERIE A 2 & ARA RAARER -
EREBE RS AREEERY
P10 T 5 7 97 4 R R L 5 (R -
TR A A A -
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37.

38.

210

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. S €RBRER &)
The gearing ratio at the end of reporting periods was as RERRCEEABLENT :
follows:
2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET
Borrowings BE (24,260) (46,184)
Deposits in a financial institution R4 B ~ 175X 89,780 67,356
Pledged bank balances BEHEFIRITA 582 650
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS 26,075 56,281
Net cash R /F5E 92,177 78,103
Total equity B 434,043 526,514
Net cash to equity ratio Re FrRAERLE 0.21 0.15
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 38. miABEozcEMEER M
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY AREE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets AEBER-ZZE-_WNEER T -_=FX
and financial liabilities as recognised as at 30 June 2024 A=+H®RAZzHEELERAR
and 2023 may be categorised as follows: REE BT :
2023
—EBE_=F
HK$'000
FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value ERFEFABSZEREE
through profit or loss 131,326 118,186
Financial assets at amortised cost  HEHEM AT EZ EREE 123,166 208,724
254,492 326,910
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost X # ik At E v 2R EE 30,006 50,089
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Financial Summary
BHEE

RESULTS E |
Years ended 30 June
BEXRA=TALEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020"
- SR e ZEI-FT ZFIERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL THT THT THT
Revenue g 31,266 31,159 41,052 24,092 48,922
Loss before income tax ~ FT/SHiATE1E (71,608) (72,419) (138,305) 47,617) (176,670)
Income tax credit ERER 837 2,588 2,467 5,841 9,101
Loss for the year from RELEEBL
continuing operations AEREE (70,771) (69,831) (135,838) (41,776) (167,569)
Profit for the year from BRIEEEER L
discontinued operations AN A F - - - 4,879 -
Loss for the year RERER (70,771) (69,831) (135,839) (36,897) (167,569)
Loss for the year UTATEERE
attributable to: NEE
Owners of the Company AR RHA A (70,771) (69,831) (135,838) (35,365) (163,520)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEHRRR 25 - - - (1,532) (4,049)
(70,771) (69,831) (135,838) (36,897) (167,569)
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/ Financial Summary

MBEEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
At 30 June
RAB=1+H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EC_ME | ZFE-=F T —E-—F ZZE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEMAE 501,147 620,591 718,848 1,000,454 1,061,954
Total liabilities BERE (67,104) (94,443) (109,275) (197,545) (270,208)
434,043 526,148 609,573 802,909 791,746
* The Group had disposed the new energy business during the year — * AEFBCRBEE TS -—FEXA=1THILFE
ended 30 June 2021. SRR
The new energy business has been presented as discontinued FRREBREBEE_ZTE_—FA=1TAHLHF
operations in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended BZEGRAUBHRERTEVNARCKRIEEEER -
30 June 2021. For the purpose of this financial summary, the new RAVBEHREMS  RBE-T_FTF~A
energy business has not been re-presented as discontinued operations —THALEFEFEREBETESHZ25AEKR
for the year ended 30 June 2020. IR % -
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